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AFFIDAVIT OF ILAN HANDELSMAN

Sworn on February 27, 2020

[, ILAN HANDELSMAN, of the City of Victoria, in the Province of British Columbia, SWEAR AND
SAY THAT:

1. I am the Plaintiff and the proposed representative Plaintiff in the within action (the “Action”). As
such, I have personal knowledge of the matters herein deposed to except where based upon

information and belief and where so based, I verily believe the same to be true.

2. I make this Affidavit in support of the relief set out in the Application re: Litigation Funding Approval
(the “Funding Application”) which relates to 2052227 Alberta Ltd. (“2277).
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I have previously sworn affidavits in this Action, including on August 14, 2017 (the “First
Affidavit”), and most recently on June 27, 2019, in support of the Application for Certification (the
“Certification Affidavit™).

Unless otherwise indicated, capitalized terms used herein have the meanings given to them in the
Amended Statement of Claim filed on April 30, 2019 (the “Amended Statement of Claim”), or in

the Funding Application. In swearing this Affidavit, [ do not intend to waive any legal privilege.
OVERVIEW OF 227052227 ALBERTA LTD.

As described in my earlier Affidavits, 227 is a corporation formed under the laws of Alberta for the
purpose of carrying on litigation in respect of the Prism Entities. Specifically, I, together with two
other investors in the Prism Entities, Owen Jackson (“Jackson™) and Clifford McAuley
(“McAuley”), caused 227 to be incorporated on or around June 22, 2017. A true copy of a corporate

search report for 227 is attached as Exhibit “C” to my Certification Affidavit.

When we incorporated 227, we did so with the aim of organizing investors in the Prism Entities
(which I believed were a disparate group) to pursue collective action, to pool funds for litigation, and
pursue litigation relating to our lost investments in the Prism Entities in a cost-efficient and economic

manner.

In or around that time we also caused 227 to approve a governance charter regulating the business
and activities of 227 (the “Governance Charter”). A true copy of the Governance Charter is

attached as Exhibit “D” to my Certification Affidavit.

Among other things, the Governance Charter provides that the Board of Directors is empowered with
providing instructions and direction and decisions “surrounding funding in relation to any and all
investigative proceedings, court actions or other proceedings or actions in respect of the Prism Group
with a goal of the protecting, preserving or recovering principal amounts, interest and all other

amounts owing to the investors in the Prism Group ... or damages in lieu thereof...”.

At all times, the Board of Directors for 227 has consisted of Jackson, McAuley, and I. Likewise, at
all times, [ have acted as President of 227, Jackson has acted as Treasurer and McAuley has acted as
Secretary. Neither Jackson, McAuley, nor I receive compensation for our work for 227. We are
volunteers. Indeed, the time and energy we dedicate to 227 is significant, and comes at the expense

of our other full-time employment or personal obligations.
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To assist us, 227 engaged Criterium Group (“Criterium”), which is an Alberta based management
consulting firm. Criterium has provided management, administrative, investigative and consulting
services in relation to the business and operations of 227. A true copy of a trade name search for
Criterium and a printout from Criterium’s webpage are attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. The
intention is that Criterium will receive a reasonable success fee from recoveries in this Action as

compensation for services.

227 has also engaged Borden Ladner Gervais LLP as its litigation counsel in respect of the Prism

Entities.
SHAREHOLDERS OF 227

Since in or around mid 2017, 227 has raised funds to pursue litigation in respect of the Prism Entities

by selling Class “A” common shares (the “Shares”), to former investors in the Prism Entities.

Specifically, 227 has sold Shares pursuant to certain confidential offering memoranda, and
purchasers have executed subscription agreements for such Shares (the “Subscription
Agreements”). Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “B” is a true copy of a form of Subscription
Agreement for 227. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “C” is a true copy of a confidential

offering memoranda of 227.

The Subscription Agreement requires each subscriber to execute a support letter (the “Support

Letter”), which states, among other things, that the subscriber:
(a) is an investor in one or more of the Prism Entities;

(b) supports the engagement of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP as litigation counsel in relation to

claims against the Prism Entities;
(c) supports the engagement of Criterium (or affiliates) as consultant to 227;
(d) supports the current management and directors of 227; and

(e) supports and grants management of 227 the right and ability to pursue and settle all claims on

behalf of the subscriber.
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Accordingly, each person who has acquired Shares of 227 (the “Shareholders™) is and must be an
investor in one or more Prism Entities and a member of the Proposed Class (and one or more

Proposed Sub-Classes).
As of February 2020, I estimate that approximately 400 Shareholders have invested in 227.
RE-APPROVAL OF 227 AS A LITIGATION FUNDING VEHICLE

As detailed at paragraphs 88 to 92 of my Certification Affidavit, Jackson, McAuley and I commenced
this Action by filing the Originating Application on August 15, 2017. The Originating Application,
and related applications (collectively, the “Inmitial Proceedings™), sought, inter alia, certain
investigative and injunction relief. At all times, 227 funded our litigation costs in respect of the

Initial Proceedings.

In connection with the Initial Proceedings, by an Order of the Honourable Madam Justice K.D. Nixon

pronounced on October 2, 2017 (the “Initial Approval Order”), her Ladyship ordered that:
(a) 227 was approved as a funding vehicle for investors in certain of the Prism Entities; and

(b) any recoveries generated from this Action, or as a result of this Action, would be distributed
first to 227 for its reasonable fees and disbursements (plus interest at 10%), and secondly to the
investors in certain of the Prism Entities, depending on the source of the recoveries, among

other things.

I understand from my counsel, BLG, that the Ghanis took no opposition in respect of the Initial

Approval Order.

Since then, I commenced the within proposed class proceeding by filing the Statement of Claim and
then subsequently the Amended Statement of Claim. As before, 227 has and will continue to fund
legal expenses on my behalf for the within proposed class proceeding, and for the benefit the

Proposed Class Members as whole (many of whom are Shareholders in 227).

I do verily believe that the funding provided by 227 is necessary for me to advance and prosecute
this Action to the fullest extent, on behalf of the Proposed Class Members, and do verily believe that
without this proposed class proceeding investors in the Prism Entities will be prevented from
obtaining access to justice (as is more fully set out in my Certification Affidavit). The access to
justice afforded by 227 is substantive and meaningful.
)4 .
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In short, I consider it fair, just and necessary for this Court’s to approve or re-approve 227 as a
litigation funding vehicle in respect of within proposed class proceeding. By supporting 227, various
Proposed Class Members have indirectly given their financial support to me, to advance this Action

on their behalf.
THE PROPOSED DISTRIBUTION SCHEME

Since the Initial Approval Order, Jackson, McAuley and I have advised investors (or proposed
investors) in 227 that [ would seek this Court’s early approval of a distribution scheme for any
recoveries from this proposed class proceeding, which would, inter alia, give Shareholders (i) a 10%

return on their investments in 227, and (ii) a priority entitlement to any recoveries.

A true copy of a PowerPoint presentation reflecting the proposed distribution scheme, which has
been presented to Shareholders (or potential investors) in 227 from time to time, is attached hereto

as Exhibit “D”.

I am also advised by my counsel that the distribution scheme reflected in the PowerPoint, and
presented to Shareholders of 227, is now described at paragraph 2(b) of the Funding Application (the

“Proposed Distribution Scheme”), which I have reviewed.

Simply stated, I do verily believe it is fair, just and necessary for this Court to approve the Proposed
Distribution Scheme, and to do so at an early stage in this proceeding. In particular, and among other

things:

(a) the Proposed Distribution Scheme will ensure that Shareholders who have supported 227, and
taken on the financial risk of advancing this proposed class proceeding, are fairly compensated

for that risk;

(b) we have notified all known Proposed Class Members of 227 and the Proposed Distribution
Scheme. For instance, during 2018 we circulated information materials to known Proposed
Class Members on approximately a bimonthly basis. As such, many Proposed Class Members

have been afforded an opportunity to invest and participate in 227; and

(c) through my discussions with Shareholders, they have advised me that the Proposed Distribution

Scheme was an important factor leading to their support and investment in 227.

V/
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SWORN BEFORE ME at Victoria, British
Columbia, this £ Z day of February 2020.

<
%otary Public in and for British Columbia

I am also advised by my counsel, that a similar distribution or funding arrangement is being used in
the ongoing class action of Starratt v Mamdani, being Court of Queen’s Bench File No. 1201-08069
(the “Platinum Equities Class Action™). In particular, I understand that:

(a) the Platinum Equities Class Action was certified in or around June 2015; and

(b) certain class members in that action have contributed to class counsel’s fees and have been
categorized as “Tier 1” class members. Class members who have not contributed have been
categorized as “Tier 2” class members. I understand that the Tier 1 members are proposed to

be entitled to a larger proportion of any eventual recoveries.

Attached hereto as Exhibit “E” are true copies of (i) parts of the certification order for the Platinum
Equities Class Action, including Schedule “C” thereto which references the “Tiers”; and (ii)

information from the webpage maintained by class counsel for the Platinum Equities Class Action.

I seek approval of the Proposed Distribution Scheme, namely to ensure this Action remains
financially viable and that class members who take the risk of supporting the Action are treated

equitably.

Going forward, I understand that 227 intends to raise any additional funds for this Action from
Shareholders who have already contributed to 227, and from new Proposed Class Members who are
made aware of 227 in connection with certification. Thus, the Funding Application seeks directions
from this Court regarding a deadline for Proposed Class Members to invest in 227 and regarding

notices to Proposed Class Members.

[ make this Affidavit in support of the relief sought in the Funding Application and for no other

purpose.

~
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ILAN (ALAN) HANDELSMAN
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VIENNA KAPPELL
NOTARY PUBLIC
201-2610 DOUGLAS STREET
VICTORIA BC VBT 4M1
TEL 250-382-8880

A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR
THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBI.
PERMANENT COMMISSION



This is EXHIBIT “A” referred to
in the Affidavit of Ilan Handelsman
Sworn before me this 27th day of February 2020

o
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Notary Public in and for British Columbia

YVIENNA KAPPELL
NOTARY PUBLIC
201-2610 DOUGLAS STREET
VICTORIA BC VBT 4M1
TEL 250-382-8880

A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR
THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIZ
PFRMANENT COMMISSION



Government Corporation/Non-Profit Search
of Alberta m Corporate Registration System

Date of Search: 2020/02/25
Time of Search: 03:00 PM
Search provided by: BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP

Service Request Number: 33058401
Customer Reference Number: 444097.000001

Corporate Access Number: 2020599516

Business Number: 872054218
Legal Entity Name: AULD MANAGEMENT CONSULTING LTD.
Legal Entity Status: Active

Alberta Corporation Type: Named Alberta Corporation
Method of Registration: = Amalgamation

Registration Date: 2017/08/01 YYYY/MM/DD
Registered Office:

Street: 2205, 500 - 4TH AVENUE SW

City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P2Vé6

Records Address:

Street: 2205, 500 - 4TH AVENUE SW

City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P2V6

Email Address: KATHY@ALLISON-ASSOCIATES.CA

Directors:

Last Name: AULD
First Name: ROBERT
Middle Name: G

Street/Box Number: 213, 330 - 26TH AVENUE S.W.
City: CALGARY



Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2S2T3

Last Name: HENSHAW

First Name: DALE

Street/Box Number: 213, 330 - 26TH AVENUE SW
City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2S2T3

Last Name: LEWYCKY

First Name: JENNA

Street/Box Number: 213, 330 - 26TH AVENUE SW
City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2S2T3

Voting Shareholders:

Last Name: AULD (2017) FAMILY TRUST
Street: 3041 - 1ST STREET S.W.
City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2S1P7

Percent Of Voting Shares: 95

Last Name: LEWYCKY

First Name: JENNA

Street: 1120, 202 - 6 AVENUE S.W.
City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2P2R9

Percent Of Voting Shares: 5

Details From Current Articles:

The information in this legal entity table supersedes equivalent electronic attachments

Share Structure: SEE THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE OF SHARE CAPITAL.



Share Transfers NO SHARES OF THE CORPORATION MAY BE TRANSFERRED
Restrictions: WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF A MAJORITY OF DIRECTORS, UNLESS
OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN A UNANIMOUS SHAREHOLDER

AGREEMENT.

Min Number Of

. 1
Directors:
Max Number Of

. 5
Directors:
Business
Restricted To: NONE.
Business
Restricted From: NONE.
Other NONE.
Provisions:

Other Information:

Amalgamation Predecessors:

|Corporate Access Number]|Legal Entity Name ]
2015753045 ||AULD HOLDINGS LTD. l
209338300 |AULD MANAGEMENT CONSULTING LTD |

Last Annual Return Filed:

IFile Year|Date Filed (YYYY/MM/DD))|

| 2019]2019/10/07 ]

Filing History:

IList Date (YYYY/MM/DD)|Type of Filing ]
2017/08/01 lAmalgamate Alberta Corporation |
12019/03/13 |Change Address |
2019/06/19 |\Change Director / Shareholder |
12019/10/07 |Enter Annual Returns for Alberta and Extra-Provincial Corp.|
12020/02/22 |[Update BN |

Attachments:




|Attachment Type |[Microfilm Bar Code|[Date Recorded (YYYY/MM/DD)|
IShare Structure ~ |[ELECTRONIC  |2017/08/01 |
|Statutory Declaration][10000607120618932][2017/08/01 l

The Registrar of Corporations certifies that, as of the date of this search, the above information is an
accurate reproduction of data contained in the official public records of Corporate Registry.







Government Trade Name / Partnership Search
of Alberta m Corporate Registration System

Date of Search: 2020/02/25
Time of Search: 02:43 PM
Search provided by: BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP

Service Request No: 33058125
Customer Reference No: 31005.444097.000001

Registration No: TN17771478

Current Business Name: CRITERIUM GROUP

Status of Business Name: Active

Trade Name / Partnership Type: Trade Name

Commencement Date: 2013/10/08 YYYY/MM/DD

Date of Registration: 2013/10/08 YYYY/MM/DD
Type of Business: MANAGEMENT CONSULTING

Current Declarant:
Last/Legal Entity Name: AULD MANAGEMENT CONSULTING LTD.

Street: 1250, 639 - 5STH AVENUE S.W.
City: CALGARY

Province: ALBERTA

Postal Code: T2POM9

Other Information:

Filing History:

List Date ”Type of Filing ]
2013/10/08|[Register Trade Name

The Registrar of Corporations certifies that, as of the date of this search, the above information is an
accurate reproduction of data contained in the official public records of Corporate Registry.







2/25/2020 Criterium Group | Who We Are

Criterium Group is a management consulting firm known for providing exceptional results.

As a team, we provide a practical, outcome-based approach to Strategic Planning, Business Transformation,
Mergers & Acquisitions and Business Optimization. With unyielding integrity, we consistently create value by
exceeding expectations through hard work, dedicated leadership, vision and unshakeable passion.

Our Credo

WE ARE RESPONSIBLE
Our first responsibility is to the corporations, new ventures, governments, not-for-profits, and leaders we help to
achieve performance excellence. We consistently deliver exceptional value by exceeding expectations with high
quality results.

.
Ny

WE ARE COMMITTED

criteriumgroup.com/who-we-are/ 1/3



2/25/2020 Criterium Group | Who We Are

WE ARE FEARLESS
We embrace an entrepreneurial spirit of decision and action and refuse to let fear hold us back. We admit our
mistakes, take responsibility, make it right, learn and embrace the next challenge stronger.

e

L N
WE ARE CLIENT-FOCUSED
Our first responsibility is to the corporations, new ventures, governments, not-for-profits, and leaders we help to
achieve performance excellence. We consistently deliver exceptional value by exceeding expectations with high
quality results. '

WE ARE VISIONARIES

We are all dedicated, passionate and hardworking visionaries. We strive to enrich each other by growing a
supportive and invigorating performance culture.

7

WE ARE INNOVATIVE
We achieve excellence by pushing the boundaries of the status quo; by seeking pioneering solutions.

WE ARE A TEAM
Our team is capable of boundless opportunity. We use this opportunity to share our knowledge and experience
with our clients, our communities and each other. We take our work seriously but not ourselves. We celebrate our
client's success.

« B
|
WE ARE LEADERS
We are a balance of limitless energy, stimulating thought and evolving change. Through our leadership, we are
making things happen that would otherwise not occur - every day.

criteriumgroup.com/who-we-are/

213



2/25/2020 Criterium Group | Who We Are

CWNTALG

CALGARY

E: info@criteriumgroup.com

P: (403) 668.1630

Bow Valley Square 1, Suite 1120
202-6 Ave SW

Calgary, AB T2P 2R9

SINGAPORE

P: +65 3158 2799
City House

36 Robinson Road
Singapore 068877

LONDON

P: +44 (0)7535 155869
8 Devonshire Square
London, EC2M 4PL
United Kingdom

criteriumgroup.com/who-we-are/ 313



This is EXHIBIT “B” referred to
in the Affidavit of Ilan Handelsman

Sworn before me this 27th day of February 2020

N a

Notary Public in and for British Columbia

VIENNA KAPPELL
NOTARY PUBLIC
201-2610 DOUGLAS STREET
VICTORIA BC VBT 41
TEL 250-382-8880

A NOTARY PUBLIC I AND FOR
THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBY/
PERMANENT COMMISSION



SUBSCRIPTION FOR COMMON SHARES
TO: 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. (the "Corporation')

The undersigned (the "Subscriber") hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of Class A common shares ("Common
Shares") of the Corporation set forth below for the aggregate subscription price ("Aggregate Subscription Amount") set forth below, representing a
subscription price of $1.00 per Common Share, upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in "Terms and Conditions of Subscription for
Common Shares of 2052227 Alberta Ltd." attached hereto (together with this page and attached Schedules, the "Subscription Agreement™). In
addition to this face page, the Subscriber must also complete all applicable schedules attached hereto.

Aggregate Subscription Amount; §
Full Legal Name of Subscriber (please print) (Minimum $1,000 subscription)

By:

Signature of Subscriber or its Authorized Representative Number of Common Shares:

Official Title or Capacity (please print) Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information:

If the Subscriber is signing as agent for a principal and is not
deemed to be purchasing as principal pursuant to NI 45-106 (as
defined herein) by virtue of being either (i) a trust company or
trust corporation acting on behalf of a fully managed account
managed by the trust company or trust corporation or, (ii) a
person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by
it, and in each case satisfying the criteria set forth in NI 45-106,
complete the following and ensure that, if applicable, the
schedules attached hereto are completed in respect of such

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above if different than name of Subscriber)

Subscriber's Address (including postal code)

principal:
Telephone Number (including area code) (Name of Principal)
e-mail Address (Principal's Address)
(Telephone Number) (E-mail Address)

Register the Common Shares (if different from address given Deliver the Common Shares (if different from address given

above) as follows: above) as follows:

Name Name

Account reference, if applicable Account reference, if applicable
Address (including postal code) Contact Name

Address (including postal code)

Telephone Number (including area code)

ACCEPTANCE: The Corporation hereby accepts the subscription as set forth above on the terms and conditions contained in this Subscription
Agreement.

2052227 ALBERTA LTD. ,2017

Per: | No.: ]

This is the first page of an agreement comprised of 11 pages (excluding the Schedules hereto).

{W./DOCS/2651.001/09/00479176.DOCX / 3}



2052227 ALBERTA LTD. Page 2 of 11
Subscription Agreement for Common Shares

PLEASE MAKE SURE THAT YOUR SUBSCRIPTION INCLUDES:

1. a signed copy of this Subscription Agreement;

2. a certified cheque or bank draft in an amount equal to the Aggregate Subscription Amount payable to
"TINGLEMERRETT LLP in Trust" or payment of the same amount in such other manner as is
acceptable to the Corporation;

3. if the Subscriber is purchasing Common Shares as an "accredited investor”, one (1) copy of the
Representation Letter in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement as Schedule "A" (including a
duly completed and initialed copy of Exhibit A to Schedule "A" and, if you are an individual described
in_paragraphs (j), (k), or (D) of the definition of "accredited investor" in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106
{which definition is reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A™), a duly completed and signed copy of
Exhibit B to Schedule "A"); and

4. one (1) copy of a Support Letter in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement as Schedule "B".

PLEASE DELIVER THE AFOREMENTIONED DOCUMENTS AND PAYMENT TO:

TingleMerrett LLP
1250, 639 — 5™ Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 0M9

Attention: Chris Croteau
T: 403-571-8019
F: 403-571-8008
E: ccroteau@tinglemerrett.com

{W:/DOCS/2651.001/09/00479176.DOCX / 3}



2052227 ALBERTA LTD. Page 3 of 11
Subscription Agreement for Common Shares

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

®

(2)
(h)
(i)

G

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION FOR
COMMON SHARES OF 2052227 ALBERTA LTD,

Definitions. In this Subscription Agreement:

"Aggregate Subscription Amount” has the meaning set forth on the face page hereof
"Articles" means the articles of incorporation of the Corporation and any amendments thereto;
"Closing Date" means such date(s) as the Corporation may determine;

"Common Shares" means Class A common shares in the capital of the Corporation;

"Corporation" means 2052227 ALBERTA LTD., a corporation incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta);

"Offering" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph 2(b) hereof;
"United States” means the United States of America;
"Common Shares" has the meaning set forth on the face page hereof; and

"U.S. Purchaser” is (a) any "U.S. person" as defined in Regulation S of the U.S. Securities Act, (b)
any person purchasing securities on behalf of any "U.S. person" or any person in the United
States, (c) any person that receives or received an offer of the securities while in the United States,
(d) any person that is in the United States at the time the purchaser’s buy order was made or this
subscription agreement was executed or delivered. "U.S. person” includes but is not limited to (i)
any natural person resident in the United States; (ii) any partnership or corporation organized or
incorporated under the laws of the United States; (iii) any partnership or corporation organized
outside the United States by a U.S. person principally for the purpose of investing in securities not
registered under the U.S. Securities Act, unless it is organized or incorporated, and owned, by
accredited investors who are not natural persons, estates or trusts; (iv) any estate or trust of which
any executor or administrator or trustee is a U.S. person; and

"U.S. Securities Act" means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Acknowledgements of the Subscriber. The Subscriber agrees and acknowledges (on its own behalf
and, if applicable, on behalf of each person on whose behalf the Subscriber is contracting) that:

this subscription is subject to rejection or acceptance by the Corporation in whole or in part, and is
effective only upon acceptance by the Corporation;

the Common Shares subscribed for by the Subscriber hereunder form part of an issue and sale by
the Corporation of up to 1,000,000 Common Shares at a subscription price of $1.00 per Common
Share for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000 (the "Offering");

the Offering is not subject to any minimum amount and that the Subscriber's subscription may be
the only subscription;

the board of directors of the Corporation (the "Board") / management of the Corporation (the
"Management") are as follows:

Alan (llan) Handelsman, Director and President (Victoria, B.C.) — Mr. Handelsman is a
licensed dealing representative with Raintree Financial Solutions. Mr. Handelsman personally
invested in Prism Place, Prism Heritage, Prism Broadmoor, Prism Horizon and Prism
Summerside. Family, friends and clients have also invested in the Prism entities;

Owen Jackson, Director and Treasurer (Edmonton, AB) — Mr. Jackson is a licensed dealing
representative with Raintree Financial Solutions. Mr. Jackson, through his professional
corporation, invested in Prism Summerside; and

Clifford McAuley, Director and Secretary (Vermillion, Alberta) — Mr. McAuley, now retired,
was a teacher at Lakeland College in Vermillion and Lloydminster for 27 years. Prior to that he
taught in the public school system at a high school level and has worked in the
telecommunications industry in private practice. M. McAuley achieved his certified management
accountant status in 1991. Mr. McAuley invested in Prism Horizon and Prism Broadmoor.

{W:/DOCS/2651.001/09/00479176.DOCX / 3}



2052227 ALBERTA LTD. Page 4 of 11
Subscription Agreement for Common Shares

(e)

M

(&)
(h)

0]

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(0

(3]

and the Subscriber consents and acknowledges that the Board/Management are knowledgeable
and equipped to manage and direct the affairs of the Corporation;

the Subscriber has read, understands and executed the Support Letter attached hereto as Schedule
HB";

the Subscriber is responsible for obtaining such legal advice as it considers appropriate in
connection with the execution, delivery and performance by it of this Subscription
Agreement;

there is no government or other insurance scheme covering the Common Shares;

no securities commission or similar regulatory authority has reviewed or passed on the
merits of the Common Shares or the Common Shares; and

there are risks associated with an investment in the Common Shares and, as a result, the
Subscriber may lose its entire investment.

Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Subscriber. By executing this Subscription
Agreement, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of each person on whose
behalf the Subscriber is contracting) represents, warrants and covenants to the Corporation and its
counsel (and acknowledges that the Corporation and its counsel are relying thereon) that:

if the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber is of the full age of majority in the jurisdiction in
which this Subscription Agreement is executed and is legally competent to execute and deliver
this Subscription Agreement, to perform all of its obligations hereunder, and to undertake all
actions required of the Subscriber hereunder;

if the Subscriber is not an individual, the Subscriber has the requisite power, authority, legal
capacity and competence to execute and deliver and be bound by this Subscription Agreement, to
perform all of its obligations hereunder, and to undertake all actions required of the Subscriber
hereunder, and all necessary approvals of its directors, partners, shareholders, trustees or otherwise
with respect to such matters have been given or obtained;

if the Subscriber is a body corporate, partnership, unincorporated association or other entity, the
Subscriber has been duly incorporated or created and is validly subsisting under the laws of its
jurisdiction of incorporation or creation;

this Subscription Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by, and
constitutes a legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of, the Subscriber;

the execution, delivery and performance by the Subscriber of this Subscription Agreement and the
completion of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and will not result in a violation of any
law, regulation, order or ruling applicable to the Subscriber, and do not and will not constitute a
breach of or default under any of the Subscriber's constating documents (if the Subscriber is not an
individual) or any agreement or covenant to which the Subscriber is a party or by which it is
bound;

the Subscriber confirms that the Subscriber (and, if the Subscriber is not purchasing as principal,
each beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is acting):

(i) has such knowledge in financial and business affairs as to be capable of evaluating the
merits and risks of its investment in the Common Shares;

(ii) is capable of assessing the proposed investment in the Common Shares as a result of the
Subscriber’s own experience or as a result of advice received from a person registered
under applicable securities legislation;

(iii) is aware of the characteristics of the Common Shares and the risks relating to an
investment therein; and

(iv) is able to bear the economic risk of loss of its entire investment in the Common Shares;

the Subscriber understands that no securities commission, stock exchange, governmental agency,
regulatory body or similar authority has made any finding or determination or expressed any
opinion with respect to the merits of investing in the Common Shares;
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(h)

(i)

@

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

the Subscriber understands and acknowledges that no prospectus has been filed by the Corporation
with any securities commission or similar regulatory authority in any jurisdiction in connection
with the issuance of the Common Shares and that the Common Shares are being offered for sale
only on a "private placement" basis and that the sale of the Common Shares is conditional upon
such sale being exempt from the requirements to file and obtain a receipt for a prospectus, and the
requirement to sell securities through a registered dealer, or upon the issuance of such orders,
consents or approvals as may be required to enable such sale to be made without complying with
such requirements, and that as a consequence of acquiring the Common Shares pursuant to such
exemptions:

(i) the Subscriber is restricted from using some of the civil remedies otherwise available
under applicable securities laws in Canada,

(ii) the Subscriber will not receive information that would otherwise be required to be
provided to it under applicable securities laws in Canada; and

(iii) the Corporation is relieved from certain obligations that would otherwise apply under
applicable securities laws in Canada;

the Subscriber confirms that neither the Corporation nor any of its directors, employees, officers,
agents, representatives or affiliates have made any representations (written or oral) to the
Subscriber:

(1) regarding the future value of the Common Shares;
(ii) that any person will resell or repurchase the Common Shares; or
(iii) that ény person will refund the purchase price of the Common Shares;

the Subscriber confirms that it has been advised to consult its own legal and financial advisors
with respect to the suitability of the Common Shares as an investment for the Subscriber, the tax
consequences of purchasing and dealing with the Common Shares, and the resale restrictions and
"hold periods" to which the Common Shares are or may be subject under applicable securities
legislation or stock exchange rules, and has not relied upon any statements made by or purporting
to have been made on behalf of the Corporation with respect to such suitability, tax consequences,
resale restrictions and "hold periods”;

except for the Subscriber's knowledge regarding its subscription for Common Shares hereunder,
the Subscriber has no knowledge of a "material fact" or a "material change" (as those terms are
defined in the Securities Act (Alberta)) in the affairs of the Corporation that has not been generally
disclosed;

the Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction indicated on the face page of this Subscription
Agreement as the "Subscriber's Address" and the purchase by and sale to the Subscriber of the
Common Shares, and any act, solicitation, conduct or negotiation directly or indirectly in
furtherance of such purchase and sale (whether with or with respect to the Subscriber or any
beneficial purchaser) has occurred only in such jurisdiction;

the Subscriber acknowledges that it and/or the Corporation may be required to provide applicable
securities regulatory authorities or stock exchanges with information concerning the identities of
the beneficial purchasers of the Common Shares and the Subscriber agrees that, notwithstanding
that the Subscriber may be purchasing the Common Shares as agent for an undisclosed principal,
the Subscriber will provide to the Corporation, on request, particulars as to the identity of such
undisclosed principal as may be required by the Corporation in order to comply with the
foregoing;

the Subscriber satisfies one of subsections (i), (ii) or (iii) below:

(i) if the Subscriber is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities laws
of any province of Canada, the Subscriber is purchasing the Common Shares as
principal (or is deemed to be purchasing as principal) for its own account, not for the
benefit of any other person, the Subscriber is an "accredited investor" as defined in
National Instrument 45-106 entitled Prospectus Exemptions ("NI 45-106") (or, if
applicable for Subscribers in Ontario, the corresponding categories for the definition of
an "accredited investor" as defined in Section 73.3 of the Securities Act (Ontario)), which
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definitions are reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A" attached hereto, the Subscriber
was not created or used solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor as
described in paragraph (m) of the definition of "accredited investor" in NI 45-106 and
reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A™ hereto, the Subscriber is not a trust company or
trust corporation registered under the laws of Prince Edward Island that is not registered
or authorized under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable
legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada and the Subscriber has executed and
delivered to the Corporation a Representation Letter in the form attached hereto as
Schedule "A" indicating that the Subscriber fits within one of the categories of
"accredited investor"” set forth in such definitions (including a duly completed and
initialed copy of Exhibit A to Schedule "A" and, if the Subscriber is an individual
described in paragraphs (j), (k), or (I) of the definition of "accredited investor' in
Section 1.1 of NI 45-106, a duly completed and signed copy of Exhibit B to Schedule
"A"); OR

(ii) if the Subscriber is not purchasing the Common Shares as principal or pursuant to
section 3(n)(i), it is duly authorized to enter into this Subscription Agreement and to
execute and deliver all documentation in connection with the purchase on behalf of each
beneficial purchaser, each of whom is purchasing as principal for its own account, not for
the benefit of any other person, and not with a view to the resale or distribution of all or
any of the Common Shares, it acknowledges that the Corporation may be required by law
to disclose to certain regulatory authorities the identity of each beneficial purchaser of
Common Shares for whom it may be acting, and it and each beneficial purchaser is
resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber’s Residential Address” and the
purchase by and sale of the Common Shares, and any act, solicitation, conduct or
negotiation directly or indirectly in furtherance of such purchase and sale (whether with
or with respect to the Subscriber or any beneficial purchaser) has occurred only in such
jurisdiction, and:

(A) it is acting as agent for a beneficial purchaser, who is disclosed on the face page
of this Subscription Agreement, who is resident in the jurisdiction set out in the
"Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information" and who complies with section
3(n)(i) hereof as if all references therein were to the beneficial purchaser rather
than to the Subscriber and the Subscriber has concurrently executed and
delivered to the Corporation a Representation Letter in the form attached
hereto as Schedule "A" indicating that the Subscriber fits within the
category of "accredited investor" set forth in such definitions (including a
duly completed and initialed copy of Exhibit A to Schedule "A" and, if the
Subscriber is an individual described in paragraphs (j), (k), or (1) of the
definition of "accredited investor" in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106, a duly
completed and signed copy of Exhibit B to Schedule "A"); or

(B) it is deemed to be purchasing as principal under NI 45-106 because it is an
"accredited investor" as such term is defined in paragraphs (p) or (q) of the
definition of "accredited investor" in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit A to
Schedule "A" of this Subscription Agreement (provided, however, that it is not a
trust company or trust corporation registered under the laws of Prince Edward
Island that is not registered or authorized under the Trust and Loan Companies
Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada)
and has concurrently executed and delivered a Representation Letter in the
form attached hereto as Schedule "A" and has initialed in the Exhibit
thereto indicating that the Subscriber satisfies one of the categories of
"accredited investor" set out in paragraphs (p) or (q) of the definition of
"accredited investor" in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit A to
Schedule "A™ hereto;

(0) the Subscriber understands that it may not be able to resell the Common Shares except in
accordance with limited exemptions available under applicable securities legislation, regulatory
policy and stock exchange rules, and that the Subscriber is solely responsible for (and the
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{3)]

(@)

(s)

®

(w)

0

(w)

)

(y)

Corporation is not in any way responsible for) the Subscriber's compliance with applicable resale
restrictions;

the Subscriber acknowledges that:

(i) no securities commission or similar regulatory authority has reviewed or passed on the
merits of the Common Shares;

(ii) there is no government or other insurance covering the Common Shares;
(iii) there are risks associated with the purchase of the Common Shares;

(iv) there are restrictions on the Subscriber’s ability to resell the Common Shares and it is the
responsibility of the Subscriber to find out what those restrictions are and to comply with
them before selling the Common Shares; and

) the Corporation has advised the Subscriber that the Corporation is relying on an
exemption from the requirements to provide the Subscriber with a prospectus and to sell
securities through a person or company registered to sell securities under the Securities
Act (Alberta) and other applicable securities laws and, as a consequence of acquiring
Common Shares pursuant to this exemption, certain protections, rights and remedies
provided by the Securities Act (Alberta) and other applicable securities laws, including
statutory rights of rescission or damages, will not be available to the Subscriber;

the Subscriber acknowledges that it is aware that there is no market upon which the Common
Shares trade and there is no assurance that the Common Shares will be listed and posted for
trading on a stock exchange or dealer network in the future;

the Subscriber acknowledges that it is aware that the Corporation is not a "reporting issuer” or the
equivalent in any jurisdiction of Canada and therefore, the Common Shares will be subject to a
hold period which may be of indefinite duration;

the Subscriber understands that any certificates representing the Common Shares will bear a
legend in accordance with applicable securities legislation indicating that the resale of such
securities is restricted and the Subscriber will not resell any of the Common Shares except in
accordance with the provisions of applicable securities legislation;

the Subscriber further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult its own legal counsel in its
Jurisdiction of residence for full particulars of the resale restrictions applicable to it;

the Subscriber has not received or been provided with, nor has it requested, nor does it have any
need to receive, any offering memorandum, or any other document (other than the annual financial
statements, interim financial statements or any other document (excluding offering memoranda,
prospectuses or other offering documents) the content of which is prescribed by statute or
regulation) describing the business and affairs of the Corporation, which has been prepared for
delivery to and review by prospective purchasers in order to assist them in making an investment
decision in respect of the purchase of Common Shares pursuant to the Offering;

the Subscriber has not become aware of any advertisement in printed media of general and regular
paid circulation or on radio, television or other form of telecommunication or any other form of
advertisement (including electronic display or the Internet) or sales literature with respect to the
distribution of the Common Shares;

the Subscriber is aware that the Common Shares have not been and will not be registered under
the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities Act") or the securities
laws of any state and that the Common Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in
the United States without registration under the U.S. Securities Act or applicable state laws or
compliance with requirements of an exemption from registration and it acknowledges that the
Corporation has no present intention of filing a registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act
or applicable state laws in respect of the Common Shares;

the Subscriber is not a U.S. Purchaser and is not acquiring the Common Shares for the account or
benefit of a person in the United States or a U.S. person;

the Subscriber undertakes and agrees that it will not offer or sell any of the Common Shares in the
United States unless such securities are registered under the U.S. Securities Act and the securities
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(aa)

(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

(ff)

(gg)

(hh)

laws of all applicable states of the United States, or an exemption from such registration
requirements is available;

if required by applicable securities legislation, regulations, rules, policies or orders or by any
securities commission, stock exchange or other regulatory authority, the Subscriber will execute,
deliver, file and otherwise assist the Corporation in filing, such reports, undertakings and other
documents with respect to the issue of the Common Shares;

except as disclosed in writing to the Corporation, the Subscriber does not act jointly or in concert
with any other person or company for the purposes of acquiring securities of the Corporation;

except for this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber has relied solely upon publicly available
information relating to the Corporation and not upon any verbal or written representation as to fact
or otherwise made by or on behalf of the Corporation, and acknowledges that the Corporation’s
counsel is acting as counsel to the Corporation and not as counsel to the Subscriber;

the Subscriber has reviewed the "Privacy Notice" attached to this Subscription Agreement, and
agrees to and accepts all covenants, representations and consents as set out therein;

the funds representing the Aggregate Subscription Amount which will be advanced by the
Subscriber to the Corporation hereunder will not represent proceeds of crime for the purposes of
the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (Canada) (the
"PCMLTFA") and the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation may in the future be
required by law to disclose the Subscriber's name and other information relating to this
Subscription Agreement and the Subscriber's subscription hereunder, on a confidential basis,
pursuant to the PCMLTFA. To the best of its knowledge: (i) none of the subscription funds to be
provided by the Subscriber: (A) have been or will be derived from or related to any activity that is
deemed criminal under the law of Canada, the United States of America, or any other jurisdiction;
or (B) are being tendered on behalf of a person or entity who has not been identified to the
Subscriber; and (ii) it shall promptly notify the Corporation if the Subscriber discovers that any of
such representations ceases to be true, and to provide the Corporation with appropriate information
in connection therewith;

the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation may complete additional financings in the
future in order to develop the business of the Corporation and to fund ongoing development.
There is no assurance that such financing will be available and if available, on reasonable terms.
Any such financings may have a dilutive effect on current shareholders, including the Subscriber;

if the Subscriber is contracting under this Subscription Agreement on behalf of another person or
persons, the representations, warranties, covenants, acknowledgements, confirmations and
statements made by the Subscriber in this Subscription Agreement are true and correct with
respect to such person or persons on whose behalf the Subscriber is so contracting, as if such
representations, warranties, covenants, acknowledgements, confirmations and statements were
made directly by such person or persons;

the Subscriber has been solely responsible for its own due diligence investigation of the
Corporation and its business, and analysis of the merits and risks of the investment in the Common
Shares, and is not relying on anyone else’s analysis or investigation of the Common Shares, its
business or the merits and risks of the Common Shares; and

the Subscriber acknowledges that an investment in the Common Shares is subject to a
number of risk factors and the Subscriber covenants and agrees to comply with applicable
securities legislation, orders or policies concerning the purchase, holding of, and resale of the
Common Shares.

4. Timeliness of Representations, etc. The Subscriber agrees (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on
behalf of each person on whose behalf the Subscriber is contracting) that the representations, warranties
and covenants of the Subscriber herein will be true and correct both as of the execution of this
Subscription Agreement and as of the Closing Time (as defined herein), and will survive the completion
of the distribution of the Common Shares and any subsequent disposition by the Subscriber of any of
the Common Shares.

5. Indemnity. The Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation and its counsel are relying upon the
representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber set forth herein in determining the eligibility

{W:/DOCS/2651.001/09/00479176.DOCX / 3}



2052227 ALBERTA LTD. Page 9 of 11
Subscription Agreement for Common Shares :

10.

11.

12.

(from a securities law perspective) of the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the eligibility of another on
whose behalf the Subscriber is contracting hereunder to subscribe for Common Shares) to purchase
Common Shares under the Offering, and hereby agrees to indemnify the Corporation and its directors,
officers, employees, advisers, affiliates, shareholders and agents (including their respective legal
counsel} against all losses, claims, costs, expenses, damages or liabilities that they may suffer or incur
as a result of or in connection with their reliance on such representations, warranties and covenants.
The Subscriber undertakes to immediately notify the Corporation's counsel at TingleMerrett LLP, 1250,
639 — 5™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P OM9, Attention: Chris Croteau (fax: (403) 571-8008), of
any change in any statement or other information relating to the Subscriber set forth herein that occurs
prior to the Closing Time.

Deliveries by Subscriber prior to Closing. The Subscriber agrees to deliver to the Corporation, or as

the Corporation may direct, not later than 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on such date of which the Subscriber
receives notice:

(a) this duly completed and executed Subscription Agreement;

(b) acertified cheque or bank draft made payable to "TINGLEMERRETT LLP in Trust" in an amount
equal to the Aggregate Subscription Amount, or payment of the same amount in such other
manner as is acceptable to the Corporation;

(¢) a properly completed and duly executed copy of the appropriate investor qualification form(s) as
described on page 2 of this Subscription Agreement; and

(d) such other documents as may be requested by the Corporation as contemplated by this
Subscription Agreement.

Partial Acceptance or Rejection of Subscription. The Corporation may, in its absolute discretion,
accept or reject the Subscriber's subscription for Common Shares as set forth in this Subscription
Agreement, in whole or in part, and the Corporation reserves the right to allot to the Subscriber less than
the amount of Common Shares subscribed for under this Subscription Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the acceptance of this
Subscription Agreement will be conditional upon among other things, the sale of the Common Shares to
the Subscriber being exempt from any prospectus and offering memorandum requirements of applicable
securities laws. The Corporation will be deemed to have accepted this Subscription Agreement upon
the delivery at Closing of the certificates representing the Common Shares to the Subscriber or upon the
direction of the Subscriber in accordance with the provisions hereof.

If this Subscription Agreement is rejected in whole, any certified cheque(s) or bank drafi(s) delivered by
the Subscriber to the Corporation on account of the Aggregate Subscription Amount for the Common
Shares subscribed for will be promptly returned to the Subscriber without interest. If this Subscription
Agreement is accepted only in part, a cheque representing the amount by which the payment delivered
by the Subscriber to the Corporation (or its counsel) exceeds the subscription price of the number of
Common Shares sold to the Subscriber pursuant to a partial acceptance of this Subscription Agreement
will be promptly delivered to the Subscriber without interest.

Time and Place of Closing. The sale of the Common Shares will be completed at the offices of
TingleMerrett LLP, counsel to the Corporation, in Calgary, Alberta at 10:00 a.m. (Calgary time) or such
other time as the Corporation may determine (the "Closing Time") on the Closing Date. The
Corporation reserves the right to close the Offering in multiple tranches, so that one or more closings
may occur after the initial closing.

Subject to Regulatory Approval. The obligations of the parties hereunder are subject to all required
regulatory approvals being obtained.

No Partnership. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed to constitute a partnership of any kind
whatsoever between the Subscriber and the Corporation.

Governing Law. The contract arising out of acceptance of this Subscription Agreement by the
Corporation shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Alberta
and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. The parties irrevocably attorn to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Alberta.

Time of Essence. Time shall be of the essence of this Subscription Agreement.
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13. Entire Agreement. This Subscription Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties hereto
relating to the subject matter hereof, and there are no representations, covenants or other agreements
relating to the subject matter hereof except as stated or referred to herein.

14. Electronic Copies. The Corporation shall be entitled to rely on delivery of a facsimile or other
electronic copy of executed subscriptions, and acceptance by the Corporation of such facsimile or
electronic copies shall be legally effective to create a valid and binding agreement between the
Subscriber and the Corporation in accordance with the terms hereof.

15. Counterpart. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which
so executed shall constitute an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same

agreement.

16. Severability. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Subscription
Agreement shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other provision hereof.

17. Survival. The covenants, representations and warranties contained in this Subscription Agreement shall
survive the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby, and shall be binding upon and enure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
permitted assigns.

18. Interpretation. The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience
of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Subscription Agreement or
any provision hereof. In this Subscription Agreement, unless otherwise indicated, all references to
money amounts are to Canadian dollars.

19. Amendment. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Subscription Agreement may only be amended
by the parties hereto in writing.

20. Costs. The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all costs incurred by the Subscriber (including any
fees and disbursements of any special counsel retained by the Subscriber) relating to the sale of the
Common Shares to the Subscriber shall be borne by the Subscriber.

21. Withdrawal. The Subscriber, on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of others for whom it is
contracting hereunder, agrees that this subscription is made for valuable consideration and may not be
withdrawn, cancelled, terminated or revoked by the Subscriber, on its own behalf and, if applicable, on
behalf of others for whom it is contracting hereunder.

22, Assignment. Neither party may assign all or part of its interest in or to this Subscription Agreement
without the consent of the other party in writing.

23. Language. The Subscriber acknowledges that it has consented to and requested that all documents
evidencing or relating in any way to the sale of the Common Shares be drawn up in the English
language only.

PRIVACY NOTICE

The Subscriber acknowledges that this Subscription Agreement and the Exhibits hereto require the Subscriber to
provide certain personal information to the Corporation. Such information is being collected by the Corporation for
the purposes of completing the Offering, which includes, without limitation, determining the Subscriber's eligibility
(or that of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) to purchase the Common Shares under applicable securities laws,
preparing and registering certificates representing the Common Shares to be issued to the Subscriber and completing
filings required by any stock exchange or securities regulatory authority. The Subscriber's personal information
(and that of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) may also be disclosed by the Corporation to (a) stock exchanges or
securities regulatory authorities (including the Ontario Securities Commission (the "OSC") and the British
Columbia Securities Commission (the "BCSC")), (b) the Corporation's registrar and transfer agent, (c) Canadian tax
authorities, and (d) any of the other parties involved in the Offering, including legal counsel, and may be included in
closing books in connection with the Offering.

By executing this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and on behalf of any Disclosed
Beneficial Purchaser for whom it is contracting hereunder) consents to the foregoing collection, use and disclosure
of the Subscriber's {and any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser's) personal information. The Subscriber (on its own
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behalf and on behalf of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser for whom it is contracting hereunder) also consents to
the filing of copies or originals of any of the Subscriber's documents delivered in connection with this Subscription
Agreement as may be required to be filed with any stock exchange or securities regulatory authority in connection
with the transactions contemplated hereby and expressly consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the
Subscriber's (and any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser's) personal information by the TSX Venture Exchange or the
Toronto Stock Exchange for the purposes identified by such exchange, from time to time. The Subscriber (on its
own behalf and on behalf of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser for whom it is contracting hereunder) further
acknowledges that it has been notified by the Corporation (a) of the requirement to deliver to the OSC and the
BCSC the full name, residential address and telephone number of the purchaser of the securities, the number and
type of securities purchased, the total purchase price, the exemption relied upon and the date of distribution; (b) that
this information is being collected indirectly by the OSC and BCSC under the authority granted to it in securities
legislation; (c) that this information is being collected for the purposes of the administration and enforcement of the
securities legislation of Ontario and British Columbia; (d) that the Administrative Support Clerk can be contacted at
Ontario Securities Commission, Suite 1903, Box 55, 20 Queen Street West, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 388, or at (416)
593-3684, and can answer any questions about the OSC's indirect collection of this information; and (e) that the
BCSC can be contacted at British Columbia Securities Commission, P.O. Box 10142, Pacific Centre, 701 West
Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V7Y 1L2, Telephone: (604) 899-6500, Toll free across Canada: 1-
800-373-6393, Facsimile: (604) 899-658, and can answer any questions about the BCSC's indirect collection of this
information.
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SCHEDULE "A™

TO:

REPRESENTATION LETTER
TO BE COMPLETED BY ACCREDITED INVESTORS
2052227 ALBERTA LTD. (the "Corporation™)

(Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Schedule have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription
Agreement 1o which this Schedule is attached)

In connection with the execution by the undersigned Subscriber of the Subscription Agreement which this
Representation Letter forms a part of, the undersigned Subscriber hereby represents, warrants, covenants and
certifies to the Corporation and its counsel that:

1.

the undersigned Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber's Residential Address" on
the face page of the Subscription Agreement and, if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a
disclosed beneficial purchaser, the disclosed beneficial purchaser is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the
"Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information" on the face page of the Subscription Agreement;

the undersigned Subscriber is either (a) purchasing the Common Shares as principal for its own account, (b)
deemed to be purchasing the Common Shares as principal in accordance with section 2.3(2) or (4) of NI 45-
106, or (c) acting as agent for a disclosed beneficial purchaser who is purchasing the Common Shares as
principal for its own account;

the undersigned Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial
purchaser, the disclosed beneficial purchaser) is an "accredited investor" within the meaning of NI 45-106 and
Section 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), as applicable, by virtue of satisfying the indicated criterion as
set out in Exhibit A to this Representation Letter;

the Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial purchaser, the
disclosed beneficial purchaser) fully understands the meaning of the terms and conditions of the category of
"accredited investor" applicable to it and confirms that it has reviewed and understands the definitions in
Exhibit A to this Representation Letter in respect of the category of "accredited investor” applicable to it and,
in particular, if the Subscriber is an "accredited investor” by virtue of satisfying paragraph (j), (j.1), (k) or () of
Exhibit A to this Representation Letter, it has reviewed and understands the definitions of "related liabilities”
and "financial assets", as applicable, contained in Exhibit A hereto;

the undersigned Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial
purchaser, the disclosed beneficial purchaser) was not created, and is not used, solely to purchase or hold
securities as an accredited investor as described in paragraph (m) of the definition of "accredited investor" in
NI 45-106;

if the Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial purchaser,
the disclosed beneficial purchaser) is an "accredited investor” by virtue of satisfying paragraph (j), (k) or (I) on
Exhibit A to this Representation Letter, it acknowledges that it needs to complete Exhibit B to this
Representation Letter and upon execution of Exhibit B by the Subscriber, Exhibit B shall be incorporated into
and form a part of this Representation Letter and the Corporation and its counsel shall be entitled to rely
thereon; and
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7. upon execution of this Representation Letter by the undersigned Subscriber, this Representation Letter,
including the Exhibits hereto, shall be incorporated into and form a part of the Subscription Agreement.

Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Authorized Signature

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above if different than name of
Subscriber)

DATED at this day of ,2017.

IMPORTANT
PLEASE COMPLETE THE EXHIBITS TO THIS REPRESENTATION LETTER
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EXHIBIT A TO SCHEDULE "A"
TO BE COMPLETED BY ACCREDITED INVESTORS

PLEASE MARK YOUR INITIALS BESIDE THE CATEGORY BELOW TO WHICH YOU BELONG

|

. Please complete the Representation Letter to the Corporation by marking your initials beside the category of
"accredited investor" to which you belong within the meaning of Section 1.1 of NI 45-106 and Section 73.3(1) of the

Securities Act (Ontario), as applicable:

Meaning of ""Accredited Investor'

"Accredited investor" is defined in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106 to mean any person who fits within any of the
following categories at the time of the sale of securities to that person:

@ O
(i)
— (b @
(i)
@@ ®
(i)
_— @ O
(i)

except in Ontario, a Canadian financial institution, or a bank listed in Schedule III of the
Bank Act (Canada),

in Ontario, (A) a bank listed in Schedule I, Il or III to the Bank Act (Canada), (B) an
association to which the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) applies or a
central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under subsection 473
(1) of that Act; or (C) a loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance
company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services cooperative or
credit union league or federation that is authorized by a statute of Canada or Ontario to
carry on business in Canada or Ontario, as the case may be,

except in Ontario, the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the -

Business Development Bank of Canada Act (Canada),

in Ontario, the Business Development Bank of Canada,

except in Ontario, a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b), if the
person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities
required by law to be owned by directors of that subsidiary,

in Ontario, a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) through (e) above, if
the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities
required by law to be owned by directors of that subsidiary,

except in Ontario, a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of
Canada as an adviser or dealer,

in Ontario, a person or company registered under the securities legislation of a province
or territory of Canada as an adviser or dealer, except as otherwise prescribed by the
regulations under the Securities Act (Ontario),

(e) an individual registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a

representative of a person referred to in paragraph (d),

(e.1) an individual formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada, other

than an individual formerly registered solely as a representative of a limited market dealer under
one or both of the Securities Act (Ontario) or the Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador),

- ® O
(i)
_— @ O

except in Ontario, the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown
corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the government of Canada or a Jjurisdiction
of Canada,

in Ontario, the Government of Canada, the government of a province or territory of
Canada, or any Crown corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the Government of
Canada or the government of a province or territory of Canada,

except in Ontario, a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a
metropolitan community, school board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de I'ile
de Montréal or an intermunicipal management board in Québec,
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(i) in Ontario, a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan
community, school board, the Comité de gestion de ia taxe scolaire de I’ile de Montréal or
an intermunicipal management board in Québec,

h)y @) except in Ontario, any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal
government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government,

(ii) in Ontario, any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of
or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government,

O] except in Ontario, a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a pension commission or similar
regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada,

(ii) in Ontario, a pension fund that is regulated by the Office of the Superintendent of
Financial Institutions (Canada) or a pension commission or similar regulatory authority of
a province or territory of Canada,

(3)  anindividual who, either alone or with a spouse, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, financial
assets having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes, but net of any related liabilities,
exceeds $1,000,000,

[Note: Financial assets include cash and securities, but do not include a personal residence — see the definition of
"financial assets" later in this certificate. Financial assets are generally liquid or relatively easy to liquidate. You
must subtract any liabilities related to your financial assets to calculate your net financial assets—see the
definition of "related liabilities". Financial assets held in a group RRSP under which you do not have the ability
to acquire the financial assets and deal with them directly are not considered to be beneficially owned by you. If
you meet the higher financial asset threshold set out in paragraph (j. 1), then initial paragraph (j.1) instead of this
paragraph (j).]

[Note: If you are an accredited investor described in this paragraph (j), and do not meet the higher financial asset
threshold set out in paragraph (j.1), you must deliver a completed Form 45-106F9 — Form for Individual
Accredited Investors (See Exhibit B hereto).]

(i-1) an individual who beneficially owns financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that,
before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds $5,000,000,

[Note: The financial assets of your spouse (including financial assets in a spousal RRSP) cannot be included in
the calculation of net financial assets under this paragraph (j.1). See definition of "financial assets” below. If
you meet the financial asset threshold set out in this paragraph (j.1), you are not required to complete Exhibit B.]

(k)  an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded $200,000 in each of the two most recent
calendar years or whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse exceeded
$300,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who, in either case, reasonably expects
to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year,

[Note: If individual accredited investors wish to purchase through wholly-owned holding companies or similar
entities, such purchasing entities must qualify under section (1) below, which must be initialed and completed.

[Note: If you are an accredited investor described in this paragraph (k), you must deliver a completed Form 45-
106F9 — Form for Individual Accredited Investors (See Exhibit B hereto).]

() an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, has net assets of at least $5,000,000,

[Note: To calculate net assets, take the value of your total assets (which may include a personal residence) and

. Subtract your total liabilities (which may include a morigage). The value attributed to assets should reasonably
reflect their estimated fair value. Income tax should be considered a liability if the obligation to pay it is
outstanding at the time of the subscription. ]

[Note: If you are an accredited investor described in this paragraph (1), you must deliver a completed Form 45-
106F9 — Form for Individual Accredited Investors (See Exhibit B hereto).]
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a person, other than an individual or an investment fund, that has net assets of at least $5,000,000,
as shown on its most recently prepared financial statements,

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to;

(i) a person that is or was an accredited investor at the time of the distribution,

(i) a person that acquires or acquired securities in the circumstances referred to in
section 2.10 of National Instrument 45-106 (where the person subscribes for a minimum
amount investment) and Section 2.19 of National Instrument 45-106 (where the person
makes an additional investment in investment funds), or

(ii1) a person described in paragraph (i) or (ii) that acquires or acquired securities under
section 2.18 of National Instrument 45-106 (investment fund reinvestment),

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a jurisdiction
of Canada for which the regulator or, in Quebec, the securities regulatory authority, has issued a
receipt,

a trust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the Trus¢
and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or
a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by the trust company
or trust corporation, as the case may be,

a person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that person, if that person is
registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the securities
legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction,

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that, in regard to the trade, has obtained
advice from an eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation of the
jurisdiction of the registered charity to give advice on the securities being traded,

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (d) or paragraph (i) in form and function,

a person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the
voting securities required by law to be owned by directors, are persons that are accredited
investors,

Note: If you initialled (1), then indicate the name and category of accredited investor (by reference to the
applicable letter of this Exhibit A) of each of the owners of interests (attach additional pages if more than three):

(W)

Name Category of Accredited Investor

an investment fund that is advised by a person registered as an adviser or a person that is exempt
from registration as an adviser,

a person that is recognized or designated by the securities regulatory authority or, except in
Ontario and Québec, the regulator as an accredited investor, or

a trust established by an accredited investor for the benefit of the accredited investor’s family
members of which a majority of the trustees are accredited investors and all of the beneficiaries
are the accredited investor’s spouse, a former spouse of the accredited investor or a parent,
grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of that accredited investor, of that accredited
investor’s spouse or of that accredited investor’s former spouse.

Note: If you initialed (w), then indicate the name and category of accredited investor (by reference to the
applicable letter of this Exhibit A) of each of the following (attach additional pages if more than three trustees):
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Name Category of Accredited
Investor

Individual who
established trust:

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

l

PLEASE MARK YOUR INITIALS BESIDE THE CATEGORY ABOVE TO WHICH YOU BELONG

]

Interpretative Aids

The following definitions relate to certain of the categories set forth above:

(a)

(®)

(¢)

(d)

(&)

®
(e

"Canadian financial institution” means;

(i) an association governed by the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) or a central cooperative credit
society for which an order has been made under section 473(1) of that Act, or

(ii) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union,
caisse populaire, financial services cooperative, or league that, in each case, is authorized by an enactment of
Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada

“"Canadian securities regulatory authorities” means the securities commissions and similar regulatory authorities of each
g Y
of the provinces or territories of Canada;

"eligibility adviser" means:

(i) a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an equivalent category of registration under the
securities legislation of the jurisdiction of a purchaser and authorized to give advice with respect to the type
of security being distributed; and

(i) in Saskatchewan or Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law
society of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an institute or
association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a
Jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant must not;

(A) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors,
executive officers, founders, or control persons; and

(B) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director,
associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer or any of its
directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months;

"EVCC" means an employee venture capital corporation that does not have a restricted constitution, and is registered
under Part 2 of the Employee Investment Act (British Columbia), R.8.B.C. 1996 ¢. 112, and whose business objective is
making muitiple investments;

"financial assets" means:

(i) cash;
(i) securities; or
(iii) a contract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is not a security for the purposes of

securities legislation;
"foreign jurisdiction" means a country other than Canada or a political subdivision of a country other than Canada;

“fully managed account” means an account for which a person or company makes the investment decisions if that
person or company has full discretion to trade in securities for the account without requiring the client's express consent
to a transaction;
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®
®

(k)

®

(m)

(m)

(o)

"investment fund" means a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, and, for greater certainty in British
Columbia, includes an EVCC and a VCC;

"jurisdiction” means a province or territory of Canada;

"non-redeemable investment fund” means an issuer, (i) whose primary purpose is to invest money provided by its
securityholders; (ii) that does not invest (A) for the purpose of exercising or seeking to exercise control of an issuer,
other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, or (B) for the purpose of being actively
involved in the management of any issuer in which it invests, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-
redeemable investment fund; and (iii) that is not 2 mutual fund;

"person” includes:

(i) an individual,
(i) a corporation,
(iit) a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons,

whether incorporated or not, and

@iv) an individual or other person in that person's capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other
legal representative;

"related liabilities” means:

(i) liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of financial assets, or
(i) liabilities that are secured by financial assets;

"securities legislation” means, for the local jurisdiction, the statute and other instruments issued by the securities
regulator authority of the local jurisdiction;

“subsidiary" means an issuer that is controlled directly or indirectly by another issuer and includes a subsidiary of that
subsidiary; and

"VCC" means a venture capital corporation registered under Part | of the Small Business Venture Capital Act (British
Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c."429 whose business objective is making multiple investments.

All monetary references are in Canadian dollars.

{W:/DOCS/2651.001/09/00479176.DOCX / 3} A-7



EXHIBIT B TO SCHEDULE "A"
FORM 45-106F9
FORM FOR INDIVIDUAL ACCREDITED INVESTORS

WARNING!

This investment is risky. Don’t invest unless you can afford to lose all the money
you pay for this investment.

SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITYHOLDER:

L About your mvestment

Type of securities: Class A Common Shares Issuer: 2052227 ALBERTA LTD,

Purchased from: 2052227 Alberta Ltd. (the Issuer of the Common Shares)

SECTIONS 2 TO 4 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PURCHASER

2. Risk acknowledgement

Your
This investment is risky. Initial that you understand that: initials

Risk of loss — You could lose your entire investment of § . [Instruction: Insert the total
dollar amount of the investment.]

Liquidity risk — You may not be able to sell your investment quickly — or at all.

Lack of information — You may receive little or no information about your investment.

Lack of advice ~ You will not receive advice from the salesperson about whether this investment is suitable for you
unless the salesperson is registered. The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information to, you
about making this investment. To check whether the salesperson is regxstered go to www.aretheyregistered.ca.

3. Accredlted mvestor status

You must meet at least one of the following criteria to be able to make this investment. Initial the statement that Your
applies to you. (You may initial more than one statement.) The person identified in section 6 is responsible for initials
ensuring that you meet the definition of accredited investor. That person, or the salesperson ldentlf ed in section 5,
can help you if you have questions about whether you meet these criteria.

*  Your net income before taxes was more than $200,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you
expect it to be more than $200,000 in the current calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on
your personal income tax return.)

*  Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse’s was more than $300,000 in each of the 2 most
_recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income before taxes to be more than $300,000 in the
current calendar year,

»  Either alone or with your spouse, you own more than $1 million in cash and securities, after subtracting any
debt related to the cash and securities.

e Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than $5 million. (Your net assets are your
total assets (including real estate) minus your total debt.)

4, Your name and signature

By signing this form, you confirm that you have read this form and you understand the risks of making this investment as
identified in this form.

First and last name (please print):

Signature: TDate:
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SECTION 5 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SALESPERSON

5. Salesperson info'rmaiion_

[Instruction: The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information to, the purchaser with respect to making this
investment. That could include a representative of the issuer or selling security holder, a registrant or a person who is exempt
JSrom the registration requirement. ]

First and last name of salesperson (please print):

Telephone: Email;

Name of firm (if registered):

SECTION 6 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITY HOLDER

6. Forkjniore _informdﬁdn about this investment

For investment in a non-investment fund

2052227 Alberta Ltd.

Suite 1250, 639 — 5 Ave Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 0M9
Alan (1lan) Handelsman, President

403-668-1672

ilan.fundco@ecriteriumgroup.com

For investment in an investment fund

[Insert name of investment fund]

[Insert name of investment fund manager]

[Insert address of investment fund manager]

[Insert telephone number of investment fund manager]

[Insert email address of investment fund manager]

[If investment is purchased from a selling security holder, also

insert name, address, telephone number and email address of selling security holder here]

For more information about prospectus exemptions, contact your local securities regulator, You can find contact information at
www.securities-administrators.ca.

Form instructions:

1. This form does not mandate the use of a specific font size or style but the font must be legible.

2. The information in sections |, 5 and 6 must be completed before the purchaser completes and signs the form.

3. The purchaser must sign this form. Each of the purchaser and the issuer or selling security holder must receive a copy of

this form signed by the purchaser. The issuer or selling security holder is required to keep a copy of this form for 8 years
after the distribution.
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SCHEDULE "B"

SUPPORT LETTER

The undersigned, being an investor in at least one of Prism Horizon, Prism Heritage, Prism Broadmoor, Prism
Summerside or Prism Place (collectively "Prism Group"), acknowledges and confirms as follows:

1.

The undersigned supports the engagement of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP ("BLG") as counsel to
represent 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. ("205") and its investors, together with such other investors in Prism
Group as may wish to retain BLG, in relation to the investor claims against Prism Group (the
"Claims");

The undersigned supports the engagement of TingleMerrett LLP ("TM") as counsel to represent 205 and
its investors in relation to 205°s corporate matters;

The undersigned supports the engagement of Criterium Group (or its affiliates) (collectively, "CG") as
consultants to 205 and its investors, wherein CG will assist 205, BLG, TM and investors in Prism Group
with respect to the Claims, corporate matters, financial review, investor relations, communications and
other related matters;

The undersigned supports the payment of all reasonable fees and expenses of BLG, TM and CG;

The undersigned supports the recovery of all reasonable costs and expenses of 205 (along with an added
interest expense of up to 10%) from any realizations recovered on the Claims or from Prism Group or
Prism Group’s assets;

The undersigned has subscribed for Class "A" common shares in 205 and supports the current directors
and management team of 205 as it is presently constituted and further supports the directors and
management of 205 in providing funding, guidance and direction to BLG, TM and CG in relation to the
Claims, the settlement of Claims and corporate matters;

The undersigned supports the creation of a governance charter substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A to Schedule "B" within 205 that will dictate how 205 will: (i) fund, guide and direct BLG, TM,
CG and any other advisors; (ii) pursue and settle any Claims; and (ii) pursue any other related corporate
matters and further funding of 205;

The undersigned supports and grants management of 205 the right and ability to pursue and settle all
Claims on behalf of the undersigned;

The undersigned consents to the dissemination of information updates to the undersigned from CG,
BLG or TM and agrees to be subject to appropriate agreements to ensure that confidentiality is maintained
and legal privilege is protected in respect of information provided in that regard.

The undersigned confirms that by signing this support letter it is not retaining BLG or TM, and that any such
retainer will be subject to a formal retainer agreement.

Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Authorized Signature

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above different than name of Subscriber)

DATED at this day of , 2017,
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This is EXHIBIT “C” referred to
in the Affidavit of Ilan Handelsman

Sworn before me this 27th day of February 2020

«

OuorialNie

Notary Public in and for British Columbia

A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR
THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
PERMANENT COMMISSION

VIENNA KAPPELL
NOTARY PUBLIC
201-2610 DOUGLAS STREET
VICTORIA BC VBT 4M1
TEL 250-382-8880



Form 45-106F2

CONFIDENTIAL OFFERING MEMORANDUM

DATE:
THE ISSUER:
Head Office Address:

Telephone:
Email address:
Facsimile:

Currently Listed or Quoted:

THE OFFERING:

Securities Offered:

Price per Security:

Minimum/Maximum Offering:

Minimum Subscription Amount:

RRSP Eligibility:

Payment Terms:

Proposed Closing Date(s):

Selling Agents:

RESALE RESTRICTIONS:
PURCHASER'S RIGHTS:

May 3, 2019

2052227 Alberta Ltd. (the "Issuer" or the "Corporation")
Suite 1120, 202 ~ 6™ Avenue SW

Calgary, AB T2P 2R9

403-668-1672

ilan. fundco@criteriumgroup.com

403-571-8008

These securities do not trade on any exchange or market. The Issuer is not currently listed or
quoted on any stock exchange. The Issuer is not a reporting issuer in any jurisdiction and is not a
SEDAR filer.

Class A Common Shares (the "Common Shares") of the Issuer. The Common Shares shail have the
attributes and characteristics as set out in ITEM 5.

The subscription price is $1.00 per Common Share for the initial Closing.

There is no minimum. You may be the only purchaser. The maximum Offering is $1,000,000 in
aggregate. The Issuer has raised approximately $1,055,894 under previous offerings. Funds
available under the Offering may not be sufficient to accomplish the Issuer's proposed
objectives.

Minimum purchase per subscriber of $1,000 (1,000 Common Shares) provided, however, the Issuer
shall have the discretion to accept subscriptions in lower amounts if the Issuer deems it necessary or
reasonable in the circumstances.

The Common Shares are not eligible investments for Exempt Plans (as hereinafter defined).

Certified cheque or bank draft payable to "TingleMerrett LLP, in trust" (legal counsel for the Issuer)
in full payment of the subscription price per Common Share subscribed for is due upon execution
and delivery of the Subscription Agreement. See Schedule "A". AH dollar amounts in this
Offering Memorandum are in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

The initial Closing is scheduled for on or about March 31, 2018 or such later or earlier date as may
be determined by the Issuer. Subsequent Closings may take place at later dates as may be
determined by the Issuer. See ITEM 1.

None. No Person has or will receive any compensation, commission or fee in connection with the
Offering.

You will be restricted from selling your securities for an indefinite period. See ITEM 9.

You have two business days to cancel your agreement to purchase these securities. If there is a

misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, you have the right to sue either for damages or to
cancel the agreement. See ITEM 10.

No securities regulatory authority or regulator has assessed the merits of these securities or reviewed this Offering Memorandum. Any
representation to the contrary is an offence. This is a risky investment. See ITEM 7.

There is not or may not be a market for you to sell your investment and there is no assurance that you will be able to find a buyer for this

investment at a later date. See ITEM 9.
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SCHEDULES

The following Schedules are attached to and form a part of this Offering Memorandum:

Schedule "A" - Subscription Agreement
Schedule "B" Financial Statements of the Issuer
GENERAL

This Offering Memorandum constitutes an offering of the Common Shares only in those jurisdictions where they may be
lawfully offered for sale and may be sold only by persons permitted to sell the Common Shares and only to those persons to
whom they may be lawfully offered for sale. No securities commission or similar regulatory authority has passed on the merits
of the Common Shares nor has it reviewed this Offering Memorandum and any representation to the contrary is an offence. No
prospectus has been filed with any such authority in connection with the Common Shares.

This Offering Memorandum is confidential. The information contained in this Offering Memorandum is intended only for the
persons to whom it is transmitted for the purposes of evaluating the securities offered hereby. By accepting a copy of this
Offering Memorandum, the recipient agrees that neither it, nor any of its representatives or agents, shall use the Offering
Memorandum or the information contained herein for any other purpose, or divulge it to any other party and shall return all
copies of the Offering Memorandum to the Issuer promptly upon request.

The information contained in this Offering Memorandum is intended only for the persons to whom it is transmitted for the
purposes of evaluating the securities offered hereby. Prospective investors should rely only on the information in this Offering
Memorandum, including the information incorporated herein by reference, if any. No persons are authorized to give any
information or make any representation in respect of the Issuer or the securities offered herein and any such information or
representation must not be relied upon. Any marketing materials related to a distribution under this Offering Memorandum and
delivered or made reasonably available to a prospective subscriber before the termination of the distribution (collectively, the
"OM Marketing Materials"), are hereby specifically incorporated by reference in this Offering Memorandum, and further any
OM Marketing Materials shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Offering Memorandun.

This Offering is a private placement and is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, a public offering of the
securities described herein. The securities are being offered in reliance upon exemptions from the registration and prospectus
requirements set forth in Applicable Securities Laws.

The Common Shares offered hereunder will be subject to a number of resale restrictions, including a restriction on trading. Until
the restriction on trading expires, if ever, a Shareholder will not be able to trade the Common Shares unless it complies with very
limited exemptions from the prospectus and registration requirements under Applicable Securities Laws. As the Issuer has no
intention of becoming a reporting issuer in any jurisdiction in Canada, these trading restrictions will not expire. Consequently,
Shareholders may not be able to liquidate their Common Shares in a timely manner, if at all, or pledge their Common Shares as
collateral for loans. See "ITEM 9 — Resale Restrictions".

The Common Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“U.S. Securities Act"), or any applicable state securities laws. Accordingly, except pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and state securities laws, the Common Shares may not be offered or sold
within the U.S. or to, or for the account or benefit of, "U.S. persons” (as such term is defined in Regulation S under the U.S.
Securities Act) unless registered under the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state securities laws or an exemption from such
registration is available.

INTERPRETATION
Words importing the singular number only include the plural and vice versa, and words importing the masculine, feminine or
neuter gender include the other genders.
RISK FACTORS
There are also numerous risks involved in the investment in the Common Shares. Potential investors should review these
risks before investing in the Common Shares. See "ITEM 7 — Risk Factors".
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Offering Memorandum as they relate to the Issuer and its respective views or predictions
about possible future events or conditions and their business operations and strategy constitute "forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of that phrase under Applicable Securities Laws. All statements other than statements of historical fact are
forward-looking statements. The use of any of the words "anticipate”, "does not anticipate”, "continue", "estimate”, "expect”, "is
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not expected”. "may", "could”, "might", "will", "project”, "should", "believe", "does not believe”, "budget”, "plan", "forecast",
“potential”, “intend" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements in this
Offering Memorandum include, among others, statements regarding the intended use of proceeds of the Offering and the
anticipated activities of the Issuer; the business, operation and other costs to be incurred in the operation and management of the
business and the material agreements to be entered into and their terms. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-
looking statements. Various assumptions or factors are typically applied in drawing conclusions or making the forecasts or
projections set out in forward-looking information, if any. Those assumptions and factors are based on information currently
available to the Issuer including information obtained from third party sources. Although the Issuer believes that the expectations
reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable and represent the Issuer's expectations and belief at this time, such
statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties which may cause the Issuer's actual performance and results in
future periods to differ materially from any estimates or projections of future performance or results expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations include,
among other things, general economic and market factors, ability to raise financing and fund capital expenditures and changes in
government regulations, in addition to those factors specifically discussed or referenced in "/TEM 7 - Risk Factors". These
factors should not be considered exhaustive. Many of these risk factors are beyond the Issuer's control and each contributes to the
possibility that the forward-looking statements will not occur, or that actual results, performance or achievements may differ
materially from those expressed or implied by such statements. The impact of any one risk, uncertainty or factor on a particular
forward-looking statement is not determinable with certainty as these risks, uncertainties and factors are interdependent and
management's future course of action depends upon the Issuer's assessment of all information available at that time.

The forward-looking statements made herein relate only to events or information as of the date of this Offering
Memorandum and are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement. Except as required by law, the Issuer undertakes
no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, after the date on which the statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS:

The following terms used in this Offering Memorandum have the respective meanings ascribed to them below. Unless the
context otherwise requires, any reference in this Offering Memorandum to any agreement, instrument, indenture or other
document shall mean such, as amended, supplemented and restated at any time and from time to time prior to the date
hereof or in the future:

"Applicable Securities Laws" means, collectively, all applicable securities laws of the Selling Jurisdictions and the
respective regulations, rules, policies and orders thereunder together with all applicable published orders and rulings of the
Securities Regulatory Authorities in such jurisdictions;

"Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which the principal chartered banks located at
Calgary, Alberta are not open for business;

"Class A Common Shares" or " Common Shares" means the Class A Common Shares of the Issuer. For further details
on the rights, restrictions and terms of the Class A Common Shares see "ITEM 5 - Securities Offered - Terms of
Securities";

"Closing" means the first closing of the Common Shares offered hereby, which is anticipated to occur on or about May 31,
2019, or such later or earlier date as may be determined by the Issuer. Subsequent closings will take place at later dates as
may be determined by the Issuer;

"Court" means the Alberta Court of Queen’s Bench;

"Exempt Plan" means a trust governed by a registered retirement savings plan ("RRSP"), registered retirement income
fund ("RRIF"), deferred profit sharing plan, registered education savings plan, registered disability savings plan or tax-
free savings account ("TFSA") (all within the meaning of the Tax Act), collectively referred to herein as "Exempt Plans";

"IFRS" means the International Financial Reporting Standards applicable to the business of the Issuer, as such principles
are established and revised by the International Accounting Standards Board (or any successor organization) from time to
time, applied on a consistent basis;

"Issuer"” or "Corporation" means 2052227 Alberta Ltd,;
"Offering" means the offering of Common Shares by way of private placement as described herein;
"Offering Memorandum" means this confidential offering memorandum, including any amendments;

"Person" means any individual, partnership, limited partnership, joint venture, syndicate, sole proprietorship, company or
corporation with or without share capital, unincorporated association, trust, trustee, executor, administrator or other legal
personal representative, regulatory body or agency, government or governmental agency, authority or entity however
designated or constituted,

"Prism Group" means collectively the developments commonly known as Prism Place, Prism Heritage, Prism
Broadmoor, Prism Horizon and Prism Summerside;

"Securities Regulatory Authorities" means, collectively, the securities commissions or similar securities regulatory
authorities in the Selling Jurisdictions;

"Selling Jurisdictions" means the Provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and Ontario, and such
other jurisdictions as the Issuer may determine;

"Shareholder" means a holder of Common Shares, and "Shareholders” means all holders of Common Shares, each as
may be applicable in the context;

"Subscriber" means a Person acquiring Common Shares pursuant to the Offering described herein;

"Subscription Agreement" means the subscription agreement to be completed by Subscribers, attached as Schedule "A"
hereto;

"Subscription Price” means $1.00 per Common Share;

"Subscription Proceeds" means the gross monies received by the Issuer in consideration for the issuance of Common
Shares under the Offering;

"Tax Act" means the Income Tax Act (Canada), as amended from time to time; and
"U.S." means the United States of America.

In this Offering Memorandum, references to "we", "us", "our", "the Issuer" and other similar terms refer to 2052227
Alberta Ltd. and not to any other entity.

All references to currency herein are references to lawful money of Canada unless specifically stated otherwise.
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CONFIDENTIAL OFFERING MEMORANDUM

2052227 ALBERTA LTD.
(the "Issuer" or the "Corporation")

There are numerous risks involved in the investment in the Common Shares. Potential Subscribers should

review these risks before investing in the Common Shares. See "ITEM 7 - Risk Factors"'.

ITEM 1 - USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS

1.1 Funds
The following table discloses the net proceeds of the Offering after deduction of the costs associated with the
Offering:
Assuming Minimum Assuming Maximum
Offering (1) Offering
Amount to be raised by this Offering 50 $1,000,000
Selling commission and fees N/A N/A
Estimated Offering costs (e.g. legal, accounting, audit and $50,000 $50,000
marketing)
D | Available funds: D = A - (B+C) $0 $950,000
E | Additional Sources of funding required Nil Nil
F Working Capital Deficiency Nil Nil
G | Total: G=(D+E)~F ($50,000) $950,000
Notes:
()] The Issuer has raised approximately $1,055,894 under previous offerings as of the date hereof.
1.2 Use of Available Funds

The following table provides a detailed breakdown of how the Issuer will use the available funds:

Description of intended use of available funds listed in Assuming Minimom Assuming Maximum
order of priority Offering (1) Offering

Litigation/investigative funding (legal fees/costs, legal $0 $870,000
applications and related disbursements)

Criterium fees (for the next 12 months of fees) $0 $50,000
Working capital $o $30,000
Total: $0 $950,000

Notes:

(1) The Issuer has raised approximately $1,055,894 under previous offerings as of the date hereof.

1.3 Reallocation

The Issuer intends to spend the net proceeds as stated. The Issuer will reallocate funds only for sound business

reasons. See "ITEM 2- Business of the Issuer".
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ITEM 2- BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER
2.1 Structure
The Issuer

The Issuer was incorporated in June 2017 for the sole purpose of pursuing investigative measures and possible
litigation matters in relation to the prior investments made by certain Prism Group investors in the Prism Group
entities.

In April 2017, certain Prism Group investors and an exempt market dealer originally involved in the distribution of
Prism Group securities began to pursue and investigate matters related to investor reporting shortcomings and
related negative allegations involving the Prism Group. In order to best pursue ongoing investigative measures and
possible litigation matters on behalf of those affected, the Corporation was formed to help organize and group
together those Prism Group investors wishing to pursue further action in respect of their original investments in the
Prism Group entities.

This is not a typical investment. The circumstances surrounding the funding/capitalization of the Corporation are
unique. You may not receive back all the funds you contribute in relation to your subscription for Common Shares
in the Corporation. In fact, you may end up not receiving any of the funds you have contributed and the Common
Shares you own may end up being of little or no value. The primary/sole purpose of the Corporation is to fund
the investigative measures and pursue litigation matters on behalf of Prism Group investors (the Corporation
acts as a funding agent for such Prism Group investors). The Corporation is a funding vehicle that helps
group together Prism Group investors. The Corporation’s reasonable costs and expenses plus 10% thereon has
been recognized by the Court as a preferential payment obligation due firstly from the proceeds payable to the Prism
Group investors as a result of any successful litigation action against the Prism Group which was funded by the
Corporation (the "Preferential Payments"). It is unknown whether the Corporation will be successful on any Prism
Group matter it investigates and pursues and therefore it is unknown whether the Corporation will receive a return
on any of costs and expenses. The only sources of capital for the Corporation are the funds from investors in the
Corporation (through the sale of Common Shares) and any Preferential Payments it receives as a result of any
successful litigation actions it funds. There are no other business opportunities in the Corporation. See "ITEM 2.3
— Development of the Business".

Note — only those persons who are an investor in one or more Prism Group entities will be offered securities in
the Corporation. No other outside investment in the Corporation is permitted at this time.

2.2 Our Business

In order to efficiently pursue ongoing investigative measures and possible litigation matters against the Prism Group,
the Corporation was formed to group and organize such actions. The Issuer has raised approximately $1,055,894 to
date and is continuing to raise additional funds to further pursue continued investigative measures and possible
litigation matters on behalf of those Prism Group investors who own Common Shares, with the hopes of achieving
some liquidity and a return of at least some of the original investment amounts invested in the Prism Group.

In connection with the investigative measures and litigation matters, the Corporation has engaged the following to
assist:

*  Criterium Merchant Capital ("Criterium”) - to provide management, administrative, investigative and
consulting services;

¢ Borden Ladner Gervais LLP ("BLG") - to provide litigation, investigative and court related advice and
services; and

* TingleMerrett LLP - to provide corporate legal advice and services.

The availability of recourse for the Prism Group investors in each of the five Prism Group properties differs, as
each of the five properties is or was at a different stage of distress. Nevertheless, a common approach was deemed
appropriate by the Issuer’s advisors in seeking recourse, as litigation against the Prism Group for dissipation of
Prism Group investor funds was similar throughout all Prism Group properties.

Below is a summary of the current status of the Prism Group entities (as provided by Criterium to the Corporation
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and based on the information obtained by Criterium through public sources or documents obtained through the
Court process to date) and legal actions recently taken by the Corporation on behalf of Prism Group investors (as
conducted by BLG).

Prism Broadmoor

Summary: The original Prism Broadmoor project involved the development of lands located in Strathcona County
(Sherwood Park, Alberta). Over the course of the development, the lands involved in this project have been
encumbered by three (3) separate mortgages totaling approximately $22.75 million. In 2017, the mortgagee
pursued foreclosure proceedings, the Corporation understands that as of June, 2018 the property was sold for less
than the debt owing. Consequently, the Prism Broadmoor investors received no recoveries from the sale.

Prior to the sale, on October 2, 2017, counsel for Ali Ghani and Abdul Ghani (founders/managers of the Prism
Group) (the "Ghani Group") agreed to an order that Prism Broadmoor must provide all of its financial statements
(including any backup documents like bank statements) to counsel for the Corporation..

The Court also authorized an investigation into Prism Broadmoor’s business, and authorized the appointment of
Hardie & Kelly ("H&K") as the inspector of Prism Broadmoor. H&K’s appointment as inspector will take effect at
the discretion of the Corporation only if counsel for the Corporation files a letter with the Court confirming that
H&K has been retained. For that reason, the board of the Corporation will decide whether to engage H&K and
proceed with the investigation (the costs of which will be paid by the Corporation), on the advice of its legal
counsel.

A potential oppression claim may also exist for the Prism Broadmoor investors, based on management’s failure to
provide financial statements and failure to redeem their shares as required. Some of these claims are now being
pursued in the Class Action, as described below.

Prism Horizon

Summary: The original Prism Horizon project involved the development of lands located in Edmonton, Alberta.
Over the course of the development, it is believed by management of the Corporation that the lands involved in this
project have been encumbered by three (3) separate mortgages totaling approximately $26.5 million. In addition to
the mortgages, it is further believed by the Corporation that the Prism Horizon lands are further encumbered by
approximately $3 million in associated builders’ liens.

Prism Horizon was placed into receivership by an order of the Court on August 23, 2016, and lands owned by Prism
Horizon were sold to a third party in July 2017. The offer price was not sufficient to satisfy the Prism Horizon
mortgages and accordingly, there does not appear to be any additional funds available to satisfy the builders’ liens or
any of the unsecured claims on the Prism Horizon lands. By order of the Court granted September 21, 2017, the
receiver was discharged.

In addition, the receiver further advised the Corporation that there has been a parallel bankruptcy proceeding arising
out of the treatment of certain tenant deposits on the Prism Horizon lands, which were to have been held in trust by
management of Prism Horizon. The parallel bankruptcy proceeding will allow the trustee in bankruptcy to
investigate these issues and pursue any claims against management (which could possibly include fraud claims) and
seek the return of such deposits.

Because Prism Horizon was subject to receivership proceedings, no relief has been pursued against that entity to
date. However, a potential oppression claim may exist for the Prism Horizon investors against Prism Horizon’s
current or former directors. Some of these claims are now being pursued in the Class Action, as described below.

Prism Heritage

Summary. The original Prism Heritage project involved the development of lands located in Cochrane, Alberta.
Over the course of the development, it is believed by management of the Corporation that the lands involved in this
project have been encumbered by two (2) separate mortgages totaling approximately $8.69 million. In addition to
the mortgages, it is further believed by the Corporation that the Prism Horizon lands are further encumbered by
approximately $224,000 in associated builders’ liens.
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Prism Heritage went through receivership proceedings, which began in December 2016 with an order appointing a
receiver. A final foreclosure order and other relief in favour of the senior mortgagee was granted in May 2017
pursuant to which the Prism Heritage lands were foreclosed upon and title transferred to the senior mortgagee,
effectively eliminating any interest held by the Prism Heritage investors in the Prism Heritage lands.

On October 2, 2017, the Court ordered that Prism Heritage must provide all of its financial statements (including
any backup documents like bank statements) to the Corporation’s legal counsel by October 16, 2017. The Court
also authorized an investigation into Prism Heritage’s business, and authorized the appointment of H&K as the
inspector of Heritage Plaza. Like Prism Broadmoor, H&K’s appointment will take effect only if the Corporation’s
legal counsel files a letter with the Court confirming that H&K has been retained. The Corporation is assessing
further recourse with its legal counsel.

Furthermore, a potential oppression claim may exist for the Prism Heritage investors, as well as a potential claim in
respect of under market dealings with non-arm’s length tenants on the Prism Heritage lands (related to significant
rent-free periods of varying lengths). Some of these claims are now being pursued in the Class Action, as described
below.

Prism Place

Summary: The original Prism Place project involved a commercial development located in Calgary, Alberta. For
reasons that are not yet apparent to the Corporation, it appears to management of the Corporation that the Prism
Place property was sold effective July 7, 2012,

Prism Place was then dissolved in February 2017, immediately subsequent to the final instalment of the sales
proceeds from the sale of Prism Place lands. It now appears that at least part of the final instalment of $3 million
was inappropriately transferred to related parties.

On October 2, 2017, the Court ordered Prism Place to provide all of its financial statements (including any backup
documents like bank statements) to the Corporation’s legal counsel by October 16, 2017The Court also ordered an
investigation into Prism Place’s business, and authorized the appointment of H&K as the inspector of Prism Place.
Further, the Court ordered Prism Place to provide a full accounting of the $3 million that Prism Place received in
February 2017 from the sale of the building and lands it previously owned. However, the disclosures subsequently
provided by Prism were inadequate for proper analysis. Therefore, a further Court Order was issued on October 31,
2017 (and signed on November 29, 2017), directing Prism management to “attest in writing, under oath . . . for the
payments made by Prism Place Developments out of the holdback funds received by it on or about February 21,
2017". It is the Corporation’s view that the ensuing affidavit of Ali Ghani, sworn January 23, 2018, provides less
than complete disclosure of the funds’ disposition or the rationale for the funds’ disposition to the parties that were
allotted funds.

H&K’s authorized appointment as inspector of Prism Place Development will take effect at the discretion of the
Corporation only if the Corporation’s legal counsel files a letter with the Court confirming that H&K has been
retained. Once more, the Corporation is considering its strategies in this regard.

A potential oppression claim may exist for the Prism Development investors, resulting from the transfers of the $3
million. Some of these claims are now being pursued in the Class Action, as described below.

Prism Summerside

Summary: The original Prism Summerside project involved certain lands located in Edmonton, Alberta. Over the
course of the development, it is believed by Criterium that the lands involved in this project have been encumbered
by a mortgage totaling approximately $17.1 million. Under a liquidation scenario, Criterium estimated there would
be approximately $6.85 million available to Prism Summerside investors. This is an estimation based on the
limited information available to date.

Sale proceedings on the Prism Summerside lands have been on and off again since the fall of 2016.
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On September 8, 2017, the Court ordered that any funds received by Prism Summerside as the deposit on the sale of
the Prism Summerside lands be paid into the trust account of Bennett Jones LLP, and that these funds shall not be
distributed unless the Prism Summerside investors agree, or the Court makes a further order. This order remained in
place, but was amended by the Court on October 2, 2017, so that the manager of the Prism Summerside lands could
still receive directly rents from its tenants and make payments on the mortgages.

The Corporation discovered there was a sale pending with respect to the Prism Summerside lands and applied to
Court to prevent or delay the sale. The Court initially granted an injunction on September 8, 2017 preventing the
sale of the Prism Summerside lands, and renewed the injunction on October 2, 2017 pending a further hearing on
October 27 - 31, 2017. Also on October 2, 2017, with the consent of counsel to the Ghani Group, the Court also
ordered the disclosure of a full accounting of the use of a deposit of $6.85 million which the manager of the Prism
Summerside lands previously received and to provide banking and other financial records by October 12, 2017.
Counsel for the Ghani Group provided some information about the use of the deposit as well as certain financial
statements and other records. The Court also appointed Mr. Greg McLean of Criterium as a trustee of both the
Summerside Development Trust and the Summerside Commercial Trust and ordered both of those trusts to provide
a full accounting of their business (including providing all books and records). Further to the hearing on October 27
- 31,2017, the Court did not renew the injunction in respect of the sale of the Prism Summerside lands (meaning the
sale of such lands was allowed to proceed) but did direct, among other things, the following:

¢ there shall be no payments or release of other funds by Prism Summerside, out of the ordinary course of
business, without the consent of certain Prism Summerside investors (which were funded by the
Corporation), such consent not to be unreasonably withheld;

e the Ghani Group must provide certain accounting and chronological summaries in respect of Prism
Summerside;

e adraft statement of receipts and disbursements is to be provided to BLG for their review in respect of the
sale of the Prism Summerside lands; and

o the net proceeds of the sale of the Prism Summerside lands are to be held in trust pending further review by
the Court.

The Court Order directly states that “Ali Ghani shall attest in writing, under oath, to the explanations for the
payments made by Summerside Corp. out of the deposit funds of $6.85 million received by it pursuant to the
purchase and sale agreement with Fateh Developments Inc.”, Fateh Developments Inc. being the purchaser in the
transaction.

In the affidavit subsequently provided by Ali Ghani, Ali Ghani provides some detail on the transaction and indicates
that certain of the funds were used to satisfy obligations not of Prism Summerside, but of other entities. The
Corporation expects to pursue further detail regarding the circumstances of the transaction through the Court
process.

The Court Order dated October 31, 2017 also required one of the Ghani Group (whomever takes responsibility) to
attest to the circumstances surrounding the execution of certain corporate documents of Prism Summerside
Development Corp. (the "GP") relating to an alleged transfer of shares of the GP held by 1775011 Alberta Ltd. to
the Ghani Family Trust. Geoff Lafleur, the sole director and shareholder of 1775011 Alberta Ltd., swore an
(unfiled) affidavit in the Court proceedings in which he stated that he was unaware of the transfer of his
corporation’s shares to the Ghani Family Trust, did not authorize the transfer of shares and did not execute any
documents purporting to transfer the shares. Ali Ghani provided a Statutory Declaration on January 4, 2018 in
which he provides certain information regarding the execution of the corporate documents.

Based on information obtained through legal action (as summarized herein), Ilan Handelsman (Director and
President of the Issuer) filed a statement of claim against Ali Ghani, Abdul Ghani, and nine of their connected
companies, brought under the Class Proceedings Act, on August 24, 2018. The claim is seeking, among other
things, approximately $42 million in compensation, plus punitive damages and other relief for various Prism
investors that have had their investments misappropriated or destroyed by the Ghanis and their associated corporate
entities. The class action has not yet been certified by the Court.

Recently, a case management conference was held on March 18, 2019 to determine pre-certification steps.
Ultimately, a consent order was obtained at that time, detailing the filing and service deadlines for all matters
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spanning until April 16, 2020. The Court ordered schedule contemplates that a certification application for the
action will be heard from April 13-16, 2020 by Associate Chief Justice of Alberta J.D. Rooke.

2.3 Development of Business

The Issuer is a recently formed corporation. The Issuer has a limited operating history and was established to solely
to pursue investigative measures and possible litigation matters in relation to the prior investments made in the Prism
Group by Prism Group investors. In order to best pursue ongoing investigative measures and possible litigation
matters on behalf of those affected, the Corporation was formed to help organize and group together the Prism
Group investors.

The availability of recourse for the Prism Group investors in each of the five Prism Group properties may differ, and
each of the five properties is at a different stage of distress. Nevertheless, a common approach was deemed
appropriate by the Issuer’s advisors in seeking recourse, as litigation against the Prism Group for dissipation of
Prism Group investor funds was common throughout all five Prism Group properties. It is the intention of the [ssuer
to raise funds under this Offering to continue to fund these objectives. See "ITEM 2.2 - Our Business".

Payout of proceeds obtained through successful litigation action against the Prism Group:

It is unlikely the Corporation will be successful on every Prism Group matter it investigates and pursues and
therefore it is unlikely the Corporation will receive a return of all its costs and expenses. If the Corporation is
successful in funding certain litigation matters against the Prism Group the Corporation will receive the Preferential
Payment, as approved by the Court.

For example, if the Corporation had aggregate costs and expenses in connection with pursuing Prism Broadmoor
equal to $50,000 and it was later successful in obtaining a $1,000,000 judgement, award, settlement or other similar
payment for the Prism Broadmoor investors in relation to legal action taken on Prism Broadmoor, the amount
would be distributed in the following order: tranche A: $50,000 plus an additional $5,000 (10%, assuming
investors invest for an average of one year ) would be paid to the Corporation (as a preferential payment); tranche
B: $94,500 (10% bonus fee on net proceeds due to Criterium under the management agreement with the
Corporation - see "ITEM 2.7 — Material Agreements") would be paid to Criterium; tranche C: investors in the
Corporation would be paid back the pro rata share of their original investment in Prism Broadmoor — to a maximum
of the lesser of: (i) 10 times their investment in the Corporation, and (ii) their original investment in Prism
Broadmoor (this representing a multiple of the request for investment in the Corporation from Prism Broadmoor’s
investors equal to 10% of their original investment in Prism Broadmoor); and, tranche D: any remainder would be
distributed to the Prism Broadmoor investors (which would include the unpaid balances of the Corporation’s
investors who were not fully paid from the proceeds of tranche (C), subject to the directions of the Court. Tranche
C and D, in this illustration, would equate to a total of the remainder, being $850,500. Any tranche, in its
preferential order, that is not fully paid, will be apportioned on a pro rata basis as per each of the Corporation’s
investors’ pro rata interest in that payout tranche. For instance, if the Corporation’s investors were to be paid
$1,701,000 from tranche C, and only (as in this illustration) $850,500 were available for distribution, each investor
would receive 50% of their calculated distribution. Distributions under tranche D would necessarily be $0, in such
an instance. For the avoidance of doubt, the payout structure contemplated herein requires Court approval, and has
not yet been approved by the Court. All payout structures require the approval of a judge, whose decision cannot be
foreseen. There is a risk to investors that a judge may approve a different payout structure.

2.4 Long Term Objectives

The Issuer’s only objective is to seek redress for investors who have lost their investments in some or all of the
Prism Group. This process will involve pursuing litigation through the Courts, and providing detailed information
to the relevant legal authorities. Management of the Corporation anticipates this could take up to 18 months to
complete and could cost up to $1,000,000 to pursue. As of the date hereof, the Corporation has raised
approximately $1,055,894 under previous offerings.

The Corporation’s exit plan:

Upon the earlier of: (a) all of the Corporation’s funds have been used up and no more additional funding is
reasonably likely (in the opinion of the board of directors of the Corporation); or (b) the board of directors of the
Corporation are of the opinion that there are no more reasonable investigative measures or litigation matters to
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pursue; the Corporation would pursue winding down the Corporation and returning any remaining funds in the
Corporation, after the payment of its expenses, back to its Shareholders.

2.5 Short Term Objectives and How We Intend to Achieve Them

The objectives for the next 12 months are to continue pursuing legal action against the Ghani Group and some or all
of the Prism Group related to investor funds that have apparently been used, not for the benefit of the particular
Prism Group entity but for the benefit of affiliates and other parties, to the detriment of Prism Group investors. This
process of litigation will follow upon the Court orders already issued and steps already taken against the Ghani
Group. In addition, the Corporation will continue to meet with law enforcement officials and provide them with
updates on the status of the proceedings, where appropriate. See "ITEM 2.2 - Qur Business".

Specifically, over the next 12 months the Corporation’s legal counsel will continue pursuing the class action
proceedings against the Ghanis and related entities, on behalf of the plaintiff Mr. Handelsman, which will include
numerous steps to prepare for the certification hearing scheduled for April 13-16, 2020. The cost of preparing for
the certification hearing will be substantial and cannot be predicted with certainty given the inherent uncertainty of
litigation, including that much cost and scope depends on the conduct of the Ghanis and/or other defendants.

The following outlines the costs associated with the achievement of the Issuer's short-term objectives:

What we must do and how we will do it. Target completion date or Our cost to
number of months to complete
complete
Filing and service of amended statement of certificate of
application and related materials, including any expert June 28, 2019 $75,000
affidavit(s)
Questioning of all affidavits filed by _the plaintiff, including any July 31,2019 $50,000
expert affidavit(s)

Responses to all undertaking requests made during questioning
of the plaintiff’s affiants to be provided, subject to privilege, | August 30, 2019 $25,000
relevance and materiality.

Filing fmd service of responsive a‘tppllcatlon and rel_ated September 27, 2019 $10,000
materials, including any responsive expert affidavit(s)

Questioning of all afﬁdavi_ts filed by the defendants, including October 31,2019 $50,000
any responsive expert affidavit(s)

Responses to all undertaking requests made during questioning
of the defendants’ affidavits to be provided, subject to privilege, | November 29, 2019 $10,000
relevance and materiality

Questioning of all undertaking responses to be completed December 20, 2019 $10,000

Plaintiff shall file and serve hlg brle_f of law.anq argument with January 31, 2020 $50,000
respect to the certification application
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Defendants shall file and serve any reply brief of law and
argument with respect to the certification application February 28, 2020 $10,000

Plaintiff shal'l file and serve any rf:ply brlef of lgw fmd argument March 13, 2020 $25,000
with respect to the certification application

Hearing for the certification application April, 2020 $25,000

Trial (speculative) April 2021 $150,000

2.6 Insufficient Funds

The proceeds of this Offering may not be sufficient to accomplish all of the Issuer's proposed objectives and there is
no assurance that alternative financing will be available or, if available, may be obtained by the Issuer on reasonable
terms.

2.7 Material Agreements

The Corporation does not have any paid employees nor does it foresee any need for any near term. The
directors/officers of the Corporation are not being compensated (other than to reimburse them for any reasonable
expenses incurred). The Corporation has obtained directors & officers liability insurance for its directors/officers
(annual payment costs the Corporation approximately $8,100).

The only material agreements entered into by the Issuer and which can reasonably be regarded as presently being
material to the Issuer or a prospective Subscriber of Common Shares are summarized below.

Management Agreement:

Pursuant to a management agreement dated June 22, 2017, as amended, the Corporation has engaged Criterium as
its consultant/manager. Criterium has been engaged to (among other things): (i) assist the Corporation in
communicating with the Corporation’s investors (and the Prism Group investors); (ii) manage and communicate
with legal counsel engaged by the Corporation; (iii) negotiate with the principals involved in the Prism Group; (iv)
communicate with those other third parties involved in the Prism Group and its assets; and (v) investigate, review
and report on the financial aspects and assets related to the Prism Group lands/assets. Criterium had been engaged
on a month by month basis for the first 12 months, and has since moved to a “time and materials” billing process,
This contract may be terminated upon one (1) month notice. Initially, Criterium received a monthly fee of $15,000
(plus applicable taxes) and is reimbursed for all approved expenses. The new “time and materials” contract now
existing provides Criterium with a $250/hour fee (plus GST). Criterium will also receive a bonus equal to up to
10% of the total amounts awarded to the Prism Group investors in relation to actions taken by the Corporation on
their behalf (for example but not limited to, in connection with liquidity events of Prism Group land/assets or
proceeds payable to Prism Group investors as a result legal action taken against the Prism Group and/or its
management/principals).

ITEM 3—- INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MANAGEMENT, PROMOTERS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS
3.1 Compensation and Securities Held
The Issuer

The directors or officers of the Issuer are as follows:
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Name and
Municipality of

Positions held
and the date of
obtaining that

Compensation paid by
the Issuer in the most
recently completed
financial year (and the
compensation
anticipated to be paid in
the current financial

Number, type and
percentage of securities
of the Issuer to be held

after completion of

Number, type and
percentage of
securities of the
Issuer to be held
after completion of

Principal Residence position year) Minimum Offering Maximum Offering
Alan (Ilan) Director and Nil I Common Share 1 Common Share
Handelsman President (0.0000009%) (0.00000049%)

June 22, 2017
Victoria, BC

Owen Jackson Director and Nil 10,001 Common Share 10,001 Common
Treasurer (0.009%) Share

Edmonton, AB June 22, 2017 (0.0049%)

Clifford McAuley Director and Nil 2,001 Common Share 2,001 Common Share

Secretary (0.0018%) (0.00097%)

Vermilion, AB June 22,2017

3.2 Management Experience

The name and principal occupation for the past five years of the directors and officers of the Issuer is as follows:

Name

Alan (llan) Handelsman
(Director and President)

Owen Jackson
(Director and Treasurer)

Clifford McAuley
(Director and Secretary)

Principal occupation and related experience

Mr. Handelsman is a licensed dealing representative and National Slaes Manager with Raintree
Financial Solutions. Mr. Handelsman personally invested in Prism Place, Prism Heritage, Prism
Broadmoor, Prism Horizon and Prism Summerside. Family, friends and clients have also invested in
the Prism Group entities. Mr. Handelsman has an interest in pursuing claims on behalf of the Prism
Group investors who are Shareholders of the Issuer.

Mr. Jackson has been a Chartered Accountant since 1975. When he retired from public practice in
2013, he became a licensed dealing representative with Raintree Financial Solutions. He recently
became the CFO of an investment company and accordingly has resigned from his Raintree Financial
Solutions position. Mr. Jackson, through his professional corporation, invested in Prism Summerside.
Mr. Jackson has an interest in pursuing claims on behalf of the Prism Group investors who are
Shareholders of the Issuer. Given his background as a Chartered Accountant and a former dealing
representative, Mr. Jackson is familiar with capital raising requirements which will assist the
Corporation.

Mr. McAuley, now retired, was a teacher at Lakeland College in Vermillion and Lloydminster for 27
years. Mr. McAuley achieved his certified management accountant status in 1991. Mr. McAuley
invested in Prism Horizon and Prism Broadmoor. Mr. McAuley has an interest in pursuing claims on
behalf of the Prism Group investors who are Shareholders of the Issuer.

33 Penalties, Sanctions and Bankruptcy

There are no penalties or sanctions that have been in effect during the last ten years, and there are no cease trade
orders that have been in effect for a period of 30 consecutive days during the last ten years, against a director,
executive officer or control person of the Issuer or against a company of which any of the foregoing was a director,
executive officer or control person. No declaration of bankruptcy, voluntary assignment in bankruptcy, proposal
under or any bankruptcy or insolvency legislation, proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or
appointment of receiver, receiver manager or trustee to hold assets, has been in effect during the last ten years with
regard to those individuals or any companies of which any of those individuals was a director, executive officer or

control person.

34 Loans

Since its inception, there have not been any debentures or loans that are due to or from any director, executive
officer, promoter or principal shareholder of the Issuer.
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ITEM 4 - CAPITAL STRUCTURE

4.1 Capital

The Issuer

The following table sets out the capital structure of the Issuer as at the dates indicated:

Description of Number authorized to Price per Number Number Number
Security™ be issued Security outstanding as at | outstanding outstanding
April 30, 2019 after min. after max.

offering® offering
Class A Common Shares Unlimited $1.00 1,055,898.18 1,055,898.18 2,055,898.18

Notes:

(I} The attributes and characteristics of each Class of Common Shares are set forth in "/TEM 5- Securities Offered".
(2) The Corporation has raised approximately $1,055,894 under previous offerings as of the date hereof.

4.2

Long-Term Debt Securities

As of the date of this Offering Memorandum, the Issuer has no long term debt.

4.3 Prior Sales

As of the date of the Offering Memorandum, the Corporation has 1,055,898.18 Class A Common Shares issued and
outstanding (for aggregate proceeds of approximately $1,055,894). Over the past 12 months, the Corporation has
issued the following securities:

Date of issuance | Type of Security Issued Number of Price per Total funds received
securities issued security
April 27,2018 Class A Common Shares 167,940 $1.00 $167,940
October 22,2018 | Class A Common Shares 389,475 $1.00 $389,475
April 22, 2019 Class A Common Shares 104,679 $1.00 $104,679

ITEM § - SECURITIES OFFERED

5.1

General

Terms of Securities

This Offering consists of up to a Maximum Offering of 1,000,000 Common Shares.

The securities being offered pursuant to the Offering are Common Shares of the Issuer. The Issuer is authorized to
issue an unlimited number of Common Shares and each Common Share shall entitle the holder or holders thereof to
one vote at all meetings of the shareholders of the Issuer. All Common Shares shall rank among themselves equally
and rateably without discrimination, preference or priority. Subject to any preference in favour of other classes of
shares, dividends may be paid on Common Shares. In the event of the distribution of the assets of the Issuer among
its shareholders made for the purpose of its liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, and subject to the prior rights of
holders of any other class of shares of the Issuer, the Shareholders shall be entitled to receive ratably the remaining

property of the Issuer.
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52 Subscription Procedure

Subscription Documents

Subscribers who wish to purchase Common Shares will be required to enter into a Subscription Agreement with the
Issuer by completing and delivering the Subscription Agreement and related documentation to the Issuer. The
Subscription Agreement contains, among other things, representations and warranties required to be made by the
Subscriber that it is duly authorized to purchase the Common Shares, that it is purchasing the Common Shares for
investment and not with a view for resale and as to its corporate status or other qualifications to purchase Common
Shares on a "private placement" basis. Reference is made to the Subscription Agreement and related
documentation, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule "A", for the specific terms of these representations,
warranties and conditions.

Common Shares may be purchased in the following manner:

@) by the execution of the Subscription Agreement, as well as any documentation required by the
Securities Regulatory Authorities of the jurisdiction in which they are resident (copies of which
are attached to the Subscription Agreement);

(i) deliver to the Issuer the Subscription Price in respect of the Common Shares subscribed for by
way of a certified cheque or bank draft payable to the Issuer or in such other manner as is
acceptable to the Issuer; and

(iif) deliver all of the foregoing to the Issuer in accordance with the instructions set out in the
Subscription Agreement.

The first closing of this Offering is expected to occur on or about the Closing. Other closings will occur subsequent
to that date.

All Subscription Proceeds will be held in trust until midnight on the second Business Day after the day the
Subscriber signs the Subscription Agreement. In the event that such Subscriber provides the Issuer with a
cancellation notice prior to midnight of the second Business Day after the signing date, or the Issuer does not
accept such Subscriber's subscription, all Subscription Proceeds will be promptly returned to such
Subscriber without interest or deduction.

You should carefully review the terms of the Subscription Agreement attached hereto for more detailed information
concerning the rights and obligations applicable to you and the Issuer. Execution and delivery of the Subscription
Agreement will bind you to the terms thereof, whether executed by you or by an agent on your behalf. You should
consult with your own professional advisors.

Exemptions from Prospectus Requirements

Canada

The Common Shares are being offered in the Selling Jurisdictions pursuant to exemptions under Applicable
Securities Laws. Such exemptions relieve the Issuer from provisions under Applicable Securities Laws requiring
the Issuer to file a prospectus and, therefore, Subscribers do not receive the benefits associated with a subscription
for securities issued pursuant to a filed prospectus, including the review of material by a Securities Regulatory
Authority or similar authority.

The sale of Common Shares pursuant to this Offering Memorandum is being made in the Selling Jurisdictions under
certain statutory exemptions from the prospectus requirements set out in National Instrument 45-106 — Prospectus
and Registration Exemptions ("NI 45-106"). Specifically, the sale of Common Shares is being made pursuant to
Section 2.9 of NI 45-106 (the "Offering Memorandum Exemption"), Section 2.3 of NI 45-106 and Section 73.3 of
the Securities Act (Ontario) (the "Accredited Investor Exemption") and Section 2.10 of NI 45-106 (the "Minimum
Investment Exemption"). Please carefully review the accompanying Subscription Agreement to determine
the prospectus exemption requirements that apply to you.

Other Jurisdictions

The sale of Common Shares pursuant to this Offering Memorandum may also be made in other jurisdictions
provided that the Subscriber provides to the Issuer the full particulars of the exemption from the registration and
prospectus requirements under Applicable Securities Laws being relied on and evidence of the Subscriber's
qualifications thereunder.
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Each Subscriber is urged to consult with his own legal adviser as to the details of the statutory exemption
being relied upon and the consequences of purchasing securities pursuant to such exemption.

ITEM 6 - INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES AND RRSP ELIGIBILITY
6.1 Tax Advice

You should consult your own professional advisers to obtain advice on the tax consequences that apply to you.

6.2 Eligibility for Investment

The Common Shares are not eligible investments for Exempt Plans. You should consult your own professional
advisers to obtain advice on the RRSP eligibility of these securities.

ITEM 7 - RISK FACTORS

Investment in the Common Shares should only be made after consulting with independent and qualified sources of
investment and tax advice. Investment in the Common Shares at this time is highly speculative due to the stage of
the Issuer's development and the unique circumstance surrounding the funding of the Issuer and its focused
objectives (funding the investigative measures and litigation matters on behalf of Prism Group investors) (the
"Focused Objectives") . The only sources of capital for the Corporation are the funds from investors in the
Corporation (through the sale of Common Shares) and any Preferential Payments it receives as a result of any
successful litigation actions it funds. There are no other business opportunities in the Corporation. Shareholders
must rely on the management of the Issuer and its advisors. Any investment in the Issuer at this stage involves a
high degree of risk.

In addition to factors set forth elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, potential Subscribers should carefully
consider the following factors, many of which are inherent to the ownership of Common Shares. An investment in
the Common Shares of the Issuer involves various risks and uncertainties. The risks discussed in this Offering
Memorandum can adversely affect the Issuer's funding and its Focused Objectives. This could cause the value of the
Common Shares to decline (or even become worthless) and cause Shareholders to lose part or all of their
investment. In addition to those set out below and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum, other material risks and
uncertainties of which the Issuer is not presently aware may also harm the Issuer's activities. The following is a
summary only of the material risk factors involved in an investment in the Common Shares. Prospective Subscribers
should review the risks with their legal, investment, tax and financial advisors.

7.1 Investment Risk
Among the risks of investing in the Issuer are the following:

(a) Not a Typical Investment - This is not a typical investment. The circumstances surrounding the funding of
the Corporation are unique. You may not receive back all the funds you contribute in relation to your
subscription for Common Shares in the Corporation. In fact, you may end up not receiving any of the funds
you have contributed. Any recovery will depend on both the success of the legal proceedings which by
their very nature are unpredictable and the existence of any assets which can be the subject of recovery
assuming that the legal proceedings are successful. The value of the Common Shares could decline (or even
become worthless) and cause Shareholders to lose part or all of their investment. The primary/sole
purpose of the Corporation is to fund the investigative measures and possibly pursue litigation
matters on behalf of Prism Group investors (the Corporation acts as a funding agent for such Prism
Group investors). The Corporation is a funding vehicle that helps group together Prism Group
investors. It is unlikely the Corporation will be successful on every matter it investigates and/or pursues
and therefore it is unlikely the Corporation will receive a return of all its costs and expenses. Only those
costs and expenses of the Corporation in relation to pursuits wherein proceeds are received as a result of a
successful litigation will be received back to the Corporation.

(b) No Guaranteed Return - There is no guarantee that the Common Shares will hold their current value (in
fact the Common Shares could become worthless if the Corporation is not successful in its Focused
Objectives) or ever earn any positive return in the short or long-term. The Issuer does not intend to make
cash distributions to Shareholders other than in connection with any winding down/liquidation of the
Corporation. All prospective Subscribers should consider an investment in the Issuer within the overall
context of their investment goals and risk tolerances.
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(d)

(e)

)

(2

7.2

Highly Speculative - The purchase of Common Shares is highly speculative. A potential Subscriber
should purchase Common Shares only if it is able to bear the risk of the entire loss of its investment. An
investment in the Common Shares should not constitute a significant portion of a Subscriber's investment
portfolio.  Potential Subscribers should review closely this Offering Memorandum to familiarize
themselves with the risks associated with an investment in the Issuer. Each prospective Subscriber is
responsible for determining if an investment in the Issuer of the size contemplated by the prospective
Subscriber is appropriate for that prospective Subscriber. There is no assurance that the Issuer will be able
to achieve its Focused Objectives.

Investment Not Liquid - The Common Shares will be subject to a number of resale restrictions, including
a restriction on trading. A Shareholder will not be able to trade or transfer the Common Shares unless it
complies with very limited exemptions from the prospectus and registration requirements under Applicable
Securities Laws. As the Issuer has no intention of becoming a reporting issuer in any jurisdiction in
Canada, these restrictions in trading will not expire. There is no market over which the Common Shares
may be traded and it is very unlikely that one will develop. Consequently, Shareholders may not be able to
liquidate their Common Shares in a timely manner, if at all, or pledge their Common Shares as collateral
for loans. An investment in Common Shares is hence suitable only for investors who do not need liquidity
with respect to this investment. (See ITEM 9— Resale Restrictions).

Loss of Investment - An investment in Common Shares is appropriate only for investors who have the
capacity to absorb a complete loss of all of their investment. The Issuer is not a member institution of the
Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Common Shares offered pursuant to this Offering
Memorandum are not insured against loss through the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Regulatory Review - This Offering Memorandum constitutes an offering of the securities described herein
only in those jurisdictions and to those Persons where and to whom they may be lawfully offered for sale
and is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as a public offering, prospectus or an
advertisement of securities. Subscribers will not have the benefit of a review of the material by any
regulatory authority.

Offering - There can be no assurance regarding the amount of proceeds that may be obtained under the
Offering. If less Common Shares are sold pursuant to this Offering than expected, the Issuer will have
fewer funds available to pursue investigative measures and litigation matters. This could have a material
adverse effect on achieving any successful outcomes.

Issuer Risk

Among the risks of investing in the [ssuer are the following:

(@

(b

(c)

Limited Operating History — The Corporation is recently incorporated with a limited operating history.
The pursuit of successful outcomes in relation to the Focused Objectives is reliant on the good faith and
expertise of the directors/management team of the Corporation, Criterium and the legal team it engages.
Investors shall be relying on their discretion and ability and continued involvement. None of the directors
or officers of the Corporation are providing services to the Corporation on a full-time basis, but only as,
and when, they determine their involvement shall be beneficial to the Corporation.

Litigation Risks - Litigation is inherently risky, and the results will depend on many factors, many of
which are outside the control of the Corporation and its counsel. The Corporation and its counsel cannot
predict with certainty how any court or other adjudicator will rule on any relief sought by Prism Group
investors. Further, the costs of litigation are uncertain and will be affected by the conduct of the opposing
parties. The costs of bringing forward any litigation may increase beyond the amount of funds raised by the
Corporation in this offering and any subsequent financings, and may require the Corporation to discontinue
proceedings. Finally, an award of costs may be made against the Corporation if proceedings brought
against the Prism Group or other persons are ultimately unsuccessful.

Operating Loss - The Issuer Focused Objectives will result in available funds being expended. The only
sources of capital for the Corporation are the funds from investors in the Corporation (through the sale of
Common Shares) and any Preferential Payments it receives as a result of any successful litigation actions it
funds. There are no other business opportunities in the Corporation. Unless the Corporation is successful
in raising funds from investors or receiving Preferential Payments — it its financial condition will
deteriorate, it will operate at a loss and it may be unable to achieve its Focused Objectives.
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(d) Lack of Information — The only information available to the Issuer to date has been derived from public
sources or documents obtained through the Court process to date. If the Corporation is not successful in
obtaining additional information it may not be successful in achieving its Focused Objectives.

(e) Absence of Cash Dividends - The Issuer has not paid any cash dividends to date on its Common Shares
and there are no plans for the Issuer to pay such dividend payments in the future.

® Continuous Disclosure Obligations — The Issuer is not a reporting issuer and does not have any
continuous disclosure obligations.

(g) Lack of Independent Experts Representing Shareholders - The Issuer has consulted with legal counsel
regarding the formation and terms of the Issuer and the Offering of Common Shares. The Shareholders
have, however, not been independently represented. Therefore, to the extent that the Issuer, the
Shareholders or this Offering could benefit by further independent review, such has not occurred. Each
prospective Subscriber should consult his or her own legal, tax and financial advisors regarding the
desirability of purchasing Common Shares and the suitability of investing in the Issuer.

(h) No Involvement of Registered Investment Dealers - No independent investment dealer (IIROC
registered or exempt market dealer registered) has made any review or investigation of the terms of this
Offering or the structure of the Issuer.

1) Fees and Expenses - The Issuer is obligated to pay certain management/consulting fees along with legal,
accounting, filing and other fees/expenses regardless of whether it realizes profits or is successful in its
Focused Objectives.

) Lack of Separate Counsel - The Shareholders, as a group, have not been represented by separate counsel
and counsel for the Issuer does not purport to have acted for the Shareholders or to have conducted any
investigation or review on their behalf.

7.3 Industry Risk
Among the industry risks are the following:

(a) Changes in Legislation - There can be no assurance that the applicable laws, or other legislation, legal and
statutory rights will not be changed in a manner which adversely affects the Issuer. There can be no
assurance that income tax, securities, and other laws or the interpretation and application of such laws by
courts and governmental authorities will not be changed in a manner which adversely affects the Issuer.

The foregoing risk factors do not purport to be a complete explanation of all risks involved in purchasing
Common Shares described herein. Potential Subscribers should read this entire Offering Memorandum and
the attached Subscription Agreement carefully and consult with their legal and other professional advisors
before determining to invest in Common Shares of the Issuer.

ITEM 8 - REPORTING OBLIGATIONS
8.1 Reporting

The Issuer is not subject to continuous reporting and disclosure obligations which the securities legislation in any
province would require of a "reporting issuer" as defined in such legislation and there is, therefore, no requirement
that the Issuer make disclosure of its affairs, including, without limitation, the prompt notification of material
changes by way of press releases and formal filings or the preparation of quarterly unaudited financial statements
and annual audited financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Issuer will send or make available to all Shareholders, the financial statements of the Issuer together with
comparative financial statements for the preceding fiscal year, if any, and the report of the accountant thereon,
within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year of the Issuer.

Pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Alberta), the Corporation is required to:

e Call/organize an annual meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation no later than 18 months after the
incorporation and subsequently not later than 15 months after holding the last preceding annual meeting.
The Corporation is required to prepare and deliver to each shareholder an information circular in the
prescribed form and detailing the required information and disclosure as prescribed by law in connection
with such annual meeting; and

{W/DOCS/7961.001/02/00542494. DOC / 2} 14



o place before the shareholders at every annual meeting annual financial statements as required by law.

ITEM 9 - RESALE RESTRICTIONS
9.1 General Statement

The Common Shares will be subject to a number of resale restrictions, including a restriction on trading. Until the
restriction on trading expires, you will not be able to trade the securities unless you comply with an exemption from
the prospectus and registration requirements under Applicable Securities Laws.

The Issuer is not: (i) a reporting issuer in any Canadian province or territory, nor (ii) a SEDAR filer in any Canadian
province or territory. As a result, the Common Shares will be subject to an indefinite hold period.

Common Shares are not transferable without prior written consent of the board of directors of the Issuer. Such
consent may be withheld by the board of directors of the Issuer at its discretion, and in any case will be withheld if
such a transfer is not permitted by Applicable Securities Laws. The Issuer will be entitled to require and may
require, as a condition of allowing any transfer of any Common Share, the transferor or transferee, at their expense,
to furnish to the Issuer evidence satisfactory to it in form and substance (which may include an opinion of counsel
satisfactory to the Issuer) in order to establish that such transfer will not constitute a violation of the securities laws
of any jurisdiction whose securities laws are applicable thereto.

9.2 Restricted Period

For trades in Alberta, British Columbia, Saskatchewan and Ontario:

Unless permitted under securities legislation, you cannot trade the securities before the date that is four months and a
day after the date the Issuer becomes a reporting issuer in any province or territory of Canada.

The Issuer will not become a reporting issuer upon completion of this Offering and does not currently anticipate
ever becoming a reporting issuer. The resale restriction on the securities may therefore never expire.

For trades in Manitoba:

Unless permitted under securities legislation, you must not trade the securities without the prior written consent of
the regulator in Manitoba unless:

(a) the Issuer has filed a prospectus with the regulator in Manitoba with respect to the securities you have
purchased and the regulator in Manitoba has issued a receipt for the prospectus; or

(b) you have held the securities for at least 12 months.

The regulator in Manitoba will consent to your trade if the regulator is of the opinion that to do so is not prejudicial
to the public interest.

The foregoing is a summary of resale restrictions relevant to Subscribers of Common Shares offered hereby.
The foregoing is not intended to be exhaustive and all Subscribers under this Offering should consult with
their own professional advisers with respect to restriction on the transferability, resale and availability of
further exemptions relating to the Common Shares offered hereunder.

ITEM 10 - PURCHASER'S RIGHTS

If you purchase these securities, you will have certain rights, some of which are described below. For more
information about your rights, you should consult a lawyer.

The securities laws in your jurisdiction may provide you with the right, in certain circumstances, to seek damages or
to cancel your agreement to buy Common Shares. Most often, these rights are available if the Issuer makes a
misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum or any amendment hereto, but in some jurisdictions, you may have
these rights in other circumstances including if the Issuer fails to deliver the Offering Memorandum to you within
the required time or if the Issuer makes a misrepresentation in any advertisements or literature regarding Common
Shares. Generally, a "misrepresentation” means an untrue statement about a material fact or the failure to disclose a
material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary in order to make a statement not misleading in light of
the circumstances in which it was made. The meaning of misrepresentation may differ slightly depending on the law
in your jurisdiction. In most jurisdictions there are defenses available to the persons or companies that you may have
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a right to sue. In particular, in many jurisdictions, the person or company that you sue will not be liable if you knew
of the misrepresentation when you purchased the Common Shares.

The following summaries are subject to any express provisions of the securities legislation of each Selling
Jurisdiction and the regulations, rules and policy statements thereunder and reference is made thereto for the
complete text of snch provisions.

The rights of action described herein are in addition to and without derogation from any other right or remedy that a
Subscriber may have at law.

10.1 Two Day Cancellation Right

You can cancel your agreement to purchase these securities. To do so, you must send a notice to the Issuer by
midnight on the second Business Day after you sign the Subscription Agreement to buy Common Shares.

10.2 Statutory Rights of Action in the Event of a Misrepresentation

Subscribers in British Columbia, Alberta and Manitoba

If there is a misrepresentation in this Offering Memorandum, you have a statutory right to sue:

N the Issuer to cancel your agreement to buy the Common Shares; or
) for damages against:
a) if you are resident in Alberta or Manitoba:
1) the Issuer;
i) every director of the Issuer at the date of this Offering Memorandum; and
i) every person or company who signed this Offering Memorandum; and
b) if you are resident in British Columbia:
i) the Issuer;
ii) every director of the Issuer at the date of this Offering Memorandum; and
ii1) every person who signed this Offering Memorandum.

This statutory right to sue is available to you whether or not you relied on the misrepresentation. However, there are
various defenses available to the persons or companies that you have a right to sue. In particular, they have a defense
if you knew of the misrepresentation when you purchased the Common Shares.

Time limitations

If you intend to rely on the rights described above in paragraph (1) or (2), you must do so within strict time
limitations.

You must commence an action to cancel the agreement within:

() if you are resident in Alberta, 180 days from the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action;
and
2) if you are resident in British Columbia or Manitoba, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise

to the cause of action.

You must commence an action for damages within:

H if you are resident in Alberta, the earlier of:
a) 180 days from the date that you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action;
or
b) 3 years from the day of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.
2) if you are resident in British Columbia, the earlier of:
a) 180 days after you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or
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b) 3 years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

3) if you are resident in Manitoba, the earlier of:
a) 180 days after the date you first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or
b) 2 years after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

Subscribers in Ontario

Section 130.1 of the Securities Act (Ontario) provides that every purchaser of securities pursuant to an offering
memorandum (such as this Offering Memorandum) shall have a statutory right of action for damages or rescission
against the issuer and any selling security holder in the event that the offering memorandum contains a
misrepresentation. A purchaser who purchases securities offered by the offering memorandum during the period of
distribution has, without regard to whether the purchaser relied upon the misrepresentation, a right of action for
damages or, alternatively, while still the owner of the securities, for rescission against the issuer and any selling
security holder provided that:

(a) if the purchaser exercises its right of rescission, it shall cease to have a right of action for damages as
against the issuer and the selling security holders, if any;

(b) the issuer and the selling security holders, if any, will not be liable if they prove that the purchaser
purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation;

(c) the issuer and the selling security holders, if any, will not be liable for all or any portion of damages that it
proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the securities as a result of the misrepresentation relied
upon; and

(d) in no case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the securities were offered.

Section 138 of the Securities Act (Ontario) provides that no action shall be commenced to enforce these rights more
than:

(a) in the case of an action for rescission, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of
action; or
{b) in the case of an action for damages, the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the date that the purchaser first had

knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or (ii) three years after the date of the transaction
that gave rise to the cause of action.

Section 132.1 of the Securities Act (Ontario) provides a defence to liability for misrepresentations in respect of
forward-looking information if the Issuer proves that: (i) the offering memorandum contains reasonable cautionary
language identifying the forward looking information as such, and identifying material factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in the forward looking information, and a
statement of material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a forecast or
projection set out in the forward looking information; and (ii) the Issuer has a reasonable basis for drawing the
conclusion or making the forecasts and projections set out in the forward looking information.

Subscribers in Saskatchewan

Section 138 of The Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), as amended (the "Saskatchewan Act") provides that
where an offering memorandum (such as this Offering Memorandum) or any amendment to it is sent or delivered to
a purchaser and it contains a misrepresentation (as defined in the Saskatchewan Act), a purchaser who purchases a
security covered by the offering memorandum or any amendment to it is deemed to have relied upon that
misrepresentation, if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and has a right of action for rescission
against the issuer or a selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made or has a right of action for
damages against:

(a) the issuer or a selling security holder on whose behalf the distribution is made;

b) every promoter and director of the issuer or the selling security holder, as the case may be, at the time the
offering memorandum or any amendment to it was sent or delivered;

(©) every person or company whose consent has been filed respecting the offering, but only with respect to
reports, opinions or statements that have been made by them;
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(d) every person who or company that, in addition to the persons or companies mentioned in (a) to (c) above,
signed the offering memorandum or the amendment to the offering memorandum; and

(e) every person who or company that sells securities on behalf of the issuer or selling security holder under
the offering memorandum or amendment to the offering memorandum.

Such rights of rescission and damages are subject to certain limitations including the following:

(a) if the purchaser elects to exercise its right of rescission against the issuer or selling security holder, it shall
have no right of action for damages against that party;

(b) in an action for damages, a defendant will not be liable for all or any portion of the damages that he, she or
it proves do not represent the depreciation in value of the securities resulting from the misrepresentation
relied on;

(c) no person or company, other than the issuer or a selling security holder, will be liable for any part of the

offering memorandum or any amendment to it not purporting to be made on the authority of an expert and
not purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, opinion or statement of an expert, unless the
person or company failed to conduct a reasonable investigation sufficient to provide reasonable grounds for
a belief that there had been no misrepresentation or believed that there had been a misrepresentation;

(d) in no case shall the amount recoverable exceed the price at which the securities were offered; and

(e) no person or company is liable in an action for rescission or damages if that person or company proves that
the purchaser purchased the securities with knowledge of the misrepresentation.

In addition, no person or company, other than the issuer or selling security holder, will be liable if the person or
company proves that:

(a) the offering memorandum or any amendment to it was sent or delivered without the person’s or company’s
knowledge or consent and that, on becoming aware of it being sent or delivered, that person or company
gave reasonable general notice that it was so sent or delivered; or

(b) with respect to any part of the offering memorandum or any amendment to it purporting to be made on the
authority of an expert, or purporting to be a copy of, or an extract from, a report, an opinion or a statement
of an expert, that person or company had no reasonable grounds to believe and did not believe that there
had been a misrepresentation, the part of the offering memorandum or any amendment to it did not fairly
represent the report, opinion or statement of the expert, or was not a fair copy of, or an extract from, the
report, opinion or statement of the expert.

Not all defenses upon which the Issuer or others may rely are described herein. Please refer to the full text of
the Saskatchewan Act for a complete listing.

Similar rights of action for damages and rescission are provided in section 138.1 of the Saskatchewan Act in respect
of a misrepresentation in advertising and sales literature disseminated in connection with an offering of securities.

Section 138.2 of the Saskatchewan Act also provides that where an individual makes a verbal statement to a
prospective purchaser that contains a misrepresentation relating to the security purchased and the verbal statement is
made either before or contemporaneously with the purchase of the security, the purchaser is deemed to have relied
on the misrepresentation, if it was a misrepresentation at the time of purchase, and has a right of action for damages
against the individual who made the verbal statement.

Section 139.1 of the Saskatchewan Act provides a defence to liability for misrepresentations in respect of forward-
looking information if the Issuer proves that: (i) the document containing the forward-looking information contains
reasonable cautionary language identifying the forward looking information as such, and identifying material factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection in the forward looking
information, and a statement of material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making
a forecast or projection set out in the forward looking information; and (ii) the Issuer has a reasonable basis for
drawing the conclusion or making the forecasts and projections set out in the forward looking information.

Section 141(1) of the Saskatchewan Act provides a purchaser with the right to void the purchase agreement and to
recover all money and other consideration paid by the purchaser for the securities if the securities are sold in
contravention of the Saskatchewan Act, the regulations to the Saskatchewan Act or a decision of the Saskatchewan
Financial Services Commission.
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Section 141(2) of the Saskatchewan Act also provides a right of action for rescission or damages to a purchaser of
securities to whom an offering memorandum or any amendment to it was not sent or delivered prior to or at the
same time as the purchaser enters into an agreement to purchase the securities, as required by Section 80.1 of the
Saskatchewan Act.

Section 147 of the Saskatchewan Act provides that no action shall be commenced to enforce any of the foregoing
rights more than:

(a) in the case of an action for rescission, 180 days after the date of the transaction that gave rise to the cause of
action; or
(b) in the case of any other action, other than an action for rescission, the earlier of: (i) one year after the

plaintiff first had knowledge of the facts giving rise to the cause of action; or (ii) six years after the date of
the transaction that gave rise to the cause of action.

The Saskatchewan Act also provides a purchaser who has received an amended offering memorandum delivered in
accordance with subsection 80.1(3) of the Saskatchewan Act has a right to withdraw from the agreement to purchase
the securities by delivering a notice to the person who or company that is selling the securities, indicating the
purchaser’s intention not to be bound by the purchase agreement, provided such notice is delivered by the purchaser
within two business days of receiving the amended offering memorandum.

General

The securities laws of the provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and Ontario are
complex. Reference should be made to the full text of the provisions summarized above relating to contractual and
statutory rights of action. Subscribers should consult their own legal advisers with respect to their rights and
the remedies available to them. The rights discussed above are in addition to and without derogation from
any other rights or remedies which Subscribers may have at law.

ITEM 11 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are included in this Offering Memorandum:

nH audited financial statements of the Issuer for the period from December 31, 2017 to December 31, 2018
including the statement of cash flows for the period then ended and related notes thereto.

The Issuer has prepared its financial statements in accordance with IFRS.
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SCHEDULE "A" TO THE
OFFERING MEMORANDUM OF
2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

Common Shares Subscription Agreement
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SUBSCRIPTION FOR COMMON SHARES

TO: 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. (the "Corporation")

The undersigned (the "Subscriber”) hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of Class A common shares ("Common
Shares") of the Corporation set forth below for the aggregate subscription price ("Aggregate Subscription Amount") set forth below, representing a
subscription price of $1.00 per Common Share, upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in "Terms and Conditions of Subscription for

Common Shares of 2052227 Alberta Ltd." attached hereto (together with this page and attached Schedules, the "Subseription Agreement"),
addition to this face page, the Subscriber must also complete all applicable schedules attached hereto.

Full Legal Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Signature of Subscriber or its Authorized Representative

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above if different than name of Subscriber)

Subscriber's Address (including postal code)

Telephone Number (including area code)

e-mail Address

Aggregate Subscription Amount: $

{Minimum $1,000 subscription)

Number of Common Shares:

Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information:

If the Subscriber is signing as agent for a principal and is not
deemed to be purchasing as principal pursuant to applicable
securities legislation, complete the following and ensure that the
Schedules and Exhibits, as applicable, are completed in respect
of such principal:

(Name of Principal)

(Principal's Address)

(Telephone Number) (E-mail Address)

Register the Common Shares (if different from address given

above) as follows:

Name

Account reference, if applicable

Address (including postal code)

Deliver the Commeon Shares (if different from address given
above) as follows:

Name

Account reference, if applicable

Contact Name

Address (including postal code)

Telephone Number (including area code)

ACCEPTANCE: The Corporation hereby accepts the subscription as set forth above on the terms and conditions contained in this Subscription

Agreement.

2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

Per:

,201_

[ No.: |

This is the first page of an agreement comprised of 11 pages (excluding the Schedules hereto).
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2052227 ALBERTA LTD. Page 2 of 11
Subscription Agreement for Common Shares

PLEASE MAKE SURE THAT YOUR SUBSCRIPTION INCLUDES:

1. a signed copy of this Subscription Agreement;

2. a certified cheque or bank draft in an amount equal to the Aggregate Subscription Amount payable to
"TINGLEMERRETT LLP in Trust" or payment of the same amount in such other manner as is
acceptable to the Corporation;

3. if the Subscriber is purchasing Common Shares as an "accredited investor™, one (1) copy of the
Representation Letter in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement as Schedule "A" (including a
duly completed and initialed copy of Exhibit A to Schedule "A" and, if you are an individual described
in_paragraphs (j)., (k), or (I) of the definition of "accredited investor' in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106
(which definition is reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A'), a duly completed and signed copy of
Exhibit B to Schedule "A");

4. if the Subscriber is purchasing the Common Shares in reliance on the "offering memorandum
exemption" and is resident in British Columbia, two (2) copies of the Risk Acknowledgement in the
form attached to this Subscription Agreement as Schedule "B";

S. if the Subscriber is purchasing the Common Shares in reliance on the "offering memorandum
exemption” and is resident in Alberta, Saskatchewan or Ontario:

1) two (2) copies of the Risk Acknowledgement in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement
as Schedule "B";

(i) if the Subscriber is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106, one (1) copy of
the Certificate of Eligible Investor in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement as
Schedule "C";

(iii) one (1) copy of each of Exhibit I and Exhibit 2 to Schedule "D" attached to this Subscription
Agreement, characterizing the type of investor and confirming investment limits specified therein
(the investment limits do not apply if you are not an individual or you are an "accredited
investor");

(iv) if the Subscriber is relying on advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt
market dealer (each a "registrant") to increase its 12-month investment limit to $100,000, then the
dealing representative or advising representative of such registrant who provided such advice must
complete Section 2 of Exhibit 2 to Schedule "D" and the person meeting with or providing
information to you must complete Schedule "E";

6. if the Subscriber is purchasing the Common Shares in reliance on the "offering memorandum
exemption” and is resident in Manitoba, two (2) copies of the Risk Acknowledgement in the form
attached to this Subscription Agreement as Schedule "B" and, if the acquisition cost to the Subscriber
exceeds $10.000, one (1) copy of the Certificate of Eligible Investor in the form attached to this
Subscription Agreement as Schedule "C"; and

7. one (1) copy of a Support Letter in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement as Schedule "F".

PLEASE DELIVER THE AFOREMENTIONED DOCUMENTS AND PAYMENT TO:

TingleMerrett LLP
1250, 639 — 5" Avenue S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2P 0M9

Attention: Chris Croteau
T:403-571-8019
F: 403-571-8008
E: ceroteau@tinglemerrett.com
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(@
(b)
(©)
(d)

(e)
®
(8)

(b)

@

(a)

(b)

(©)

(@

O

®

(@)

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION FOR
COMMON SHARES OF 2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

Definitions. In this Subscription Agreement:
"Aggregate Subscription Amount" has the meaning set forth on the face page hereof;
"Closing Date" means such date(s) as the Corporation may determine;
"Common Shares" means Class A common shares in the capital of the Corporation;

"Corporation" means 2052227 ALBERTA LTD., a corporation incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta);

"NI45-106" means National Instrument 45-106 entitled Prospectus Exemptions,
"Offering" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph 2(b) hereof;

"Offering Memorandum" means the offering memorandum of the Corporation dated May 3, 2019,
as amended; and

"U.S. Purchaser” is (a) any "U.S. person" as defined in Regulation S of the U.S. Securities Act, (b)
any person purchasing securities on behalf of any "U.S. person" or any person in the United
States, (c) any person that receives or received an offer of the securities while in the United States,
(d) any person that is in the United States at the time the purchaser’s buy order was made or this
subscription agreement was executed or delivered. "U.S. person” includes but is not limited to (i)
any natural person resident in the United States; (ii) any partnership or corporation organized or
incorporated under the laws of the United States; (iii) any partnership or corporation organized
outside the United States by a U.S. person principally for the purpose of investing in securities not
registered under the U.S. Securities Act, unless it is organized or incorporated, and owned, by
accredited investors who are not natural persons, estates or trusts; (iv) any estate or trust of which
any executor or administrator or trustee is a U.S. person; and

"U.S. Securities Act" means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Acknowledgements of the Subscriber. The Subscriber agrees and acknowledges (on its own behalf
and, if applicable, on behalf of each person on whose behalf the Subscriber is contracting) that:

this subscription is subject to rejection or acceptance by the Corporation in whole or in part, and is
effective only upon acceptance by the Corporation;

the Common Shares subscribed for by the Subscriber hereunder form part of an issue and sale by
the Corporation of up to 1,000,000 Common Shares at a subscription price of $1.00 per Common
Share for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000, all pursuant to the Offering Memorandum
(the "Offering");

the Offering is not subject to any minimum amount and that the Subscriber's subscription may be
the only subscription;

the Subscriber has read, understands and executed the Support Letter attached hereto as Schedule
"FH;
the Subscriber is responsible for obtaining such legal and tax advice as it considers

appropriate in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by it of this
Subscription Agreement; and

there are risks associated with an investment in the Commeon Shares including, without
limitation, those risks set out in this Subscription Agreement and the Offering Memorandum
and, as a result, the Subscriber may lose its entire investment.

Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Subscriber. By executing this Subscription
Agreement, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of each person on whose

behalf the Subscriber is contracting) represents, warrants and covenants to the Corporation and its
counsel (and acknowledges that the Corporation and its counsel are relying thereon) that:

if the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber is of the full age of majority in the jurisdiction in
which this Subscription Agreement is executed and is legally competent to execute and deliver
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(b)

©

(d)

(e

®

(2

()

this Subscription Agreement, to perform all of its obligations hereunder, and to undertake all
actions required of the Subscriber hereunder;

if the Subscriber is not an individual, the Subscriber has the requisite power, authority, legal
capacity and competence to execute and deliver and be bound by this Subscription Agreement, to
perform all of its obligations hereunder, and to undertake all actions required of the Subscriber
hereunder, and all necessary approvals of its directors, partners, shareholders, trustees or otherwise
with respect to such matters have been given or obtained,

if the Subscriber is a body corporate, partnership, unincorporated association or other entity, the
Subscriber has been duly incorporated or created and is validly subsisting under the laws of its
Jjurisdiction of incorporation or creation;

this Subscription Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by, and
constitutes a legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of, the Subscriber;

the execution, delivery and performance by the Subscriber of this Subscription Agreement and the
completion of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and will not result in a violation of any
law, regulation, order or ruling applicable to the Subscriber, and do not and will not constitute a
breach of or default under any of the Subscriber's constating documents (if the Subscriber is not an
individual) or any agreement or covenant to which the Subscriber is a party or by which it is
bound;

the Subscriber confirms that the Subscriber (and, if the Subscriber is not purchasing as principal,
each beneficial purchaser for whom the Subscriber is acting):

(i) has such knowledge in financial and business affairs as to be capable of evaluating the
merits and risks of its investment in the Common Shares;

(i) is capable of assessing the proposed investment in the Common Shares as a result of the
Subscriber’s own experience or as a result of advice received from a person registered
under applicable securities legislation;

(iii) is aware of the characteristics of the Common Shares and the risks relating to an
investment therein; and

@iv) is able to bear the economic risk of loss of its entire investment in the Common Shares;

the Subscriber acknowledges that:

(i) no securities commission or similar regulatory authority has reviewed or passed on the
merits of the Common Shares;

(i) there is no government or other insurance covering the Common Shares;

(ii1) there are risks associated with the purchase of the Common Shares;

(iv) there are restrictions on the Subscriber's ability to resell the Common Shares and it is the

responsibility of the Subscriber to find out what those restrictions are and to comply with
them before selling the Common Shares; and

) the Corporation has advised the Subscriber that the Corporation is relying on an
exemption from the requirements to provide the Subscriber with a prospectus under the
Securities Act (Alberta) and other applicable securities laws and, as a consequence of
acquiring Common Shares pursuant to this exemption, certain protections, rights and
remedies provided by the Securities Act (Alberta) and other applicable securities laws,
including statutory rights of rescission or damages, will not be available to the
Subscriber;

the Subscriber acknowledges that no prospectus has been filed by the Corporation with any
securities commission or similar regulatory authority in any jurisdiction in connection with the
issuance of the Common Shares, and the issuance of the Common Shares is exempted from the
prospectus requirements available under the provisions of applicable securities laws, and as a
result:

1) the Subscriber is restricted from using some of the civil remedies otherwise available
under applicable securities laws in Canada;
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0

(k)

®

(m)

(ii) the Subscriber will not receive information that would otherwise be required to be
provided to it under applicable securities laws in Canada; and

(iii) the Corporation is relieved from certain obligations that would otherwise apply under
applicable securities laws in Canada;

the Subscriber confirms that neither the Corporation nor any of its directors, employees, officers,
agents, representatives or affiliates have made any representations (written or oral) to the
Subscriber:

(i) regarding the future value of the Common Shares;

(ii) that any person will resell or repurchase the Common Shares;

(iii) that any of the Common Shares will be listed on any stock exchange or traded on any
market; or

(iv) that any person will refund the purchase price of the Common Shares;

the Subscriber confirms that it has been advised to consult its own legal and financial advisors
with respect to the suitability of the Common Shares as an investment for the Subscriber, the tax
consequences of purchasing and dealing with the Common Shares, and the resale restrictions and
"hold periods" to which the Common Shares are or may be subject under applicable securities
legislation or stock exchange rules, and has not relied upon any statements made by or purporting
to have been made on behalf of the Corporation with respect to such suitability, tax consequences,
resale restrictions and "hold periods”;

the Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction indicated on the face page of this Subscription
Agreement as the "Subscriber's Address" and the purchase by and sale to the Subscriber of the
Common Shares, and any act, solicitation, conduct or negotiation directly or indirectly in
furtherance of such purchase and sale (whether with or with respect to the Subscriber or any
beneficial purchaser) has occurred only in such jurisdiction;

the Subscriber acknowledges that it and/or the Corporation may be required to provide applicable
securities regulatory authorities or stock exchanges with information concerning the identities of
the beneficial purchasers of the Common Shares and the Subscriber agrees that, notwithstanding
that the Subscriber may be purchasing the Common Shares as agent for an undisclosed principal,
the Subscriber will provide to the Corporation, on request, particulars as to the identity of such
undisclosed principal as may be required by the Corporation in order to comply with the
foregoing;

the Subscriber satisfies one of subsections (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) below:

0 if the Subscriber is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities laws
of any province of Canada, the Subscriber is purchasing the Common Shares as
principal (or is deemed to be purchasing as principal) for its own account, not for the
benefit of any other person, the Subscriber is an "accredited investor" as defined in
National Instrument 45-106 entitled Prospectus Exemptions ("N1 45-106") (or, if
applicable for Subscribers in Ontario, the corresponding categories for the definition of
an "accredited investor" as defined in Section 73.3 of the Securities Act (Ontario)), which
definitions are reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A" attached hereto, the Subscriber
was not created or used solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor as
described in paragraph (m) of the definition of "accredited investor" in NI 45-106 and
reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A" hereto, the Subscriber is not a trust company or
trust corporation registered under the laws of Prince Edward Island that is not registered
or authorized under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable
legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada and the Subscriber has executed and
delivered to the Corporation a Representation Letter in the form attached hereto as
Schedule "A" indicating that the Subscriber fits within one of the categories of
"accredited investor” set forth in such definitions (including a duly completed and
initialed copy of Exhibit A to Schedule "A" and, if the Subscriber is an individual
described in paragraphs (j), (k), or (I) of the definition of "accredited investor" in
Section 1.1 of NI 45-106, a duly completed and signed copy of Exhibit B to Schedule
"A");
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(i1) if the Subscriber is relying on the offering memorandum exemption found in Section
2.9 of NI 45-106 and is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities
laws of British Columbia, it is purchasing the Common Shares as principal (or is
deemed to be purchasing as principal) for its own account and not for the benefit of any
other person and it has received or been provided with a copy of the Offering
Memorandum and the Subscriber has executed and delivered to the Corporation two
(2) copies of the Risk Acknowledgement in the form attached to this Subscription
Agreement as Schedule "B", retaining one (1) copy of such Risk Acknowledgement
for its records; OR

(iii) if the Subscriber is relying on the offering memorandum exemption found in Section
2.9 of NI 45-106 and is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities
laws of Alberta, Saskatchewan or Ontario:

(A) it is purchasing the Common Shares as principal (or is deemed to be purchasing
as principal) for its own account and not for the benefit of any other person;

(B) it was not created or used solely to purchase or hold securities in reliance on this
Section 3(m)(ii1),

© the acquisition cost of all securities acquired by the Subscriber who is an
individual in the preceding 12 months does not exceed: (i) in the case of a
Subscriber that is not an eligible investor, $10,000; (i) in the case of a
Subscriber that is an eligible investor, $30,000; (iii) in the case of a Subscriber
that is an eligible investor and that has received advice from a portfolio
manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer that the investment is
suitable, $100,000; and

(D) at the same time or before the Subscriber signs this Subscription Agreement, it
has received or been provided with a copy of the Offering Memorandum,

and the Subscriber has executed and delivered to the Corporation:

(E) two (2) copies of the Risk Acknowledgement in the form attached to this
Subscription Agreement as Schedule "B", retaining one (1) copy of such Risk
Acknowledgement for its records;

F) if the Subscriber is an "eligible investor" as such term is defined in NI 45-106,
one (1) copy of the Certificate of Eligible Investor in the form attached to this
Subscription Agreement as Schedule "C";

G) one (1) copy of each of Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2 to Schedule "D" attached to this
Subscription Agreement, characterizing the type of investor and confirming
investment limits specified therein (the investment limits do not apply if the
Subscriber is not an individual or it is an "accredited investor" as defined in NI
45-106);

H) if the Subscriber is relying on advice from a portfolio manager, investment
dealer or exempt market dealer (each a "registrant") to increase its 12-month
investment limit to $100,000, then the dealing representative or advising
representative of such registrant who provided such advice must complete
Section 2 of Exhibit 2 to Schedule "D" and the person meeting with or providing
information to the Subscriber must complete Schedule "E"; OR

(iv) if the Subscriber is relying on the offering memorandum exemption found in Section
' 2.9 of NI 45-106 and is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities
laws of Manitoba:

(A) it is purchasing the Common Shares as principal (or is deemed to be purchasing
as principal) for its own account and not for the benefit of any other person;

(B) it is an eligible investor (in which case, it was not created or used solely to
purchase or hold securities as an eligible investor as defined in paragraph (a) of
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(n)

(0)

()]

the definition of "eligible investor” in NI 45-106) or the acquisition cost of the
Common Shares does not exceed $10,000; and

© at the same time or before the Subscriber signs this Subscription Agreement, it
has received or been provided with a copy of the Offering Memorandum,

and the Subscriber has executed and delivered to the Corporation two (2) copies of
the Risk Acknowledgement in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement as
Schedule "B", retaining one (1) copy of such Risk Acknowledgement for its records
and, if the acquisition cost to_the Subscriber exceeds $10,000, one (1) copy of the
Certificate of Eligible Investor in the form attached to this Subscription Agreement
as Schedule "C'"; OR

if the Subscriber is not purchasing the Common Shares as principal or pursuant to section
3(m), it is duly authorized to enter into this Subscription Agreement and to execute and deliver all
documentation in connection with the purchase on behalf of each beneficial purchaser, each of
whom is purchasing as principal for its own account, not for the benefit of any other person, and
not with a view to the resale or distribution of all or any of the Common Shares, it acknowledges
that the Corporation may be required by law to disclose to certain regulatory authorities the
identity of each beneficial purchaser of Common Shares for whom it may be acting, and it and
each beneficial purchaser is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber’s Residential
Address" and the purchase by and sale of the Common Shares, and any act, solicitation, conduct or
negotiation directly or indirectly in furtherance of such purchase and sale (whether with or with
respect to the Subscriber or any beneficial purchaser) has occurred only in such jurisdiction, and:

@) it is acting as agent for a beneficial purchaser, who is disclosed on the face page of this
Subscription Agreement, who is resident in the jurisdiction set out in the "Disclosed
Beneficial Purchaser Information" and who complies with section 3(m)(i) hereof as if all
references therein were to the beneficial purchaser rather than to the Subscriber and the
Subscriber has concurrently executed and delivered to the Corporation a
Representation Letter in the form attached hereto as Schedule "A" indicating that
the Subscriber fits within the category of "accredited investor" set forth in such
definitions (including a duly completed and initialed copy of Exhibit A to Schedule
"A" and, if the Subscriber is an individual described in paragraphs (j), (k), or (I) of
the definition of "accredited investor" in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106, a duly completed
and signed copy of Exhibit B to Schedule "A"); or

(ii) it is deemed to be purchasing as principal under NI 45-106 because it is an "accredited
investor” as such term is defined in paragraphs (p) or (q) of the definition of "accredited
investor" in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A" of this Subscription
Agreement (provided, however, that it is not a trust company or trust corporation
registered under the laws of Prince Edward Island that is not registered or authorized
under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in
another jurisdiction of Canada) and has concurrently executed and delivered a
Representation Letter in the form attached hereto as Schedule ""A" and has initialed
in the Exhibit thereto indicating that the Subscriber satisfies one of the categories of
"aceredited investor" set out in paragraphs (p) or (q) of the definition of
"accredited investor" in NI 45-106 and reproduced in Exhibit A to Schedule "A"
hereto;

the Subscriber understands that it may not be able to resell the Common Shares except in
accordance with limited exemptions available under applicable securities legislation, regulatory
policy and stock exchange rules, and that the Subscriber is solely responsible for (and the
Corporation is not in any way responsible for) the Subscriber's compliance with applicable resale
restrictions;

the Subscriber acknowledges that it is aware that there is no market upon which the Common
Shares trade and there is no assurance that the Common Shares will be listed and posted for
trading on a stock exchange or dealer network in the future;
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)

(s)

®

(u)

V)

(W)

()

$2)

(@)
(aa)

(bb)

the Subscriber acknowledges that it is aware that the Corporation is not a "reporting issuer" or the
equivalent in any jurisdiction of Canada and therefore, the Common Shares will be subject to a
hold period which may be of indefinite duration;

the Subscriber understands that any certificates representing the Common Shares will bear a
legend in accordance with applicable securities legislation indicating that the resale of such
securities is restricted and the Subscriber will not resell any of the Common Shares except in
accordance with the provisions of applicable securities legislation;

the Subscriber further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult its own legal counsel in its
jurisdiction of residence for full particulars of the resale restrictions applicable to it;

other than the Corporation’s Offering Memorandum, the Subscriber has not received or been
provided with, nor has it requested, nor does it have any need to receive, any prospectus, or any
other document (other than the annual financial statements, interim financial statements or any
other document (excluding offering memoranda, prospectuses or other offering documents) the
content of which is prescribed by statute or regulation) describing the business and affairs of the
Corporation, which has been prepared for delivery to and review by prospective purchasers in
order to assist them in making an investment decision in respect of the purchase of Common
Shares pursuant to the Offering;

the Subscriber has not become aware of any advertisement in printed media of general and regular
paid circulation or on radio, television or other form of telecommunication or any other form of
advertisement (including electronic display or the Internet) or sales literature with respect to the
distribution of the Common Shares;

the Subscriber is aware that the Common Shares have not been and will not be registered under
the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities Act") or the securities
laws of any state and that the Common Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in
the United States without registration under the U.S. Securities Act or applicable state laws or
compliance with requirements of an exemption from registration and it acknowledges that the
Corporation has no present intention of filing a registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act
or applicable state laws in respect of the Common Shares;

the Subscriber is not a U.S. Purchaser and is not acquiring the Common Shares for the account or
benefit of a person in the United States or a U.S. person;

the Subscriber undertakes and agrees that it will not offer or sell any of the Common Shares in the
United States unless such securities are registered under the U.S. Securities Act and the securities
laws of all applicable states of the United States, or an exemption from such registration
requirements is available;

if required by applicable securities legislation, regulations, rules, policies or orders or by any
securities commission, stock exchange or other regulatory authority, the Subscriber will execute,
deliver, file and otherwise assist the Corporation in filing, such reports, undertakings and other
documents with respect to the issue of the Common Shares;

except as disclosed in writing to the Corporation, the Subscriber does not act jointly or in concert
with any other person or company for the purposes of acquiring securities of the Corporation;

the Subscriber has reviewed the "Privacy Notice" attached to this Subscription Agreement, and
agrees to and accepts all covenants, representations and consents as set out therein;

the funds representing the Aggregate Subscription Amount which will be advanced by the
Subscriber to the Corporation hereunder will not represent proceeds of crime for the purposes of
the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (Canada) (the
"PCMLTFA") and the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation may in the future be
required by law to disclose the Subscriber's name and other information relating to this
Subscription Agreement and the Subscriber's subscription hereunder, on a confidential basis,
pursuant to the PCMLTFA. To the best of its knowledge: (i) none of the subscription funds to be
provided by the Subscriber: (A) have been or will be derived from or related to any activity that is
deemed criminal under the law of Canada, the United States of America, or any other jurisdiction;
or (B) are being tendered on behalf of a person or entity who has not been identified to the
Subscriber; and (ii) it shall promptly notify the Corporation if the Subscriber discovers that any of
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such representations ceases to be true, and to provide the Corporation with appropriate information
in connection therewith;

(cc) the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation may complete additional financings in the

future in order to develop the business of the Corporation and to fund ongoing development.
There is no assurance that such financing will be available and if available, on reasonable terms.
Any such financings may have a dilutive effect on current shareholders, including the Subscriber;

(dd) if the Subscriber is contracting under this Subscription Agreement on behalf of another person or

persons, the representations, warranties, covenants, acknowledgements, confirmations and
statements made by the Subscriber in this Subscription Agreement are true and correct with
respect to such person or persons on whose behalf the Subscriber is so contracting, as if such
representations, warranties, covenants, acknowledgements, confirmations and statements were
made directly by such person or persons;

(ee) the Subscriber has been solely responsible for its own due diligence investigation of the

(fH)

Corporation and its business, and analysis of the merits and risks of the investment in the Common
Shares, and is not relying on anyone else’s analysis or investigation of the Common Shares, its
business or the merits and risks of the Common Shares; and

the Subscriber acknowledges that an investment in the Common Shares is subject to a
number of risk factors. In particular, the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation is
not a reporting issuer in any province of Canada, has no obligation to become a reporting
issuer, and, as such, the applicable hold period may never expire. Accordingly, there is
currently no market for the Common Shares, and one may never develop. It may be
difficult or even impossible for a Subscriber to sell any of the Common Shares. Resale of
such Common Shares will require the availability of exemptions from the prospectus
requirements of applicable securities legislation, or the application for a discretionary order
of the securities commission or similar regulatory authority in the subscriber's province of
residence permitting the trade. The Subscriber covenants and agrees to comply with
applicable securities legislation concerning the purchase, holding of, and resale of the
Common Shares.

Timeliness of Representations, etc. The Subscriber agrees (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on
behalf of each person on whose behalf the Subscriber is contracting) that the representations, warranties
and covenants of the Subscriber herein will be true and correct both as of the execution of this
Subscription Agreement and as of the Closing Time (as defined herein), and will survive the completion
of the distribution of the Common Shares and any subsequent disposition by the Subscriber of any of
the Common Shares.

Indemnity. The Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation and its counsel are relying upon the
representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber set forth herein in determining the eligibility
(from a securities law perspective) of the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the eligibility of another on
whose behalf the Subscriber is contracting hereunder to subscribe for Common Shares) to purchase
Common Shares under the Offering, and hereby agrees to indemnify the Corporation and its directors,
officers, employees, advisers, affiliates, shareholders and agents (including their respective legal
counsel) against all losses, claims, costs, expenses, damages or liabilities that they may suffer or incur
as a result of or in connection with their reliance on such representations, warranties and covenants.
The Subscriber undertakes to immediately notify the Corporation's counsel at TingleMerrett LLP, 1250,
639 — 5™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P OM9, Attention: Chris Croteau (fax: (403) 571-8008), of
any change in any statement or other information relating to the Subscriber set forth herein that occurs
prior to the Closing Time.

Deliveries by Subscriber prior to Closing. The Subscriber agrees to deliver to the Corporation, or as
the Corporation may direct, not later than 5:00 p.m. (Calgary time) on such date of which the Subscriber
receives notice:

(a) this duly completed and executed Subscription Agreement;

(b) acertified cheque or bank draft made payable to "TINGLEMERRETT LLP in Trust" in an amount
equal to the Aggregate Subscription Amount, or payment of the same amount in such other
manner as is acceptable to the Corporation;
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10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

(c) a properly completed and duly executed copy of the appropriate investor qualification form(s) as
described on page 2 of this Subscription Agreement; and

(d) such other documents as may be requested by the Corporation as contemplated by this
Subscription Agreement.

Partial Acceptance or Rejection of Subscription. The Corporation may, in its absolute discretion,
accept or reject the Subscriber's subscription for Common Shares as set forth in this Subscription
Agreement, in whole or in part, and the Corporation reserves the right to allot to the Subscriber less than
the amount of Common Shares subscribed for under this Subscription Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the acceptance of this
Subscription Agreement will be conditional upon among other things, the sale of the Common Shares to
the Subscriber being exempt from any prospectus and offering memorandum requirements of applicable
securities laws. The Corporation will be deemed to have accepted this Subscription Agreement upon
the delivery at Closing of the certificates representing the Common Shares to the Subscriber or upon the
direction of the Subscriber in accordance with the provisions hereof.

[f this Subscription Agreement is rejected in whole, any certified cheque(s) or bank draft(s) delivered by
the Subscriber to the Corporation on account of the Aggregate Subscription Amount for the Common
Shares subscribed for will be promptly returned to the Subscriber without interest. If this Subscription
Agreement is accepted only in part, a cheque representing the amount by which the payment delivered
by the Subscriber to the Corporation (or its counsel) exceeds the subscription price of the number of
Common Shares sold to the Subscriber pursuant to a partial acceptance of this Subscription Agreement
will be promptly delivered to the Subscriber without interest.

Time and Place of Closing. The sale of the Common Shares will be completed at the offices of
TingleMerrett LLP, counsel to the Corporation, in Calgary, Alberta at 10:00 a.m. (Calgary time) or such
other time as the Corporation may determine (the "Closing Time") on the Closing Date. The
Corporation reserves the right to close the Offering in multiple tranches, so that one or more closings
may occur after the initial closing.

Subject to Regulatory Approval. The obligations of the parties hereunder are subject to all required
regulatory approvals being obtained.

No Partnership. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed to constitute a partnership of any kind
whatsoever between the Subscriber and the Corporation.

Governing Law. The contract arising out of acceptance of this Subscription Agreement by the
Corporation shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Alberta
and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. The parties irrevocably attorn to the exclusive
Jjurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Alberta.

Time of Essence. Time shall be of the essence of this Subscription Agreement.

Entire Agreement. This Subscription Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties hereto
relating to the subject matter hereof, and there are no representations, covenants or other agreements
relating to the subject matter hereof except as stated or referred to herein.

Electronic Copies. The Corporation shall be entitled to rely on delivery of a facsimile or other
electronic copy of executed subscriptions, and acceptance by the Corporation of such facsimile or
electronic copies shall be legally effective to create a valid and binding agreement between the
Subscriber and the Corporation in accordance with the terms hereof.

Counterpart. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which
so executed shall constitute an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same
agreement.

Severability. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Subscription
Agreement shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other provision hereof.

Survival. The covenants, representations and warranties contained in this Subscription Agreement shall
survive the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby, and shall be binding upon and enure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
permitted assigns.

{W:/DOCS/7961.001/09/00542970.DOCX /}



2052227 ALBERTA LTD. Page 11 of 11
Subscription Agreement for Common Shares

18. Interpretation. The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience
of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Subscription Agreement or
any provision hereof. In this Subscription Agreement, unless otherwise indicated, all references to
money amounts are to Canadian dollars.

19. Amendment. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Subscription Agreement may only be amended
by the parties hereto in writing.

20. Costs. The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all costs incurred by the Subscriber (including any
fees and disbursements of any special counsel retained by the Subscriber) relating to the sale of the
Common Shares to the Subscriber shall be borne by the Subscriber.

21. Withdrawal. The Subscriber, on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of others for whom it is
contracting hereunder, agrees that this subscription is made for valuable consideration and may not be
withdrawn, cancelled, terminated or revoked by the Subscriber, on its own behalf and, if applicable, on
behalf of others for whom it is contracting hereunder.

22. Assignment. Neither party may assign all or part of its interest in or to this Subscription Agreement
without the consent of the other party in writing.

PRIVACY NOTICE

The Subscriber acknowledges that this Subscription Agreement and the Exhibits hereto require the Subscriber to
provide certain personal information to the Corporation. Such information is being collected by the Corporation for
the purposes of completing the Offering, which includes, without limitation, determining the Subscriber's eligibility
(or that of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) to purchase the Common Shares under applicable securities laws,
preparing and registering certificates representing the Common Shares to be issued to the Subscriber and completing
filings required by any stock exchange or securities regulatory authority. The Subscriber's personal information
(and that of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) may also be disclosed by the Corporation to (a) stock exchanges or
securities regulatory authorities (including the Ontario Securities Commission (the "OSC") and the British
Columbia Securities Commission (the "BCSC")), (b) the Corporation's registrar and transfer agent, (c) Canadian tax
authorities, and (d) any of the other parties involved in the Offering, including legal counsel, and may be included in
closing books in connection with the Offering. By executing this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber (on its
own behalf and on behalf of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser for whom it is contracting hereunder) consents to
the foregoing collection, use and disclosure of the Subscriber's (and any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser's) personal
information. The Subscriber (on its own behalf and on behalf of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser for whom it is
contracting hereunder) also consents to the filing of copies or originals of any of the Subscriber's documents
delivered in connection with this Subscription Agreement as may be required to be filed with any stock exchange or
securities regulatory authority in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and expressly consents to the
collection, use and disclosure of the Subscriber's (and any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser's) personal information by
the TSX Venture Exchange or the Toronto Stock Exchange for the purposes identified by such exchange, from time
to time. The Subscriber (on its own behalf and on behalf of any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser for whom it is
contracting hereunder) further acknowledges that it has been notified by the Corporation (a) of the requirement to
deliver to the OSC and the BCSC the full name, residential address and telephone number of the purchaser of the
securities, the number and type of securities purchased, the total purchase price, the exemption relied upon and the
date of distribution; (b) that this information is being collected indirectly by the OSC and BCSC under the authority
granted to it in securities legislation; (c) that this information is being collected for the purposes of the
administration and enforcement of the securities legislation of Ontario and British Columbia; (d) that the
Administrative Support Clerk can be contacted at Ontario Securities Commission, Suite 1903, Box 55, 20 Queen
Street West, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 388, or at (416) 593-3684, and can answer any questions about the OSC's
indirect collection of this information; and (e) that the BCSC can be contacted at British Columbia Securities
Commission, P.O. Box 10142, Pacific Centre, 701 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V7Y 1L2,
Telephone: (604) 899-6500, Toll free across Canada: 1-800-373-6393, Facsimile: (604) 899-658, and can answer
any questions about the BCSC's indirect collection of this information.
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SCHEDULE "A"

TO:

REPRESENTATION LETTER
TO BE COMPLETED BY ACCREDITED INVESTORS
2052227 ALBERTA LTD. (the "Corporation")

(Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Schedule have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription
Agreement to which this Schedule is attached)

In connection with the execution by the undersigned Subscriber of the Subscription Agreement which this
Representation Letter forms a part of, the undersigned Subscriber hereby represents, warrants, covenants and
certifies to the Corporation and its counsel that:

1.

the undersigned Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the "Subscriber's Residential Address" on
the face page of the Subscription Agreement and, if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a
disclosed beneficial purchaser, the disclosed beneficial purchaser is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the
"Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information” on the face page of the Subscription Agreement;

the undersigned Subscriber is either (a) purchasing the Common Shares as principal for its own account, (b)
deemed to be purchasing the Common Shares as principal in accordance with section 2.3(2) or (4) of NI 45-
106, or (c) acting as agent for a disclosed beneficial purchaser who is purchasing the Common Shares as

principal for its own account;

the undersigned Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial
purchaser, the disclosed beneficial purchaser) is an "accredited investor" within the meaning of NI 45-106 and
Section 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), as applicable, by virtue of satisfying the indicated criterion as
set out in Exhibit A to this Representation Letter;

the Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial purchaser, the
disclosed beneficial purchaser) fully understands the meaning of the terms and conditions of the category of
"accredited investor”" applicable to it and confirms that it has reviewed and understands the definitions in
Exhibit A to this Representation Letter in respect of the category of "accredited investor" applicable to it and,
in particular, if the Subscriber is an "accredited investor" by virtue of satisfying paragraph (j), (j.1), (k) or (1) of
Exhibit A to this Representation Letter, it has reviewed and understands the definitions of "related liabilities"
and "financial assets", as applicable, contained in Exhibit A hereto;

the undersigned Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial
purchaser, the disclosed beneficial purchaser) was not created, and is not used, solely to purchase or hold
securities as an accredited investor as described in paragraph (m) of the definition of "accredited investor" in
NI 45-106;

if the Subscriber (or if the undersigned Subscriber is purchasing as agent for a disclosed beneficial purchaser,
the disclosed beneficial purchaser) is an "accredited investor" by virtue of satisfying paragraph (j), (k) or (1) on
Exhibit A to this Representation Letter, it acknowledges that it needs to complete Exhibit B to this
Representation Letter and upon execution of Exhibit B by the Subscriber, Exhibit B shall be incorporated into
and form a part of this Representation Letter and the Corporation and its counsel shall be entitled to rely
thereon; and
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7. upon execution of this Representation Letter by the undersigned Subscriber, this Representation Letter,
including the Exhibits hereto, shall be incorporated into and form a part of the Subscription Agreement.

Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Authorized Signature

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above if different than name of
Subscriber)

DATED at this day of , 201 .

IMPORTANT
PLEASE COMPLETE THE EXHIBITS TO THIS REPRESENTATION LETTER
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EXHIBIT A TO SCHEDULE "A"
TO BE COMPLETED BY ACCREDITED INVESTORS

PLEASE MARK YOUR INITIALS BESIDE THE CATEGORY BELOW TO WHICH YOU BELONG

|

Please complete the Representation Letter to the Corporation by marking your initials beside the category of
"accredited investor" to which you belong within the meaning of Section 1.1 of NI 45-106 and Section 73.3(1) of the
Securities Act (Ontario), as applicable:

Meaning of " Accredited Investor"

"Accredited investor” is defined in Section 1.1 of NI 45-106 to mean any person who fits within any of the
following categories at the time of the sale of securities to that person:

- @ O
(i)
b O
(i)
o O
(i)
- @ O
(i)

except in Ontario, a Canadian financial institution, or a bank listed in Schedule 111 of the
Bank Act (Canada),

in Ontario, (A) a bank listed in Schedule I, II or III to the Bank Act (Canada); (B) an
association to which the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) applies or a
central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under subsection 473
(1) of that Act; or (C) a loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance
company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services cooperative or
credit union league or federation that is authorized by a statute of Canada or Ontario to
carry on business in Canada or Ontario, as the case may be,

except in Ontario, the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the
Business Development Bank of Canada Act (Canada),

in Ontario, the Business Development Bank of Canada,

except in Ontario, a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b), if the
person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities
required by law to be owned by directors of that subsidiary,

in Ontario, a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) through (e) above, if
the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities
required by law to be owned by directors of that subsidiary,

except in Ontario, a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of
Canada as an adviser or dealer,

in Ontario, a person or company registered under the securities legislation of a province
or territory of Canada as an adviser or dealer, except as otherwise prescribed by the
regulations under the Securities Act (Ontario),

(e) an individual registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a

representative of a person referred to in paragraph (d),

(e.1) an individual formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada, other
than an individual formerly registered solely as a representative of a limited market dealer under

one or both of the Securities Act (Ontario) or the Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador),

. ® o
(i)
(@ O

except in Ontario, the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown
corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the government of Canada or a jurisdiction
of Canada,

in Ontario, the Government of Canada, the government of a province or territory of
Canada, or any Crown corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the Government of
Canada or the government of a province or territory of Canada,

except in Ontario, a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a
metropolitan community, school board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de 1’ile
de Montréal or an intermunicipal management board in Québec,
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(i1) in Ontario, a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan
community, schoo! board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de 1’fle de Montréal or
an intermunicipal management board in Québec,

thy @ except in Ontario, any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal
government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government,

(ii) in Ontario, any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of
or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government,

OO except in Ontario, a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a pension commission or similar
regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada,

(ii) in Ontario, a pension fund that is regulated by the Office of the Superintendent of
Financial Institutions (Canada) or a pension commission or similar regulatory authority of
a province or territory of Canada,

(j)  an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, financial
assets having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes, but net of any related liabilities,
exceeds $1,000,000,

[Note: Financial assets include cash and securities, but do not include a personal residence — see the definition of
"financial assets" later in this certificate. Financial assets are generally liquid or relatively easy to liquidate. You
must subtract any liabilities related to your financial assets to calculate your net financial assets—see the
definition of "related liabilities". Financial assets held in a group RRSP under which you do not have the ability
to acquire the financial assets and deal with them directly are not considered to be beneficially owned by you. If
you meet the higher financial asset threshold set out in paragraph (j.1), then initial paragraph (j.1) instead of this

paragraph (j).]
[Note: If you are an accredited investor described in this paragraph (j), and do not meet the higher financial asset

threshold set out in paragraph (j.1), you must deliver a completed Form 45-106F9 — Form for Individual
Accredited Investors (See Exhibit B hereto).]

(j.1) an individual who beneficially owns financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that,
before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds $5,000,000,

[Note: The financial assets of your spouse (including financial assets in a spousal RRSP) cannot be included in
the calculation of net financial assets under this paragraph (j.1). See definition of "financial assets" below. If
you meet the financial asset threshold set out in this paragraph (j.1), you are not required to complete Exhibit B.]

(k)  an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded $200,000 in each of the two most recent
calendar years or whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse exceeded
$300,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who, in either case, reasonably expects
to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year,

[Note: If individual accredited investors wish to purchase through wholly-owned holding companies or similar
entities, such purchasing entities must qualify under section (t) below, which must be initialed and completed.

[Note: If you are an accredited investor described in this paragraph (k), you must deliver a completed Form 45-
106F9 — Form for Individual Accredited Investors (See Exhibit B hereto).]

) an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, has net assets of at least $5,000,000,

[Note: To calculate net assets, take the value of your total assets (which may include a personal residence) and
subtract your total liabilities (which may include a morigage). The value attributed to assets should reasonably
reflect their estimated fair value. Income tax should be considered a liability if the obligation to pay it is
outstanding at the time of the subscription.]

[Note: If you are an accredited investor described in this paragraph (1), you must deliver a completed Form 45-
106F9 — Form for Individual Accredited Investors (See Exhibit B hereto).]
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B ()

—_—

_—

_ ®

a person, other than an individual or an investment fund, that has net assets of at least $5,000,000,
as shown on its most recently prepared financial statements,

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to:
0 a person that is or was an accredited investor at the time of the distribution,

(1i) a person that acquires or acquired securities in the circumstances referred to in
section 2.10 of National Instrument 45-106 (where the person subscribes for a minimum
amount investment) and Section 2.19 of National Instrument 45-106 (where the person
makes an additional investment in investment funds), or

(iii) a person described in paragraph (i) or (ii) that acquires or acquired securities under
section 2.18 of National Instrument 45-106 (investment fund reinvestment),

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a jurisdiction
of Canada for which the regulator or, in Quebec, the securities regulatory authority, has issued a
receipt,

a trust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the Trust
and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or
a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by the trust company
or trust corporation, as the case may be,

a person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that person, if that person is
registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the securities
legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction,

a registered charity under the /ncome Tax Act (Canada) that, in regard to the trade, has obtained
advice from an eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation of the
jurisdiction of the registered charity to give advice on the securities being traded,

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (d) or paragraph (i) in form and function,

a person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the
voting securities required by law to be owned by directors, are persons that are accredited
investors,

Note: If you initialled (1), then indicate the name and category of accredited investor (by reference to the
applicable letter of this Exhibit A) of each of the owners of interests (attach additional pages if more than three):

S ()

W)

Name Category of Accredited Investor

an investment fund that is advised by a person registered as an adviser or a person that is exempt
from registration as an adviser,

a person that is recognized or designated by the securities regulatory authority or, except in
Ontario and Québec, the regulator as an accredited investor, or

a trust established by an accredited investor for the benefit of the accredited investor’s family
members of which a majority of the trustees are accredited investors and all of the beneficiaries
are the accredited investor’s spouse, a former spouse of the accredited investor or a parent,
grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of that accredited investor, of that accredited
investor’s spouse or of that accredited investor’s former spouse.

Note: If you initialed (w), then indicate the name and category of accredited investor (by reference to the
applicable letter of this Exhibit A) of each of the following (attach additional pages if more than three trustees):
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Name Category of Accredited
Investor

Individual who
established trust:

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

PLEASE MARK YOUR INITIALS BESIDE THE CATEGORY ABOVE TO WHICH YOU BELONG

Interpretative Aids
The following definitions relate to certain of the categories set forth above:
(a) "Canadian financial institution" means:

(i) an association governed by the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) or a central cooperative credit
society for which an order has been made under section 473(1) of that Act, or

(i1) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union,
caisse populaire, financial services cooperative, or league that, in each case, is authorized by an enactment of
Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

(b) "Canadian securities regulatory authorities” means the securities commissions and similar regulatory authorities of each
of the provinces or territories of Canada;

(c) "eligibility adviser” means:
(1) a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an equivalent category of registration under the

securities legislation of the jurisdiction of a purchaser and authorized to give advice with respect to the type
of security being distributed; and

(ii) in Saskatchewan or Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law
society of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an institute or
association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a
jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant must not:

(A) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors,
executive officers, founders, or control persons; and

(B) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director,
associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer or any of its
directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months;

(d) "EVCC" means an employee venture capital corporation that does not have a restricted constitution, and is registered
under Part 2 of the Employee Investment Act (British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c. 112, and whose business objective is
making multiple investments;

(e) "financial assets" means:
(i) cash;
(ii) securities; or
(iii) a contract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is not a security for the purposes of
securities legislation;
6] "foreign jurisdiction” means a country other than Canada or a political subdivision of a country other than Canada;
(g) “fully managed account” means an account for which a person or company makes the investment decisions if that

person or company has full discretion to trade in securities for the account without requiring the client's express consent
to a transaction;

(h) "investment fund" means a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, and, for greater certainty in British
Columbia, includes an EVCC and a VCC;
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)]

(k)

0]

(m)

(n)

(0)

"jurisdiction” means a province or territory of Canada;

"non-redeemable investment fund" means an issuer, (i) whose primary purpose is to invest money provided by its
securityholders; (ii) that does not invest (A) for the purpose of exercising or seeking to exercise control of an issuer,
other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, or (B) for the purpose of being actively
involved in the management of any issuer in which it invests, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-
redeemable investment fund; and (iii) that is not a mutual fund;

"person” includes:

) an individual,
(ii) a corporation,
(iii) a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons,

whether incorporated or not, and

(iv) an individual or other person in that person's capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other
legal representative;

"related liabilities" means:

(i) liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of financial assets, or
(ii) liabilities that are secured by financial assets;

"securities legislation” means, for the local jurisdiction, the statute and other instruments issued by the securities
regulator authority of the local jurisdiction;

"subsidiary” means an issuer that is controlled directly or indirectly by another issuer and includes a subsidiary of that
subsidiary; and

"VCC" means a venture capital corporation registered under Part 1 of the Small Business Venture Capital Act (British
Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c. 429 whose business objective is making multiple investments.

All monetary references are in Canadian dollars.
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EXHIBIT B TO SCHEDULE "A"
FORM 45-106F9
FORM FOR INDIVIDUAL ACCREDITED INVESTORS

WARNING!

This investment is risky. Don’t invest unless you can afford to lose all the money
you pay for this investment.

SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITYHOLDER:

1. About your investment

Type of securities: Class A Common Shares Issuer: 2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

Purchased from: 2052227 Alberta Ltd. (the Issuer of the Common Shares)

SECTIONS 2 TO 4 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PURCHASER

2. Risk acknowledgement

Your
This investment is risky. Initial that you understand that: initials

Risk of loss — You could lose your entire investment of § . [Instruction: Insert the total
dollar amount of the investment. ]

Liquidity risk — You may not be able to sell your investment quickly — or at all.

Lack of information — You may receive little or no information about your investment.

Lack of advice — You will not receive advice from the salesperson about whether this investment is suitable for you
unless the salesperson is registered. The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information to, you
about making this investment. To check whether the salesperson is registered, go to www.aretheyregistered.ca.

3. Accredited investor status

You must meet at least one of the following criteria to be able to make this investment. Initial the statement that Your
applies to you. (You may initial more than one statement.) The person identified in section 6 is responsible for initials
ensuring that you meet the definition of accredited investor. That person, or the salesperson identified in section 5,
can help you if you have questions about whether you meet these criteria.

¢ Your net income before taxes was more than $200,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and you
expect it to be more than $200,000 in the current calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on
your personal income tax return.)

e  Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse’s was more than $300,000 in each of the 2 most
recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income before taxes to be more than $300,000 in the
current calendar year.

¢  Either alone or with your spouse, you own more than $1 million in cash and securities, after subtracting any
debt related to the cash and securities.

e  Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than $5 million. (Your net assets are your
total assets (including real estate) minus your total debt.)

4. Your name and signature

By signing this form, you confirm that you have read this form and you understand the risks of making this investment as
identified in this form.

First and last name (please print):

Signature: Date:
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SECTION 5 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SALESPERSON

5. Salesperson information

[Instruction: The salesperson is the person who meets with, or provides information to, the purchaser with respect to making this
investment. That could include a representative of the issuer or selling security holder, a registrant or a person who is exempt
Jrom the registration requirement.]

First and last name of salesperson (please print):

Telephone: Email:

Name of firm (if registered):

SECTION 6 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE ISSUER OR SELLING SECURITY HOLDER

6. For more information about this investment

For investment in a non-investment fund

2052227 Alberta Ltd.

Suite 1250, 639 — S Ave Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 0M9
Alan (Ilan) Handelsman, President

403-668-1672

Han. fundco(@criteriumgroup.com

For investment in an investment fund

[Insert name of investment fund]

[Insert name of investment fund manager]

[Insert address of investment fund manager]

[Insert telephone number of investment fund manager]

[Insert email address of investment fund manager]

[If investment is purchased from a selling security holder, also

insert name, address, telephone number and email address of selling security holder here]

For more information about prospectus exemptions, contact your local securities regulator. You can find contact information at
www.securities-administrators.ca.

Form instructions:

1. This form does not mandate the use of a specific font size or style but the font must be legible.

2. The information in sections 1, 5 and 6 must be completed before the purchaser completes and signs the form.

3. The purchaser must sign this form. Each of the purchaser and the issuer or selling security holder must receive a copy of

this form signed by the purchaser. The issuer or selling security holder is required to keep a copy of this form for 8 years
after the distribution.

{W:/DOCS/7961.001/09/00542970.DOCX /} A-G




SCHEDULE "B"
REPRESENTATION LETTER - 45-106F4

Risk Acknowledgement
¢ [ acknowledge that this is a risky investment.
¢ [ am investing entirely at my own risk.

* No securities regulatory authority or regulator has evaluated or endorsed the merits of these securities or
the disclosure in the offering memorandum.

s The person selling me these securities is not registered with a securities regulatory authority or regulator
and has no duty to tell me whether this investment is suitable for me.

e I will not be able to sell these securities except in very limited circumstances. 1 may never be able to sell
these securities.

e [ could lose all the money I invest.
I am investing § [total consideration] in total; this includes any amount I am obliged to pay in

Juture. 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. will pay up to % of this subscription amount to
[name of person/company selling the securities] as a fee or

commission.

I acknowledge that this is a risky investment and that I could lose all the money I invest.

Date Signature of Purchaser

Print name of Purchaser

Sign 2 copies of this document. Keep one copy for your records.

You have 2 business days to cancel your purchase. To do so, send a notice to 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. stating
that you want to cancel your purchase. You must send the notice before midnight on the 2nd business day after you
sign the agreement to purchase the securities. You can send the notice by fax or email or deliver it in person to
2052227 ALBERTA LTD. at its business address. Keep a copy of the notice for your records.

Issuer Name and Address:

2052227 Alberta Ltd. COPY FOR THE CORPORATION:
PLEASE EXECUTE AND RETURN

Suite 1250, 6395 Ave Avenue SW THIS COPY TO THE CORPORATION

Calgary, Alberta, T2P O0M9 IN__ACCORDANCE __ WITH _ THE

Alan (Ilan) Handelsman, President INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED FOR ON

403-668-1672 PAGE 2 OF THE SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT,

ilan. fundco@criteriumeroup.com
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You are buying Exempt Market Securities

They are called exempt market securities because two parts of securities law do not apply to them. If an issuer wants
to sell exempt market securities to you:

» the issuer does not have to give you a prospectus (a document that describes the investment in detail and
gives you some legal protections), and

e the securities do not have to be sold by an investment dealer registered with a securities regulatory
authority or regulator.

There are restrictions on your ability to resell exempr market securities. Exempt market securities are more risky
than other securities.

You will receive an offering memorandum
Read the offering memorandum carefully because it has important information about the issuer and its securities.
Keep the offering memorandum because you have rights based on it. Talk to a lawyer for details about these rights.

The securities you are buying are not listed
The securities you are buying are not listed on any stock exchange, and they may never be listed. You may never be
able to sell these securities.

The issuer of your securities is a non-reporting issuer
A non-reporting issuer does not have to publish financial information or notify the public of changes in its business.

You will not receive ongoing information about this issuer.

For more information on the exempt market, call your local securities regulatory authority or regulator.

ALBERTA SECURITIES COMMISSION MANITOBA SECURITIES COMMISSION
Suite 600, 250 — 5™ Street SW. 500 — 400 St. Mary Avenue

Calgary, Alberta Winnipeg, Manitoba

T2P OR4 R3C 4W5

(403) 297-6454 (204) 945-2548

www albertasecuritiescommission.com www.msc.gov.mb.ca

BRITISH COLUMBIA SECURITIES COMMISSION ONTARIO SECURITIES COMMISSION

701 West Georgia Street 20 Queen Street West, Suite 1903
Vancouver, British Columbia Toronto, Ontario

V7Y IL2 MS5H 358

(604) 899-6500 (416) 593-8314

www.bcsc.be.ca WWW.0SC.o0V.0n.ca

SASKATCHEWAN SECURITIES COMMISSION
Suite 601, 1919 Saskatchewan Drive

Regina, Saskatchewan

S4P 4H2

(306) 787-5645

www.sfsc.gov.sk.ca/
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REPRESENTATION LETTER - 45-106F4

Risk Acknowledgement
* [ acknowledge that this is a risky investment.
¢ | am investing entirely at my own risk.

¢ No securities regulatory authority or regulator has evaluated or endorsed the merits of these securities or
the disclosure in the offering memorandum. :

o  The person selling me these securities is not registered with a securities regulatory authority or regulator
and has no duty to tell me whether this investment is suitable for me.

¢ [ will not be able to sell these securities except in very limited circumstances. I may never be able to sell
these securities.

e I could lose all the money I invest.
I am investing $ [total consideration] in total; this includes any amount I am obliged to pay in

Suture. 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. will pay up to % of this subscription amount fto
[name of person/company selling the securities] as a fee or

commission.

I acknowledge that this is a risky investment and that I could lose all the money I invest.

Date Signature of Purchaser

Print name of Purchaser

Sign 2 copies of this document. Keep one copy for yvour records.

You have 2 business days to cancel your purchase. To do so, send a notice to 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. stating
that you want to cancel your purchase. You must send the notice before midnight on the 2nd business day after you
sign the agreement to purchase the securities. You can send the notice by fax or email or deliver it in person to
2052227 ALBERTA LTD. at its business address. Keep a copy of the notice for your records.

Issuer Name and Address:

2052227 Alberta Ltd. COPY FOR THE SUBSCRIBER:
PLEASE EXECUTE AND RETAIN

Suite 1250, 639 —~ 5 Ave Avenue SW THIS COPY FOR YOUR

Calgary, Alberta, T2P 0OM9 RECORDS.
Alan (1lan) Handelsman, President
403-668-1672

ilan. fundco@gcriteriumgroup.com
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You are buying Exempt Market Securities

They are called exempt market securities because two parts of securities law do not apply to them. If an issuer wants
to sell exempt market securities to you:

¢ the issuer does not have to give you a prospectus (a document that describes the investment in detail and
gives you some legal protections), and

e the securities do not have to be sold by an investment dealer registered with a securities regulatory
authority or regulator.

There are restrictions on your ability to resell exempt market securities. Exempt market securities are more risky
than other securities.

You will receive an offering memorandum
Read the offering memorandum carefully because it has important information about the issuer and its securities.
Keep the offering memorandum because you have rights based on it. Talk to a lawyer for details about these rights.

The securities you are buying are not listed
The securities you are buying are not listed on any stock exchange, and they may never be listed. You may never be

able to sell these securities.
The issuer of your securities is a non-reporting issuer
A non-reporting issuer does not have to publish financial information or notify the public of changes in its business.

You will not receive ongoing information about this issuer.

For more information on the exempt market, call your local securities regulatory authority or regulator.

ALBERTA SECURITIES COMMISSION MANITOBA SECURITIES COMMISSION
Suite 600, 250 — 5™ Street SW. 500 — 400 St. Mary Avenue

Calgary, Alberta Winnipeg, Manitoba

T2P OR4 R3C 4W5

{403) 297-6454 (204) 945-2548
www.albertasecuritiescommission.com www.msc.cov.mb.ca

BRITISH COLUMBIA SECURITIES COMMISSION ONTARIO SECURITIES COMMISSION

701 West Georgia Street 20 Queen Street West, Suite 1903
Vancouver, British Columbia Toronto, Ontario

V7Y 1L2 M5H 358

(604) 899-6500 (416) 593-8314

www.bcsc.be.ca WWW.0SC.g0V.0n.ca

SASKATCHEWAN SECURITIES COMMISSION
Suite 601, 1919 Saskatchewan Drive

Regina, Saskatchewan

S4P 4H2

(306) 787-5645

www.sfsc.gov.sk.ca/
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SCHEDULE "C"

CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBLE INVESTOR
TO: 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. (the "Corporation'")

(Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Schedule have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription
Agreement to which this Schedule is attached)

In connection with the purchase of Common Shares of the Corporation, the undersigned hereby represents, warrants
and certifies to the Corporation that the undersigned is an "eligible investor" as defined in Section 1.1 of National
Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions and is purchasing the securities offered hereunder as principal.

The undersigned has indicated below the category or categories which it, he or she satisfies to qualify as an "eligible
mmvestor". [f not an individual, the undersigned was not created or used solely to purchase or hold securities as an
"eligible investor".

The undersigned fully understands the meaning of the terms and conditions of the category of "eligible investor"
applicable to it and confirms that it has reviewed and understands the definitions in this Certificate in respect of the
category of "eligible investor" applicable to it.

If the undersigned is an "eligible investor' by virtue of satisfying paragraph (f) below as an "accredited
investor™, it acknowledges that it must complete and sign Schedule "A" to the Subscription Agreement.

The undersigned understands that the Corporation and its respective counsel are relying on this information in
determining to sell securities to the undersigned in a manner exempt from the prospectus and registration
requirements of the securities legislation in the jurisdiction in which the undersigned is a resident.

Upon execution of this Certificate by the undersigned Subscriber, this Certificate shall be incorporated into and form
a part of the Subscription Agreement.

ELIGIBLE INVESTOR STATUS
The undersigned represents, warrants and certifies that it, he or she is {initial each applicable item]:

(a) a person whose:

@) net assets, alone or with a spouse, in the case of an individual, exceed $400,000, /Note:
your "net assets" are your total assets (including real estate) minus your total debt]

(ii) net income before taxes exceeded $75,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years
and who reasonably expects to exceed that income level in the current calendar year, or

(1i1) net income before taxes, alone or with a spouse, in the case of an individual, exceeded
$125,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who reasonably expects to
exceed that income level in the current calendar year,

(b) a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by eligible investors,
or a majority of the directors are eligible investors,

(c) a general partnership of which all of the partners are eligible investors,
(d) a limited partnership of which the majority of the general partners are eligible investors,
(e) a trust or estate in which all of the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees or executors are

eligible investors,
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Name and Title Percentage of Securities

Note: If you initialed & marked (b), (c), (d) or (e), then indicate the name and category of
eligible investor (by reference to the applicable item above) as follows (attach additional pages
if required):

(1) list all owners of voting securities (and % owned) if relying on security holders as Eligible
Investors or list all of the directors if relying on the majority of directors as eligible investors

(2) list all partners

(3) list all general partners

(4) list all beneficiaries, trustees and executors

Attach supporting documentation affirming the owners of voting securities (and % owned)
such as an Annual Return or a certified list of shareholders.

Category of Eligible
Investor

_®

(9

an accredited investor, as such term is defined in NI 45-106, and it has concurrently completed,
signed and delivered a Representation Letter in the form of Schedule "A' this Subscription
Agreement indicating the applicable category or categories,

a person who purchases the security as principal and is:

@) a director, executive officer or control person of the Corporation or of an affiliate of the
Corporation,
(i1) a spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of a director, executive

officer or control person of the Corporation, or of an affiliate of the Corporation,

(iit) a parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of the spouse of a director,
executive officer or control person of the Corporation, or of an affiliate of the
Corporation,

(iv) a close personal friend of a director, executive officer or control person of the

Corporation, or of an affiliate of the Corporation,

(v) a close business associate of a director, executive officer or control person of the
Corporation, or of an affiliate of the Corporation,

(vi) a founder of the Corporation or a spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child,
grandchild, close personal friend or close business associate of a founder of the
Corporation,

(vii) a parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of the spouse of a founder of the
Corporation,

(viii)  a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by, or a
majority of the directors are, persons or companies described in paragraphs (i) to (vii), or

(ix) a trust or estate of which all of the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees or executors
are persons described in paragraphs (i) to (vii), or
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(h) a person that has obtained advice regarding the suitability of the investment and, if the person or
company is resident in a jurisdiction of Canada, that advice has been obtained from an eligibility
adviser. "Eligibility Advisor" means a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an
equivalent category of registration under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of the
purchaser and authorized to give advice with respect to the type of security being distributed, and
in Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law society
of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an
institute or association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified
management accountants in a jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant
(A) does not have a professional, business or personal relationship with the Corporation, or any of
the directors, executive officers, founders or control persons of the Corporation, and (B) has not
acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director,
associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the Corporation or any of the
Corporation's directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12
months.

{If you fall within this category, please indicate in the space below the name, title and firm of
the investment dealer, securities dealer or equivalent from whem yeu obtained advice:

The undersigned has executed this Questionnaire as of the day of ,201
If a Corporation, Partnership or Other Entity: If an Individual:

Name of Entity Signature

Type of Entity Named Individual

Signature of Person Signing

Title of Person Signing

As used in this certificate, the following terms have the following meaning:

"affiliate" means an issuer connected with another issuer because (i) one of them is the subsidiary of the other; (ii) each of them
is controlled by the same person; or (iii) for the purposes of Saskatchewan securities law, both are subsidiaries of the same issuer.

"close personal friend” is an individual who has known the director, executive officer, founder or control person well enough
and for a sufficient period of time to be in a position to assess their capabilities and trustworthiness. The term "close personal
friend" can include family members not already specifically identified in the exemption if the family member satisfies the criteria
described above.

An individual is not a close personal friend solely because the individual is a relative or a member of the same organization,
association or religious group or a client, customer or former client or customer.

The relationship between the purchaser and director, executive officer, founder or control person must be direct. For example,
the exemption is not available for a close personal friend of a close personal friend of the director, executive officer, founder or
control person.

"close business associate” is an individual who has had sufficient prior business dealings with the director, executive officer,
founder or control person to be in a position to assess their capabilities and trustworthiness.

An individual is not a close business associate solely because the individual is a client, customer or former client or customer.

The relationship between the purchaser and director, executive officer, founder or control person must be direct. For example,
the exemption is not available for a close business associate of a close business associate of a director, executive officer, founder
or control person.
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"control person” means any person that holds or is one of a combination of persons that holds:

(a)

(b

a sufficient number of any of the securities of the Corporation so as to affect materially the control of the Corporation;
or

more than 20% of the voting shares of the Corporation except where there is evidence showing the holding of the
shares does not affect materially the control of the Corporation.

“director” means (i) a member of the board of directors of a company or an individual who performs similar functions for a
company, and (ii) with respect to a person that is not a company, an individual who performs functions similar to those of a
director of a company.

"executive officer" means, for the Corporation, an individual who is:

(a)
(b)
(©

(d)

a chair, vice-chair or president;
a vice-president in charge of a principal business unit, division or function including sales, finance or production,

an officer of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries and who performs a policy-making function in respect of the
Corporation, or :

performing a policy-making function in respect of the Corporation.

"founder” means a person or company who,

(a)

(b)

acting alone, in conjunction or in concert with one or more other persons or companies, directly or indirectly, takes the
initiative in founding, organizing or substantially reorganizing the business of the Corporation, and

at the time of the proposed trade, is actively involved in the business of the Corporation.

"person" includes:

(@)
()
(c)

(d)

an individual;
a corporation;

a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons, whether
incorporated or not; and

an individual or other person in that person's capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other legal
representative.
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SCHEDULE "D"

Each Subscriber who is an Alberta, Saskatchewan or Ontario resident and who is subscribing as an individual
under the offering memorandum exemption is required to complete and execute two copies of each of Exhibit
1 and Exhibit 2 to this Schedule "D", retaining one copy for its records.

EXHIBIT 1 TO SCHEDULE "D"
Classification of Investors Under the Offering Memorandum Exemption

Instructions: This Exhibit 1 of Schedule "D" must be completed together with the Risk Acknowledgement Form (Schedule "B")
and Exhibit 2 to Schedule "D" by individuals purchasing securities under the exemption (the offering memorandum
exemption) in subsection 2.9(2.1) of National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions (NI 45-106) in Alberta, Saskatchewan

and Ontario.
How you qualify to buy securities under the offering memorandum exemption

Initial the statement under A, B, C or D containing the criteria that applies to you. (You may initial more than one
statement.) If you initial a statement under B or C, you are not required to complete A.

SAn) Ir.y"

AnYHAl!

R OIHLCENEiiblc investor because:

Your net income before taxes was more than $75,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and
you expect it to be more than $75,000 in this calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes
on your personal income tax return.)

Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse's was more than $125,000 in each of the
2 most recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income to be more than $125,000 in
this calendar year. (You can find your net income before taxes on your personal income tax return.)

ELIGIBLE INVESTOR

Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than $400,000. (Your net
assets are your total assets, including real estate, minus your total debt including any mortgage on
your property.)

B. You are an eligible investor, as a QIEISORSIESERHEARNICEE S AT rye T Or B TN 12 S (N E

applicable in Ontario, subsection 7.3 (ATEhaN e b /S SR EEHI AT

HUSES

Your net income before taxes was more than $200,000 in each of the 2 most recent calendar years, and
you expect it to be more than $200,000 in this calendar year. (You can find your net income before
taxes on your personal income tax return.)

Your net income before taxes combined with your spouse's was more than $300,000 in each of the
2 most recent calendar years, and you expect your combined net income before taxes to be more than
$300,000 in the current calendar year.

ACCREDITED
INVESTOR

Either alone or with your spouse, you own more than $1 million in cash and securities, after
subtracting any debt related to the cash and securities.

Either alone or with your spouse, you have net assets worth more than $5 million. (Your net
assets are your total assets (including real estate) minus your total debt.)
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fou are an eligible ig Tins > | Fanuly, £
1 45-106, hecause: inifiale

You are:

[check all applicable boxes]

a director of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer

an executive officer of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer
a control person of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer

a founder of the issuer

ooogs

OR

[check all applicable boxes]

a person of which a majority of the voting securities are beneficially owned by, or a

majority of the directors are, (i) individuals listed in (1) above and/or (ii) family

members, close personal friends or close business associates of individuals listed in

(1) above

0 a trust or estate of which all of the beneficiaries or a majority of the trustees or
executors are (i) individuals listed in (1) above and/or (ii) family members, close
personal friends or close business associates of individuals listed in (1) above

Oow

You are a family member of [Instruction: Insert the name
of the person who is your relative either directly or through his or her spouse], who holds the
following position at the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer:

You are the of that person or that person's spouse.
[Instruction: To qualify for this investment, you must be (a) the spouse of the person listed above or
(b) the parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild of that person or that person's

FaMiLy, FRIENDS AND BUSINESS
ASSOCIATES

spouse.]

You are a close personal friend of [Instruction: Insert the name
of your close personal friend], who holds the following position at the issuer or an affiliate of the
issuer:

You have known that person for years.

You are a close business associate of [Instruction: Insert the
name of your close business associate], who holds the following position at the issuer or an affiliate of
the issuet:

You have known that person for years.

VTR I

Elnot an eligible investor.

You acknowledge that you are not an eligible investor.

)

)

El:ﬂ

ol <

zZ >

< Z -
E_‘hli

Q

z
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EXHIBIT 2 TO SCHEDULE "D"
Investment Limits for Investors Under the Offering Memorandum Exemption

Instructions: This Exhibit 2 of Schedule "D" must be completed together with the Risk Acknowledgement Form (Schedule "B")
and Exhibit | to Schedule "D" by individuals purchasing securities under the exemption (the offering memorandum exemption)
in subsection 2.9(2.1) of National Instrument 43-106 Prospectus Exemptions (NI 43-106) in Alberta, Saskatchewan and Ontario.

SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PURCHASER

1. Investment limits you are subject to when purchasing securities under the offering memorandum exemption

You may be subject to annual investment limits that apply to all securities acquired under the offering memorandum exemption
in a 12 month period, depending on the criteria under which you qualify as identified in Exhibit 1. Initial the statement that
applies to you.

: ; sy s Your
A. You are an eligible investor. .
: initials

memorandum exemption investments made in the previous 12 months, unless you have received
advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market dealer, as identified in section 2
of this Exhibit 2, that your investment is suitable.

Initial one of the following statements:

You confirm that, after taking into account your investment of $ today in this issuer,
you have not exceeded your investment limit of $30,000 in all offering memorandum exemption
investments made in the previous 12 months.

ELIGIBLE
INVESTOR

You confirm that you received advice from a portfolio manager, investment dealer or exempt market
dealer, as identified in section 2 of this schedule that the following investment is suitable.

You confirm that, after taking into account your investment of § today in this issuer,
you have not exceeded your investment limit in all offering memorandum exemption investments
made in the previous 12 months of $100,000.

= ) DRl LI CRDUESTOY: ! oS Cri DR T e T LI
h A IMEARICIS D! a0 L L0 SN TP SSI

b eIt
You acknowledge that, by qualifying as an eligible investor as a person described in section 2.3
[Accredited investor}, you are not subject to investment limits.

RN Sl o0 VeSO IO LN A (1G5 T o

ACCREDITED
INVESTOR

€ N 2P AR PN o T ) G DT Tl SN 000 S 0800, e FTFL b (TR 1075 i om0 Sy

11;? '?S:'— Lx}I;K”J‘}

PR

You acknowledge that, by qualifying as an eligible investor as a person described in section 2.5
[Family, friends and business associates}], you are not subject to investment limits.

FAMILY, FRIENDS AND
BUSINESS ASSOCIATES
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D. You are not an eligible investor.

NoOT AN ELIGIBLE
INVESTOR

made in the previous 12 months.

You acknowledge that you cannot invest more than $10,000 in all offering memorandum exemption
investments made in the previous 12 months.

You confirm that, after taking into account your investment of $
have not exceeded your investment limit of $10,000 in all offering memorandum exemption investments

today in this issuer, you

SECTION 2 TO BE COMPLETED BY THE REGISTRANT

2, Registrant information

[Instruction. this section must only be completed if an invesior has received advice from a portfolio manager, investment
dealer or exempt market dealer concerning his or her investment.]

First and last name of registrant (please print):

Registered as:

[Instruction: indicate whether registered as a dealing representative or advising representative)

Telephone:

Email:

Name of firm:

[Instruction: indicate whether registered as an exempt market dealer, investment dealer or portfolio manager.)

Date:

{W:/DOCS/7961.001/09/00542970.DOCX /}

D-4




SCHEDULE "E"

ELIGIBLE INVESTOR SUPPORTING CHECKLIST

To be completed by the person meeting with or providing information to the Subscriber (the "Salesperson”) that is subscribin
34 p g 1Z g 4 g
or securities as an "eligible investor”. The issuer is required to keep a copy of this form and any supporting documentation
8! q 74 Py Yy supp g

(if any was received) for 8 years after the distribution.

1. Subscriber Information

Name of Subscriber:

Issuer: 2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

Name of representative of Subscriber (for non-
individual Subscribers):

Security: Common Shares

2. Salesperson Information

Print first and last name of Salesperson:

Date:

3. Support for Eligible Investor Status

(a) Describe how the Subscriber was identified or located:
(b) How long have you known the Subscriber?
(¢) Describe the details of your relationship with the Subscriber or prior business dealings:
(d) Indicate the category or categories of "eligible investor” that the Subscriber certified apply to
the Subscriber in the Subscriber's subscription agreement in the box on the right.
Note: If the category of "eligible investor" is based on a financial threshold, then ask the Subscriber whether | Subscriber Category
the Subscriber has "net income before taxes", "net assets” or "financial assels" (as applicable) that exceed Note: indi "
; . . . ole: indicate the
the applicable threshold and explain that. paragraph(s) indicated
"financial assets” are cash and securities, after subtracting any debt related to the cash and securities. on Schedule "C" of the
Subscriber's Subscription
"net assets” are total assets (including real estate) minus the Subscriber’s total debt; and Agreement
"net income before taxes" is available on the Subscriber’s tax returns.
(e) Did the Subscriber appear to understand the category or categories of "eligible investor” that the ] ]
Subscriber certified apply to the Subscriber, including, if applicable, the definition of "net
income", "financial assets" or "net assets"? Yes No
Note: Ask the Subscriber questions regarding the Subscriber's net income before taxes, net assets and/or| Note: Only complete (1)
Sinancial assets (as applicable) to determine that the Subscriber meets or exceeds the financial threshold in| ”79" answer 1o Part
the applicable category of eligible investor. (e) is "no”.
(f) Do the Subscriber's initial responses to the questions asked in part (e} seem reasonable, including ] ]
whether the Subscriber meets the category of "eligible investor” that the Subscriber certified on the| .
subscription agreement? Yes No
Note: If "no", make further inquiries regarding the Subscriber's financial circumstances and if the| Note: Only complete ()
response to this part (f) remains "no'" then you must complete part (g) to proceed with the subscription. ’{ ) ’f’e" answer 1o Part
e/ 1s ho.
(g ' then ask the Subscriber to show supporting documentation to

support the Subscriber's status as an "eligible investor” and describe the supporting documentation below:
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SCHEDULE "F"

SUPPORT LETTER

The undersigned, being an investor in at least one of Prism Horizon, Prism Heritage, Prism Broadmoor, Prism
Summerside or Prism Place (collectively "Prism Group"), acknowledges and confirms as follows:

l.

The undersigned supports the engagement of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP ("BLG") as counsel to
represent 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. ("205") and its investors, together with such other investors in Prism
Group as may wish to retain BLG, in relation to the investor claims against Prism Group (the
"Claims");

The undersigned supports the engagement of TingleMerrett LLP ("TM") as counsel to represent 205 and
its investors in relation to 205’s corporate matters;

The undersigned supports the engagement of Criterium Group (or its affiliates) (collectively, "CG") as
consultants to 205 and its investors, wherein CG will assist 205, BLG, TM and investors in Prism Group
with respect to the Claims, corporate matters, financial review, investor relations, communications and
other related matters;

The undersigned supports the payment of all reasonable fees and expenses of BLG, TM and CG;

The undersigned supports the recovery of all reasonable costs and expenses of 205 (along with an added
interest expense of up to 10%) from any realizations recovered on the Claims or from Prism Group or
Prism Group’s assets;

The undersigned has subscribed for Class "A" common shares in 205 and supports the current directors
and management team of 205 as it is presently constituted and further supports the directors and
management of 205 in providing funding, guidance and direction to BLG, TM and CG in relation to the
Claims, the settlement of Claims and corporate matters;

The undersigned supports the creation of a governance charter substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A to Schedule "F" within 205 that will dictate how 205 will: (i) fund, guide and direct BLG, TM,
CG and any other advisors; (i) pursue and settle any Claims; and (ii) pursue any other related corporate
matters and further funding of 205;

The undersigned supports and grants management of 205 the right and ability to pursue and settle all
Claims on behalf of the undersigned,

The undersigned consents to the dissemination of information updates to the undersigned from CG,
BLG or TM and agrees to be subject to appropriate agreements to ensure that confidentiality is maintained
and legal privilege is protected in respect of information provided in that regard.

The undersigned confirms that by signing this support letter it is not retaining BLG or TM, and that any such
retainer will be subject to a formal retainer agreement.

Name of Subscriber (please print)

By:

Authorized Signature

Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above different than name of Subscriber)

DATED at this day of , 201
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EXHIBIT A TO SCHEDULE "F"
2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

GOVERNANCE
CHARTER

ADOPTION

Further to the support letters as executed by the shareholders of 2052227 ALBERTA LTD. (the "Corporation"),
this charter (the "Charter") was approved by the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Corporation on the date
noted at the conclusion hereof.

PURPOSE

This Charter governs the operations of the Board of the Corporation. As part of the Corporation's governance and
oversight process, the Board has agreed to develop and implement certain governance procedures.

COMPOSITION

The Board shall initially be comprised of three (3) members. The Board’s initial members must be prior investors in
one or more of the Prism Group ("Prism"), with a goal of having representation on the Board from investors from
each of the Prism Group entities. The Board shall identify prospective new directors, interview them and otherwise
review their suitability to serve. A new director will be appointed or included in the Corporation's proxy materials
only on the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board present at a duly called and constituted Board meeting.
Criteria for Board membership shall require that such person is a prior investor in Prism and also include integrity,
intellect, business experience, and individual skills and competencies taken in the context of those of the Board as a
whole. Any Board member may resign at any time. Subject to the provisions in the Business Corporations Act
(Alberta) (the "Act"), the shareholders of the Corporation may by ordinary resolution at a meeting of shareholders
remove any director or directors of the Corporation. The filing of vacancies created as a result of a removal or
resignation shall be conducted in accordance with the Act.

"ordinary resolution" means a resolution (i) passed by a majority of the votes cast by the shareholders who voted in
respect of a resolution, or (ii) signed by all the shareholders entitled to vote on that resolution.

“Prism Group" means Prism Horizon, Prism Heritage, Prism Broadmoor, Prism Summerside and Prism Place.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The primary duties and responsibilities are to review and make recommendations in respect of pursuing
investigative measures and possibly litigation in relation to the Prism Group. The Board will be responsible for the
following:

1. determining the size and composition of the Board, when necessary or appropriate,
2. the calling and oversight of meetings of shareholders of the Corporation;
3. providing instructions and direction and decision surrounding funding in relation to any and all

investigative proceedings, court actions or other proceedings or actions in respect of the Prism Group with
a goal of the protecting, preserving or recovering principal amounts, interest and all other amounts owing
to the investors of the Prism Group (including the shareholders of the Corporation) or damages in lieu
thereof including such further amounts as shall be sufficient to cover the costs and expenses of collection
thereof, including the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances incurred by the
Corporation (along with an added interest expense of up to 10%) (collectively, the “Court Proceedings”);

4, when relevant and advisable, communicating with its shareholders in regards to the status, strategy and
direction of any Court Proceedings;

5. pursuing and making final determinations in regards to the settlement or other resolution of any Court
Proceedings;

6. retaining of, and giving directions to, experts, advisors, counsel, agents and service providers in relation to

Court Proceedings;

7. entering into service or consulting agreements;
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8. subject to applicable securities laws, pursuing additional Prism Group investors as shareholders of the
Corporation; and

9. communicating to the shareholders of the Corporation and investors of Prism Group as appropriate from
time to time with respect to all of the foregoing matters.

The Board shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not incur any liability for relying upon, any notice, request,
certificate, consent, statement, instrument, document or other writing (including any electronic message, internet, or
intranet posting or other distribution) believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed, sent or otherwise
authenticated by the proper person. The Board may also rely upon any statement made to it orally or by telephone
and believed by it to have been made by the proper person, and shall not incur any liability for relying thereon. The
Board may consult with counsel (who may be counsel for the Corporation), accountants, appraisers and other
experts or advisors selected by it, and shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it in accordance with
the advice of any such counsel, accountants, appraisers, experts, or advisors.

The Corporation agrees to indemnify each Board member and hold them harmless from and against any and all
losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related expenses, including the fees, charges and expenses under any service
or consulting agreements, together with the fees, charges and disbursements of any counsel, accountants, agents,
service providers, advisors or experts which may be incurred by or asserted against any Board member in any way
relating to or arising out of the transactions herein contemplated. However, the Corporation shall not be liable for
any portion of such losses, claims, damages, liabilities and related expenses resulting from any Board member’s
gross negligence or wilful misconduct.

In the exercise of the rights, duties and obligations prescribed or conferred hereunder, the Board members shall act
honestly and in good faith and exercise that degree of care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person
would exercise in comparable circumstances.

MEETINGS
I. The Board will meet at a minimum of four (4) times per year in conjunction with regular meetings of the
Board of Directors, or on a more frequent basis as is necessary carry out its responsibilities.
2. A meeting may be requested by the Board or any member of the Board.
3. At least two days' notice of each meeting of the Board shall be given to each Board member.
4. Notice of a meeting of shall:
(a) be in writing;
(b) state the nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting in reasonable detail; and
(©) to the extent practicable, be accompanied by copies of documentation to be considered at the
meeting.
S. A quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Board shall consist of a majority of the Board.
6. Any member of the Board may participate in a meeting of the Board by means of such telephonic,

electronic or other communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting to
communicate adequately with each other, and a member participating in such a meeting by any such means
is deemed to be present at the meeting.

7. The Chair of the Board (the "Chair") shall be appointed by the Board. The Chair shall have only those
responsibilities and powers delegated to it herein and shall not have a second or casting vote.

8. In the absence of the Chair of the Board, the members of the Board shall choose one of the Board members
present to be Chair of the meeting.

9. By invitation, other parties may attend meetings of the Board; however, the Board may meet separately at
any time.

10. Minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the Board and shall be signed by the Chair of the meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors on
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2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017



DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP Chartered Professional Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Directors of
2052227 Alberta Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 2052227 Alberta Ltd. (the “Company™), which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31,2018 and 2017, and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes
in equity and cash flows for the period from incorporation June 22, 2017 to December 31, 2017 and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 2052227 Alberta Ltd.
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from incorporation
June 22,2017 to December 31, 2017 and for the year ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which indicates that the Company is dependent on its ability to finance
its operations through financing activities that will include issuance of additional equity securities. As stated in Note 1, these
events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We have not been provided with any other information consequently we have nothing to report in this regard.

@ Nexia

= nternaticonal

£200 - 609 Granville Street, PO, Box 10372, Pacific Centre, Vancouser, B.C., Canada V7Y 166
Telephone (604) 687-0947 Davidson-co.com



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Peter Maloff.
“DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP”

Vancouver, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants

April 25,2019



2052227 Alberta Ltd.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
Current
Cash held in trust $ 440299 § 58,675
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 13,355 § 16,013
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 8) 6,000 6,000
19.355 22013
Equity
Share capital (Note 3) 886,429 324,800
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 8) 91,869 27,000
Deficit (557.354) (315,138)
420.944 36.662

$ 440299 § 58,675

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)
Commitments (Note 7)
Subsequent event (Note 8)

On behalf of the Board:

“Alan Handelsman”' Director “Owen Jackson” Director

See accompanying notes to financial statements



2052227 Alberta Ltd.
STATEMENT OF LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For the year For the period

ended from
December 31, incorporation
2018  June 22,2017 to
December 31,
2017
EXPENSES
Consulting fees $ 141,693 §$ 111,038
Insurance 8,100 8,100
Professional fees 91,889 194,376
Travel 534 1.624
Loss and comprehensive loss for the period $ 242216 § 315,138
Basic and diluted loss per share $ 0.41 $ 1.52
Basic and diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding 576,831 206,863

See accompanying notes to financial statements



2052227 Alberta Ltd.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Capital
Subscriptions
Number received in
of Shares Amount advance Deficit Total
Balance at incorporatien on June 22,2017 - -3 - - -
Loss for the period - - - (315,138) (315.138)
Transactions with owners, in their capacity as
owners, and other transfers:
Shares issued (Note 3) 354,800 354,800 - - 354,800
Share issuance costs (Note 3) - (30,000) - - (30,000)
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 3) - - 27,000 - 27,000
354,800 324.800 27.000 - 351.800
Balance at December 31, 2017 354,800 324,800 27,000 (315,138) 36,662
Loss for the year - - - (242.216) (242.166)
Transitions with owners, in their capacity, as owners,
and other transfers:
Shares issued (Note 3) 597,915 597,915 (27,000) - 570,915
Share issuance (Note 3) - (36,286) - - (36,286)
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 3) - - 91.869 - 91.869
597915 561,629 64.869 - 626.498
Balance at December 31, 2018 952,715 886,429 S 91,869 $ (557,354) $ 420,944

See accompanying notes to financial statements



2052227 Alberta Ltd.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year For the period
ended from
December 31, incorporation
2018  June 22,2017 to
December 31,
2017
Operating Activities
Loss for the period $ (242216) $ (315,138)
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,658) 16,013
Cash flow used in operating activities (244.874) (299.125)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from the issuance of share capital 564,915 354,800
Share issuance costs (36,286) (30,000)
Subscriptions received in advance 97.869 33,000
Cash flow from financing activities 626.498 357,800
Increase in cash flow 381,624 58,675
Cash — beginning of period 58,675 -
Cash — end of period $ 440,299 $ 58,675
Cash paid for interest $ - $ -
Cash paid for taxes $ - $ -

During the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 there were no significant non-cash investing or financing activities.

See accompanying notes to financial statements



2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

2052227 Alberta Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) on
June 22, 2017. The Company’s head office is located at 1250, 639 — 5% Avenue S.W., Calgary, AB T2P OM9. The
registered and records office address is 1250, 639 — 5 Avenue S.W., Calgary, AB T2P OM9.

The Company’s principal business activity is financing a lawsuit against management of five real estate development
entities: Prism Summerside; Prism Horizon, Prism Heritage; Prism Place; and, Prism Broadmoor. There is no
foreseeable revenue associated with the Company’s operations. The Company is incorporated for the sole purpose of
providing a special purpose entity for shareholders to commonly invest in the legal action to enforce their shareholder
rights against a common management team. Therefore, all funds raised from investors in the Company are to be used
for the management of the legal action, and associated corporate activity, including shareholder solicitation and
communication, legal fees and deposits, inspector fees and deposits, corporate filing and insurance fees, audit fees,
and other sundry matters necessitated as a result of regulatory oversight and legal requirements of the action.

The primary purpose of the Company is to fund the investigative measures and pursue litigation matters on behalf of
Prism Group investors. The Company is a funding vehicle that helps group together Prism Group investors. The
Company’s reasonable costs and expenses plus 10% thereon have been recognized by the Court as a preferential
payment obligation due firstly from the proceeds payable to the Prism Group investors as a result of any successful
litigation action against the Prism Group which was funded by the Company (the "Preferential Payments"). The only
sources of capital for the Company are the funds from investors in the Company (through the sale of common shares)
and any Preferential Payments it receives as a result of any successful litigation actions it funds. There are no other
business opportunities in the Company. The Company operates in one geographical location, being Alberta, Canada.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue as a going concern,
meaning it will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize assets and discharge liabilities
in the ordinary course of operations. The Company is dependent upon its ability to finance its operations through
financing activities that will include issuances of additional equity securities. While the Company has been successful
in obtaining its required financing in the past, there is no assurance that such financing will be available or be available
on favourable terms in the future.

These material uncertainties may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem.
The financial statements do not include adjustments to amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities that might
be necessary should the Company be unable to continue operations.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements were authorized for issuance on April 25, 2019 by the directors of the Company.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). These financial
statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historical costs, modified where applicable. The
financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted, which is the functional currency of the

Company.



2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont'd...)
Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual
outcomes can differ from these estimates.

The Company considers the recognition and disclosure of deferred tax assets as an area of significant judgment and
estimate. Assumptions are made where actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Company estimates that no deferred tax assets will ever be recognized as the Company is a funding vehicle
structured as an agent for the Prism Group investors. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset disclosures are made.

Loss per share

The Company presents basic loss per share for its common shares, calculated by dividing the loss attributable to
common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted loss per share does not adjust the loss attributable to common shareholders or the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding when the effect is anti-dilutive.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as either financial assets at affair value through profit or loss, amortized cost, or fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) - financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they
do not meet the criteria of amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. Changes in fair value are
recognized in profit and loss.

Amortized cost — financial assets are classified as measured at amortized cost if both of the following criteria are met
and the financial assets are not designated as FVTPL: 1) The objective of the Company’s business model for these
financial assets is to collect their contractual cash flows; and 2) the assets contractual cash flow represents solely
payments of principal and interest.

The Company’s cash is recorded at FVTPL. The Company’s receivables are recorded at amortized cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses all information available, including on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses
associated with its assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as the reporting date, with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition, based on all information available, and reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.



2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont'd... )
Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories, depending on the purpose for which the
liability was incurred. The Company's accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss - This category comprisés derivatives, or liabilities acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit and loss.

The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit and loss. The Company’s accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are classified at amortized cost.

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into one of the three levels in the fair value hierarchy
according to the relative reliability of the inputs used to estimate the fair values. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are:

Level | — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 — Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

See Note 4 for relevant disclosures.
New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted

We have adopted the new IFRS pronouncement for financial instruments as at January 1, 2018, in accordance with
the transitional provisions outlined in the respective standard and described below. The adoption of the new IFRS
pronouncement has not resulted to adjustments in previously reported figures and no change to the opening deficit
balance as at January 1, 2018, under the IFRS 9 transition provisions.

New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing have been issued by the IASB or IFRIC that are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning after January 1, 2019, or later periods. Updates that are not applicable
or are not consequential to the Company have been excluded in the standards listed below.

The Company anticipates that the application of these standards, amendments, revisions and interpretations will not
have a material impact on the results and financial position of the Company.

IFRS 16 Leases

This standard replaces IAS 17 — Leases and its associated interpretative guidance. IFRS 16 applies a control model to
the identification of leases, distinguishing between a lease and a service contract on the basis of whether the customer
controls the asset being leased. For those assets determined to meet the definition of a lease, IFRS 16 introduces
significant changes to the accounting by lessees, introducing a single, on-balance sheet accounting model that is
similar to current finance lease accounting, with limited exceptions for short-term leases or leases of low value assets.
Lessor accounting remains similar to current accounting practice. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019.



2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

3. SHARE CAPITAL
Share issuances
Authorized:
Unlimited common shares, without par value.

Issued and outstanding:

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued 597,915 common shares at a price of $1 per share for
gross proceeds of $597,915. The Company incurred $36,286 in share issuance costs associated with these issuances.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company issued 354,800 common shares at a price of $1 per share for
gross proceeds of $354,800. The Company incurred $30,000 in share issuance costs associated with these issuances.

Stock options and warrants

The Company has not issued any stock options or warrants and no stock options or warrants are outstanding as at
December 31, 2018 or December 31, 2017.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to minimal financial instrument related risks. The Board of Directors approves and monitors
the risk management processes, inclusive of documented investment policies, counterparty limits, and controlling and
reporting structures. The type of risk exposure and the way in which such exposure is managed is provided as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Company’s primary exposure to credit risk is on its cash held in trust by legal
counsel. This risk is managed by using a reputable law firm.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its obligations as they become due. The Company's
ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on management's ability to raise required funding through future
equity issuances. The Company manages its liquidity risk by forecasting cash flows from operations and anticipating
any investing and financing activities. Management and the Board of Directors are actively involved in the review,
planning and approval of significant expenditures and commitments.

Interest rate risk
The Company is not currently exposed to significant interest rate risk.
Capital Management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
such that it can provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Company considers the items
included in equity as capital. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust its
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, sell assets to settle liabilities or return capital to its shareholders.
The Company is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirements.



2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd...)
Fair value

The following is an analysis of the Company’s financial assets measured at fair value as at December 31, 2018 and

2017:
As at December 31, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash held in trust $ 440,299 $ ~ -
As at December 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash held in trust $ 58675 $ - -

The carrying value of accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of
these instruments.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Key Management Compensation

Key management personnel include the directors of the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Company had no related party transactions or balances owing.

6. INCOME TAXES

The Company does not calculate deferred tax credits on expenses incurred, against which no revenue is ever collected.
The primary purpose of the Company is to fund the investigative measures and pursue litigation matters on behalf of
investors in five Prism investment entities. The Company is a funding vehicle that helps group together investors in
five Prism investment entities. The Company will never receive revenue nor aim to make a profit. Furthermore, if no
proceeds are eventually received from litigation activities, the losses incurred by the Company will disappear with the
Company’s immediate dissolution.

7. COMMITMENTS

Criterium Merchant Capital (“Criterium”) is a service provider to the Company. Criterium has been engaged by the
Company to provide management, administrative, investigative and consulting services. The terms of compensation
between the Company and Criterium include a payout equal to 10% of any funds eventually received by the investors
in five Prism investment entities.

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to December 31, 2018, the Company issued 104,680 common shares upon receipt of $104,680 in
subscriptions of which $91,869 had been received as at December 31, 2018 and is presented as subscriptions received
in advance within equity. The Company has also received $6,000 as at December 31, 2018 for which no shares have
been issued.



ITEM 13 - DATE AND CERTIFICATE

DATED MAY 3,2019.

This Offering Memorandum does not contain a misrepresentation.
2052227 ALBERTA LTD.

"Alan (llan) Handelsman"

Alan (llan) Handelsman
President and Director

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

"Owen Jackson" "Clifford McAuley"
Owen Jackson Clifford McAuley
Treasurer and Director Secretary and Director
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This is EXHIBIT “D?” referred to
in the Affidavit of Ilan Handelsman

Sworn before me this 27th day of February 2020

)

Notary Public in and for British Columbia

YIENNA KAPPELL
NOTARY PUBLIC
201-2610 DOUGLAS STREET
VICTORIA BC VBT 4M1
TEL 250-382-888C

A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR
THE FROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
PERMANENT COMMISSION
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This is EXHIBIT “E” referred to
in the Affidavit of Ilan Handelsman
Sworn before me this 27th day of February 2020
“~—

Notary Public in and for British Columbia

A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR
THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
PERMANENT COMMISSION

YVIENNA KAPPELL
NOTARY PUBLIC
201-2610 DOUGLAS STREET
VICTORIA BC VBT 4M1
TEL 250-282-8380
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COURT FILE
NUMBER

COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE

PLAINTIFFS

1201-08069

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA

CALGARY

JOHN STARRATT, JOHM STARRATT AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, PAULA
HENRIQUES, PAULA HENRIQUES AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, COLIN BROWN,
COLIN BROWN AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, JOHM ADAMEK, JOHN ADAMEK AS
REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, DEEPAK SAINI, DEEPAK SAINI AS REPRESENTATIVE
PLAIMTIFF, WARREN NELSON, WARREN NELSON AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF,
KAREN SHADLOCK, KAREN SHADLOCK AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, PAUL
RADDER, PAUL RADDER AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, DON DENNIS, DON
DENNIS AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, SIMON OKKERSE, SIMON OKKERSE AS
~REPRESENTATIVE  PLAINTIFF, JAMIE OSHIPOK, JAMIE OSHIPOK AS
REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, BAR8 WILKINSON, BARB WILKINSON AS

Z‘; REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, SAM BACKLIN, SAM BACKLIN AS REPRESENTATIVE

PLAINTIFF, DINESH SAINI, DINESH SAINI AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, SIVA
KARATHOLUVU, SIVA KARATHOLUVU AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, PETER
MCGRAW, PETER MCGRAW AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, JOHN KINDRAT,
JOHN KINDRAT AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, CRAIG BISSCHOP, CRAIG
BISSCHOP AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, DALJIT CHOONGH, DALJT CHOONG
-AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, LEN GRANT, LEM GRANT AS REPRESENTATIVE

DEFENDANTS

PLAINTIFF and CHARMAINE GAUTREAU, CHARMAINE GAUTREAU AS
REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF, COLIN O'BRIEN, and COLIN O'BRIEN AS
REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF

RIAZ MAMDANI, SHARIFF H. CHANDRAN, also known as S.H. Chandran, Sti Chandran
and Srinivansan Chandran, JENNIFER CHERRY, CHITRA CHANDRAN, OPAL
INVESTMENT CORPORATION, PEWTER INVESTMENT CORPORATION, CITI CENTRE
IMVESTMENMTS INC., MULTUS INVESTMENT CORPORATION, BUILDING 906
INVESTMENTS  LTD., VENT! INVESTMENT CORPORATION, BUILDING 614
IMVESTMENT LTD., LUCROR INVESTMENT CORPORATION, DEERFOOT COURT
INVESTMENTS LTD., BARRON BUILDING REDUX LTD., LUCAYA REGISTERED
INVESTMENTS LTD., LUCAYA REGISTERED CAPITAL LTD., LUCAYA GENERAL
PARTNERSHIP, LUCAYA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, GREENWICH LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP, PLATINUM 5 ACRES AND A MULE INC., 1376261 ALBERTA LTD.,
GLENMORE AND CENTRE RETAIL GP LTD, GLENMORE AND CEMTRE LTD.,
GREENBRIAR PLACE REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED PARTNERSHIP,
GREENBRIAR HOLOINGS LTD., PLATINUM EQUITIES INC., ACCOLADE EQUITIES
INC., TRUST HAVEN INC., 1823703 ALBERTA LTD, STRATEGIC GRQUP OF
COMPAMIES, STRATEGIC EQUITY CORP., STRATEGIC ACQUISTION CORP,
STRATEGIC FINANCIAL CORP., QUALIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND I LIMITED
PARTMNERSHIP, QUALIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND LTD.. QUALIA REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND ! LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, QUALIA REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND 11 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, QUALIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT
FUND IV LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, QUALIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND V
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, QUALIA REAL ESTATE INVESTMEMT FUND VI LIMITED
PARTMERSHIP, OXFORD CAPITAL CORP., QUALIA VI INVESTMENTS LTD., QUALIA
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND VN LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, QUALIA REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND Vili LIMITED PARTMERSHIP, DEERFOOT COURT REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND LBMTED PARTNERSHIP, DEERFQOOT COURT
REGISTERED INVESTMENTS LTD., THORBURN CAPITAL CORPORATION,
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GLENMORE AND CENTRE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, GREENBRIAR REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, LANGDON CROSSING LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP, PLATINUM LANDS CORPORATION, PLATINUM MORTGAGE
INVESTMENT  CORPORATION I, PLATINUM  MORTGAGE  INVESTMENT
CORPORATION I, PLATINUM INVESTMENT TRUST, LEBEN REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT TRUST, ACCRETIVE ASSET MANAGEMENT CORP., C & N REALTY
MANAGEMENT LTD., FISH CREEK PARK LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, BARRY
PRITCHARD, DAVE HUMENIUK, PHILIP PINCUS and RYAN ROBERTSON

DOCUMENT ORDER
ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND MCGUIGAN NELSON LLP
CONTACT INFORMATION OF Barristers and Solicitors

PARTY FILING THIS DOCUMENT 300, 1550 - 8" Street SW,

Calgary, Alberta T2R 1K1
Phone; 403-265-7744 Fax; 403-265-7528
Attention: Kevin P. McGuigan

DATE ON WHICH ORDER WAS PRONOUNCED: June 3 , 2015

NAME OF JUDGE WHO MADE THIS ORDER: The Honourable Justice A.D. Maclead

ORDER

UPON THE APPLICATION OF THE PLAINTIFFS;

AND UPON HEARING counsel for the Plaintiffs (Class Counsel);

AND UPON HEARING counsel for the *Strategic Defendants™,

AND UPON HEARING counsel for the "Platinum Defendants":

AND UPON HEARING counsel for the “LLP Defendants”™,

AND UPON HEARING counsel for the Robertson Defendant;

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED THAT:

1.

Action 1201-08069 is certified as a class proceeding pursuant to the Class Proceedings Act, SA
2003, ¢ C-16.5, in accordance with the class, sub-classes and common issues set out in the
Amended Application for Certification, a copy of which is appended as Schedule "A" hereto (the
“Application”). The nature of the claims and relief sought on behalf of the class is set out in the
Amended Statement of Claim, filed September 17" 2012, a copy of which is appended as
Schedule "B" hereto.

The persons set out as representative plaintiffs in Paragraph § of the Application, attached as
Schedule "A" hereto, are hereby appointed as the representative plaintiffs for each of the sub-
classes.

Class Counsel shall give notice of this decision by issuing on or before June 30™, 2015, a notice
of certification in the form appended as Schedule "C" hereto (the Notice of Certification) by:
a. direct letter and/or email to all class members identified by corporate records;
b. direct letter and/or email to any class member who requests Notice of Certification from
Class Counsel; and;
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10.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT:
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c. posting the Notice of Certification on http://www.mnllp.ca (the Class Counsel's website
with a dedicated page for the purpose of communicating with class members).

The Defendant Shariff H. Chandran shall use reasonable effarts to provide a list of all class
members' last known e-mail and mailing addresses within 30 days of the granting of this order,
excluding those class members who investad in the L.eben Real Estate Investment Trust.

The Defendant Shariff H. Chandran or the Defendant Chitra Chandran shall provide Plaintiffs'
Class Counsel with the mass e-mail list used by Chitra Chandran to contact class members at the
commencement of this litigation. The Defendant Shariff H. Chandran or the Defendant Chitra
Chandran shall send an e-mail correspondence to the class members on the mass e-mail list,
and shall include the e-mail address for Plaintiffs' Class Counsel in the e-mail correspondence,
and shall inform those class members on the list of Plaintiffs’ Class Counsel's contact information.

The Defendant Leben Real Estate Investment Trust shall use reasonable effarts to provide a hst
of all class members' last known e-mail and mailing addresses within 30 days of the granting of
this order for those class members who invested in the Leben Real Estate Investment Trust.

Class members wishing to opt-out of this class proceeding may do so in accordance with the
following procedure:

a. Class members wishing to opt-out must provide Class Counsel, by email or letter, with
either a completed opt-out form, a form of which is appended as Schedule "D" hereto (the
Opt-Out Form), or a signed written request to opt out of the class proceeding
(collectively, the Opt-Out Request). A copy of the Opt-Out Form shall be appended to
the Notice of Certification; and

b. The Opt-Out Request must be provided to Class Counsel on or before September 30",
2015,

The Plaintiffs shall have costs in connection with this Application.

Costs of preparing and providing class members with the Notice of Certification and the Opt-Out
Form shall be determined by a further Order of this Court.

This Order may be approved in counterpart and by facsimile.

e A |

The Honourable Justice A.D. Macleod
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PLATINUM EQUITH=S CLASS ACTION

Notice of Certification

This Notice may affect your righls Please read it carafully.

WHATIS THE CLASS ACTION ABOUT? 15.Langdon {Condaminium Plan 0011878, Units 1, 5, 6, and
7)

On May 4th, 2015, the Alberta Court of Queen's Bench

(the Court) certified John Starratt et al v. Riaz Mamdani 16, Leben REIT (534 — 17" Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)
et al. (Action No. 1201-08069) as a class proceeding (the

Class Action). 17. Lucaya (1161 Sunset Drive, Kelowna, British Columbia)

The Class Action has 21 sub-classes and concerns 18 Platinumn Investment Trust
the following real-estate  developments, trusts, and
morigage corporations (referred to as ‘Investment {9 Piatinum Lands (Meridian 4, Range 27, Township 23,

Projects’). Section 8: SWINE/SE quarters 9, 17, NW/SW quarters)
1. Qualia 1 — Plaza 14 (811 — 14" Street NW, Calgary, 20. PMIC 1
Alberta) '
2. Qualia 2 — First Street Plaza (138 — 4th Avenue SE, 21. PMiC 2
Calgary, Alberta) The Class Action alleges, among other things, that the
) Defendants, individually or in combination, for the various
3. Qualia 3 ~ Eleven Eleven (1111~ 11" Avenue SW, investments for each sub-class:
Calgary, Alberta) o unlawfully canspired to benefit themselves;
. s were negligent and breached the terms of their
4. Qualia 4 - 926/Paralle] (926 ~ 5™ Avenue SW and 1040 respective agreements with Investors;
—- 7" Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta) o made misrepresentations in the offering memoranda
or other investment information given to Investors;
5. Qualia 5 — Dominion (906 -12¥ Avenue SW, Calgary, o Breached their fiduciary duties, where applicable, to
Alberta) Investars.
6. Qualia 6 — Sunpark/Pemberton (40 Sunpark Plaza The Class Action seeks for each investment pertaining to
Calgary, Alberta and 744 West Haslings Street, each sub-class, among other things:
Vancouver, British Columbia) e an accounting of every transaction and an award of
damages for investment proceeds that investors
7. Qualia 7 — Ithacan (614 ~ 6" Avenue SW, Calgary, should have received from the investment but did not;
Alberta) e The return of capital invested in each investment
which has not already been paid back;
8. Qualia 8 - Optima (744 — 4" Avenue SW, Calgary, s Damages representing income raised by the
Alberta) investment projects but not paid to investors;

o Special damages,

9. Barron Building (610 — 8" Street SW, Calgary, Alberta) » Punitive and aggravated damages;
o Pre-judgment interest.

10. Deerfoat Court (1144 ~ 29" Avenue NE, Calgary,

Alberta) HOW DO I KNOW IF 1 AM A MEMBER OF THE
CLASS?
1. Fish Creek West (37" Sireet and 146™ Avenue SW,
Calgary, Alberta) You are a member of this class if you:
(a)yinvested in one or more of the 21 investment projects
12. Franklin Crossing (1411 - 33" Street NE, Calgary, listed above; o
Alberta) (byhave not divested this investment or had your

investment funds returned in full; and

(c)are not adefendant to this Class Action or related
party (including a subsidiary, parent corporation,
officer or director of one of the defendant
companies, relative of an individual defendant, etc.)

13. Greenbriar (222 Greenbriar Place NW, Calgary,
Alberta)

14 Greenwich Park (17" Avenue & 85" Street SW,
Calgary, Alberta)



WHO ARE REPRESENTING MY INTERESTS?

The court has appointed the following persons as
Representative Plaintiffs for each Investment Project:

Qualia 1 - Plaza 14
John Starratt

Qualia 2 — First Street Plaza
Paula Henriques

Qualia 3 — Eleven Eleven
Colin Brown

Qualia 4 — 926/Parallel
Charmaine Bucknor

Qualia 5 — Dominion
Deepak Saini

Qualia 8 ~ Sunpark/Pemberton
Warren Nelson

Qualia 7 - lthican
Karen Shadlock

Qualia 8 — Optima
Paul Radder

Barron Building
Barb Wilkinson

Deerfoot Court
Jamie Oschipok

Fish Creek West
Colin O'Brien

Franklin Crossing
Sam Backlin

Greenbriar
Craig Bisschop

Greenwich Park
Donald Dennis

Langdon
Simon Okkerse

Leben REIT
Charmaine Bucknor

Lucaya
Simon Okkerse

Platinum Investment Trust
Simon QOkkerse

Platinum Lands
Len Grant

PMIC
Dinesh Saini

PMIC 2
Siva Karatholuvu

The Reprasentative Plaintiffs can be contacted c/o Class
Counse! (see contact information).

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR ME?

Automatic _inclusian: If you are a class member, and
you wish to participate in the Class Action, then you do
not need to do anything more at this stage. You are
automatically included in the class.

Fee arrangement: A number of investors have agreed to
fund the Class Action and pay asscociated legal costs and
disbursements and are considered “TIER 1" investors.
They will seek reimbursement of these expenses at a
settlement or judgment stage, and will be entitled to a
preferential share of any proceads aobtained for each sub-
class.  Any such reimbursement will require Court

approval.

Anv judgment or settlement will be binding on vou:
Each class membsr who does not opt-out of the Class
Action will be bound by the terms of any judgment onthe
commaon issues oranysettlement approved by the Court.

WHAT DO | DO _IF | DO NOT WANT TO
PARTICIPATE IN THE CLASS ACTION?

If you do not want to participate .in the Class Action, then
you must provide Class Counsel, by email or letter, a
completed Opt-Out Form or a signed written request to
opt-out of the class proceeding. Class Counsel's contact
information is set out below.

The deadline for opting out is September 30", 2015.
Investors who do not opt-out on or before this date will
be deamedtobe members of theclass.

WHO DO | CONTACT IF 1 HAVE QUESTIONS?

Information about the Class Action is available at
hito://www.mnllp.ca/current-cases/platinum-equities

If you have further questions, you can contact Class

Counsel.
McGuigan Nelson
300, 1550 — 8th Street S.W.
Calgary, Alberta T2R 1K1

E-mail: Kevin@mnllp.ca
Phone: 403.265.7744
Fax: 403.265.7528
Re. Platinum Equities Class Action-



puLE “D"
| SCHEDULE™D PLATINUM EQUITIES CLASS ACTION

OPT-OUT FORM

] THIS IS NOT A CLAIM FORM. Sign this form if you wish to EXCLUDE yourself from the
Platinum Equities Class Action litigation and any settlements or judgments related to that
W litigation. For more information on the Platinum Class Action, please visit:

http://www.mnllp.ca/current-cases/platinum-equities

. A completed opt-out form must be submitted to Class Counsel, postmarked no later than
September 301", 2015, at the following address:

] McGuigan Nelson
300, 1550 — 8th Street S\ W.
Calgary, Alberta T2R 1K1

E-mail: Kevin@mnlip.ca
Phone: 403.265.7744 "
Fax: 403.265.7528
Re: Platinum Equities Class Action

Please provide the following personal information. This wilt allow us to correctly register your
decision to apt-out of the Platinum Class Action.

Last Name: Middle Initial __ First Name

Company Name (if investment purchased

through a corporation)

Telephone Number: (W) (C)

E-mail address:

Mailing address: Unit Street City
Province Postal Code

Agreement and Understanding:

I understand that the Platinum Equities Class Action is brought on behalf of all persons who
invested in one or more of the following real estate investment schemes, excluding allpersons
who divested this investmentand had theirinvestmentfundsreturned infuil(the Investors™):



1. Qualia 1 —Plaza 14 (811 — 14t 11. Fish Creek West (37" Street

Street NW, Calgary, Alberta) and 146" Avenue SW, Calgary,
Alberta) ‘

2. Qualia 2 — First Street Plaza (138 -  12. Franklin Crossing (1411 331

4th Avenue SE, Calgary, Alberta) Street NE, Calgary, Alberta)

3. Qualia 3 - Eleven Eleven (1111- 11" 13. Greenbriar (222 Greenbriar

Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta) Place NW, Calgary, Alberta.)

4. Qualia 4 - 926/Parallel (926 — 5 14. Greenwich Park (17" Avenue

Avenue SW and 1040 - 7% Avenue SW, & 85 Street SW, Calgary, Alberta)
Calgary, Alberta.)

5. Qualia 5 - Dominion (906 -12t 15. Langdon (Condominium Plan
Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta) 0011878, Units 1, 5, 6, and 7)

6. Qualia 6 — Sunpark/Pemberton (40 16. Leben REIT (534 — 17th
Sunpark Plaza Calgary, Alberta and 744 Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)
West Hastings Street, Vancouver,

British Columbia)

7. Qualia 7 — lthacan (614 — 6" Avenue 17. Lucaya (1161 Sunset Drive,
SW, Calgary, Alberta) Kelowna, British Columbia)

8. Qualia 8 —~ Optima (744 — 4" Avenue  18. Platinum Investment Trust
SW, Calgary, Alberta)

9. Barron Building (610 — 8" Street 19. Platinum Lands (Meridian 4,

SW, Calgary, Alberta) Range 27, Township 23, Section
8; SW/NE/SE quarters 9, 17,
NW/SW quarters

10. Deerfoot Court (1144 — 29" Avenue 20. PMIC 1
NE, Calgary, Alberta)

21. PMIC 2

[ understand that, in this class definition, "person” includes any individual partnership, corporation,
cooperative, communal organization, trust, band or other assaciation that invested in the above
investment projects, but excludes the Defendants, or parties related to the Defendants (including
a subsidiary, parent corparation, officer or director of one of the defendant companies, relative
of an individual defendant, and so forth).

[ certify that | am an Investor. | certify that | currently hold, either personally or through a legal entity
that I control (complete as applicable to you):



Qualia 1 - Plaza 14 (811 — 14th Street NW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund Limited Partnership
Shares of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund Ltd.

Qualia 2 - First Street Plaza (138 — 4th Avenue SE, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund Il Limited Partnership

Qualia 3 - Eleven Eleven (1111- 11th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund Il Limited Partnership
Shares in Trust Haven Inc.

Qualia 4 - 926/Parallel (926 — 5th Avenue SW and 1040 - 7th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund IV Limited Partnership
Shares in Citi Centre Investments Inc.

Qualia § — Dominion (906 -12th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate invesiment Fund V Limited Partnership
Shares in Building 906 Investments Ltd.

Qualia 6 — Sunpark/Pemberton (40 Sunpark Plaza Calgary, Alberta and 744 West Hastings
Street, Vancouver, British Columbia)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund VI Limited Partnership
Shares in Qualia Vi Investments Lid.

Qualia 7 - Ithacan (614 — 6th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund VII Limited Partnership

Qualia 8 ~ Optima (744 — 4th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Qualia Real Estate Investment Fund VIl Limited Partnership




Barron Building (610 — 8th Street SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Barron Building Redux Ltd.
Deerfoot Court (1144 — 29th Avenue NE, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Deerfoot Court Real Estate Income Fund Limited Partnership
Shares of Deerfoot Court Registered Investments Lid.

Fish Creek West (37th Street and 146th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Fish Creek West Investments Limited Partnership
Class “B" Common Shares of Fish Creek West RRSP Investments Ltd.

Franklin Crossing (1411 - 33rd Street NE, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Franklin Industrial Limited Partnership

Greenbriar (222 Greenbriar Place NW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Greenbriar Real Estate Investment Fund Limited Partnership

Greenwich Park (17th Avenue & 85th Street SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Platinum 5 Acres And A Mule Limited Partnership
Class “B” Shares of Greenwich Registered Investments Lid.
Bonds of Greenwich Registered Capital Ltd.

Langdon (Condominium Plan 0011878, Units 1, 5, 6, and 7)

Units of Langdon Crossing Limited Partnership

Leben REIT (534 — 17th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta)

Units of Leben Real Estate Investment Trust

Lucaya (1161 Sunset Drive, Kelowna, British Columbia)

Shares of Lucaya Registered Investments Lid.

Bonds of Lucaya Registered Capital Ltd.

Units of Lucaya Limited Partnership




Plafinum Investment Trust

Units of Platinum Investment Trust

Platinum Lands (Meridian 4, Range 27, Township 23, Section 8; SWINE/SE quarters 9, 17,
NW/SW guarters)

Class “B" shares of Platinum Lands Registered Investment Corporation
Bonds of Platinum Lands Registered Capital Corporation

PMIC 1

Class "C" shares of Platinum Mortgage Investment Corporation Investments Ltd.

PMIC 2
Class “C" shares of Platinum Mortgage Investment Corporation Investments Il Ltd.

NOTE: IF YOU BELIEVE YOU HAVE INVESTED IN ANY OF THE ABOVE PROJECTS BUT THE
CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, OR TRUST FUND YOU INVESTED IN IS NOT LISTED ABOVE,
YOU MAY STILL BE A CLASS MEMBER. PROVIDE ALL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
DETAILING YOUR INVESTMENT iN THE APPLICABLE PROJECT

{ certify that | have enclosed all supporting documentation formy Investment in mypossession or
control with this opt-out form.

I acknowledge and agree that the Class Counsel may disclose all informatipn (elating to _this
opt- out to the Alberta Court of Queen's Bench and the lawyers for the parties in the Platinum

Equities Class Action.

| certify thatthe information provided and the representations made in this opf-outform are
true and correct to the best of my knowledge, information and belief;

I understand that by signing this form | am opting-out of the Platinum Equities Class Action. This
means that:

A. I do not want to be a part of the Platinum Equities Class Action, .
B. I'will not be bound by any outcomes of the Platinum Equities Class Action; gnd N
C. I will be excluded from any settlements that may arise as a result of the Platinum Equities

Class Action.

I understand that by signing this form [ take full responsibility for obtaining my own legal advice
with respect to any claim I may have against the Defendants.



| ¢hoose to OPT-OUT of the Platinum Equities Class Action:

Signature of the person completing this opt-out form

Date Signed:
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This is the main page for the Platinum Equities Class Action lawsuit. Check back to this specific page

frequently for updates.

TO ALL INVESTORS IN THE PROJECTS IMPACTED BY THIS CLASS ACTION:

Update January 21, 2020

I must apologize for the delay since our last update. We have been extremely busy and we have had

a number of developments.

For any of those interested, it would appear that Mr. Chandran’s criminal trial, that relates to the
Dominion Building — that is scheduled to run for 3 weeks of trial at the Calgary Court house, starting
10 am on February 3, 2020. If any investors are interested and able to do so, you can attend at the

trial as a spectator. If liability is proven in the trial, it will assist us with our claim.

We have brought a number of applications since the last update. We have obtained access to
materials from a sealed court action, and those materials can be used in our action. Generally, those

records identify specific promissory notes and debt, which we do not believe have been disclosed or
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2/25/2020 Platinum Equities Updates — Invictus LLP
produced in our action, based on the information we have. We hope to use this information with

regard to demonstrating our claim.

We are currently in application to compel the law firm of McCarthy Tetrault LLP, who has previously
represented the Platinum and Strategic Defendants in property conveyance transactions, but only
represents the Strategic Defendants in our litigation, to produce certain relevant and material trust
records that have not yet been disclosed. This is all part of compelling the Platinum defendants to

produce their records. It has been a slow and hard process, but we are making progress.

Many of you are likely aware of the fact that certain of the properties referenced in our litigation are
now tied up with various parties in the CCAA protection that is being sought. The CCAA protection
could be generally described as being sought on behalf of corporations which are directed by Mr.
Mamdani. It appears that a majority of creditors have resisted the application to restructure debt and

the creditors are now looking to advance their own interests. We will let you know how that plays out.

We appreciate your patience here and we will give you a more fullsome update when we have a court
decision that clarifies what relief the court is willing to direct. But we were successful with getting

materials from the sealed action that will assist us in proceeding.

UPDATE August 15, 2019

We understand that many of you have been patiently waiting for news about our lawsuit. It has taken
us a considerable amount of time to arrange for production of records by the Platinum Defendants,
against whom we have a multiple number of production orders which deadlines were not met. | can
confirm that we have many records produced now. As part of the production process, we have had

opportunity to question Mr. Chandran about the records we do have.

We have been successful in obtaining a court order to allow us access to police records related to an
incident that occurred back in the fall of 2011. We have also made application to unseal a court action
between Mr. Mamdani and Mr. Chandran that resulted in a restraining order and sealing order and we
are currently looking to get access to that action to determine if it contains material and relevant
records to our matter.We have a number of sworn affidavits from a number of different plaintiffs and
other witnesses, to assist us in this matter. We are currently organizing the records to assist us in

proceeding with the claim. The records have been of tremendous benefit to us in regard to developing

our claim.
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We appreciate your patience and we will keep you posted as we go, and as best we can. As may well
be appreciated, this is not a secure means of communication, so we are not at liberty to share with
you our litigation strategy or results, or objectives. We fully appreciate the defendants and their legal
counsel review our disclosure to our clients because they are given access to it. And so we do not

wish to convey anything that is material that we do not wish for opposing counsel to know.
We look forward to working with all of you and appreciate your patience.
UPDATE JANUARY 9, 2019

We are currently in a situation where we have obtained a number of production orders related to the
non-compliance of many of the defendants with producing their records. We will be receiving those
documents over the next several weeks. At that time, we will be looking to deal with any deficient
production and then we will be dealing with questioning of withesses. We are not able to share
everything on our website, given the public nature of it. However, we can assure you that we are
continuing to move forward, we have had some positive developments, and we are looking forward to

some positive announcements in the near future. Your patience is appreciated.
UPDATE OCTOBER 30, 2018

We have had some considerable developments since our last update. | continue to ask people to
please stop calling my offices for personal updates, or emailing us for personal updates. We do not
have the retainer to do so. We are also not going to litigate this matter through the website, as you
can all appreciate that defendants and their counsel are reading these updates as well. We will
provide updates to investors on this website so that information is fairly shared, at the same time, with

everyone. And we will do so when it will not prejudice the litigation.

There are 4 main defendant groups in our legal action. Three of them are in breach of compliance
with their production obligations in the lawsuit. We proceeded specifically against the Platinum
Defendants in September of this year to compel them to comply with their production requirements.
They have not done so. We have applications related to the Strategic Defendants, who are also not
in compliance with their production requirements, and the LPP Defendants, going in November. That

will get them to finally produce their records in compliance with a prior court order on production.

Also going in November are applications to compel the various law firms that acted on behalf of
Platinum Defendants, to produce their records and trust records. This flows from the September

application and Order granted by our case management Justice. We expect to get further production
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orders from these various law firms, in order to compel Platinum Defendants to comply with their

production requirements.

We have filed 4 affidavits in support of the various applications, from some specific people, that
address a few different ways that Platinum Defendants and Strategic Defendants were working in
ways that corroborate the allegations in our pleadings. There are some records being sought that we
believe will assist us in demonstrating the reliability of the allegations made in our pleadings. We
expect these applications will assist us in moving the matter along and will provide relevant and

material records that will corroborate the allegations we have made in our lawsuit.

To be clear, we expect to get production orders related to the LPP Defendants, Strategic Defendants
and the Platinum Defendants, as all 3 of those groups have not yet complied with their production
requirements. We will be seeking production of trust records related to conveyancing transactions, as
well as other relevant records. That will impact a variety of different law firms. We will give you an

update here when we have clarification of what we are allowed.

Our updates will not be as frequent as some people want. That is a result of the fact that it takes time
to push this along, as clearly the Defendant sets described above are not working toward moving this
matter ahead as they have disputed all steps along the way.

I look forward to working with all of you as we proceed.
UPDATE FEBRUARY 14, 2018

I apologize for our delay in updating investors. We have had a considerable amount of progress in

the last several months and | wanted to get one thing crystallized before we updated investors.

We have a litigation plan that required defences to be filed by the Defendants by January 30, 2018.
We have received those defences from the parties against whom we sought them. We wanted to

have a filed pleading, before we provided an update to investors.

We have been working for a considerable period of time to get some key people to provide us with
sworn evidence about the allegations we raise in our action. We have obtained some very critical
sworn evidence and records in support of it to corroborate some of the allegations in our claim. We
didn’t want to disclose this until we had filed pleadings from the defendants. It is our position that this

sworn evidence contradicts some of the positions taken by the various Defendants in their defences.
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We are now under a timeline to serve our records. We have affidavits of records from all but one of

our representative plaintiffs and once we have that, we will be serving the various defendants.

We are currently in a situation where none of the Appellants that appealed certification, and lost, have
paid their share of the taxed costs. We are currently taking steps to enforce the Bills of Costs against
the several defendants that appealed the certification. So far, we have successfully taxed one of the

Defendant groups and have further taxation dates set for March. The monies collected will be placed

into trust to help offset go forward costs of litigation, now we are advancing the main claim.

With respect to the Saini v. Robertson matter, this is a distinct class action that solely relates to the
Dominion — Qualia V investors. This lawsuit is related to allegations surrounding the damages
caused to those investors as a result of the property being transferred to the purchaser without
properly protecting the vendor, and ultimately the Qualia V investors. Essentially, the purchaser was
able to take title to the property, and used mortgages to draw out the equity, without the vendor being
paid for using the transfer. We are working in this lawsuit to determine who the proper parties should
be and which lawyer may have been negligent in the transaction. In this particular claim, we have
recently been successful in an application to compel trust records that will demonstrate where
mortgage proceeds came in from and where they went, which will help identify who should be the
proper parties to this claim. That will also assist us in determining which lawyer did not properly
enforce and protect the vendor, and ultimately the Qualia V investors, in the usage of the transfer of
land and the trust conditions imposed on doing such. We are hopeful that this litigation will be more
clearly defined with the production we will get following the Order we just obtained in this action. And

from there, we will continue to press it forward.

UPDATE AUGUST 18, 2017

We are currently scheduled to be back in the Courts in late October of this year. We are dealing with
getting the Defendants to pay their costs of having lost their appeals to the Court of Appeal. It took
some time to sort that out given two sets of Appellants had not accurately stated who were and were
not parties to their appeals. That is now resolved. We will be going to court in October to set out a
schedule for further steps in finally advancing litigation in the main claim, now it is finalized as a class
action. That will mean that your representative plaintiffs in each project will be made available for
questioning, after production of records is completed. We continue to ask for your patience. This is a
large and complex matter and it has been difficult to get counsel for the various defendant groups to
agree to dates to move forward. So in the fall, we will have an order with a litigation schedule to help
with guiding that.
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UPDATE MAY 10, 2017

As we have already informed you, the Court of Appeal rejected the appeals of the 4 main appellants
that sought to overturn certification. The Platinum Defendants were ordered to provide us with the
investor contact information in electronic format (give us your email addresses). Many of you may
recall that when our lawsuit was commenced, Chitra Chandran sent out a mass email to all investors
advising you that our lawsuit was without merit. We sought those email lists and are waiting for them
still. We did get some email addresses in hard copy format and we have tried to forward to everyone
the Certification Notice. Some of those emails have bounced back, although many of them went
through. So most of you should already have the notice. So if you didn't get the notice, we don't
have your email address. So you can send your updated contact information to us via email. Please

send it to Jackie@invictuslip.ca — but only do so if you did not get our email.

People are calling us still to complain that they are not getting notices. Send us an email to the
address above, telling us which project(s) you were in, and in what amounts, and give us your contact
name for the investment, your address, and your email address you want us to use to correspond
~with you. Most updates will be here, so we recommend you check here regularly. We are not
sending out monthly emails, as this matter is not progressing in a manner to justify that. But we will
update steps here and we encourage you to check here periodically for updates. We look forward to

assisting you going forward.

Attached below is the Certification Notice, in the event you did not get the email. You should read it to
inform yourself. Please do not call us to ask questions about this form, as it explains itself if you read
it. Alberta is an opt out jurisdiction. This means that unless you opt out, you are deemed to be part of
our lawsuit. If you wish to opt out, it means you need to fill in the form and send it to us. You don't
have to send us the form if you want to be part of our lawsuit. If you opt out, you will not participate in
any award or settlement of our lawsuit, if such occurs. Opting out means you intend to pursue your

own claim individually. Notice of Certification and Opt-Out Justice Approved
UPDATE MARCH 20, 2017

The written reasons of the Alberta Court of Appeal have been released, confirming the certification of
our action to proceed as one claim. We are now in contact with counsel to set case management
meetings to get disclosure of the missing information to comply with the original certification decision,
so that notification can proceed. We will be posting the class action notice on our website shortly.

Alberta is an opt out province. This means that you do not have to complete the forms and send
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them back to us unless you want to opt out of our class action. It means that investors do not have to
do anything, and they will be deemed part of our class action litigation. The forms will be self
explanatory, but we provide this notice for you. We will also be emailing it to those investors for
whom we have email contacts. We cannot promise your spam filters won't reject our email of a
document, so you can either find it in an email, or your junk mail, or you can come here to find it, once

it is posted. We thank you for your patience.
UPDATE MARCH 13, 2017

We attended at the Court of Appeal finally on March 9, 2017. Some of the investors attended for the
hearing. At that time, 4 different groups appealed the certification decision that was granted in our
class action lawsuit that certified us as a class action. The appeals were denied. Three members of
the Alberta Court of Appeal dismissed the 4 separate appeals without oral argument from us (the
Respondents in the appeals). We are waiting for written reasons to be released and we will proceed
in due course. At this time, we cannot predict the future path of litigation and when we have more

information, we will provide it via the website.

We understand this process has taken time. We ask for your patience, as we are not in control of the
court resources. But we are continuing to press this matter forward and we will update you all when

progress is made.
UPDATE NOVEMBER 3, 2016

| am writing to inform you that the Alberta Court of Appeal has granted the request for an adjournment
sought by one of the Defendant counsel. We were successful in making that adjournment occur on a
peremptory basis, meaning it will go forward no matter what on March 9, 2017. As many of you have
asked, the Court of Appeal is an open hearing, and you may attend March 9, 2017 at 10am at:

TransCanada Pipelines Tower, 2600, 450 — 1st St. S.W.,, Calgary, AB, T2P 5H1

We are now in the process of drafting submissions to seek a court order to compel the Defendants to
pay our throw away costs of this adjournment being granted. We will keep you posted on progress

here on this page.

UPDATE OCTOBER 28, 2016
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I am writing you to inform you all about our status. We were certified as an omni-bus class action suit
back in May of 2015. After the decision was finalized, some of the defendants bound by that decision
appealed the Certification Order. We are currently scheduled to be going to the Court of Appeal on
November 8, 2016. It took that long to get the appeal together and filed by the defendant group. To
be clear, we are the Respondents in this appeal. That means some of the defendants appealed the
decision. We take the position the Certifying Justice made the appropriate decision, which enables
our entire group to proceed together in order to prove that you were deprived of your investment in

the manner described in the Statement of Claim.

We have just been contacted by one of the Defendant groups seeking an adjournment of the
hearing. They advise that one of the lawyers at their firm that was to argue the appeal, is no longer
available. We are currently dealing with the request and will update you as we absorb that request.

We will be seeking instruction from the representative plaintiffs in each of your projects.

Please do not email or call us about this development. We will update everyone on the website, or by
email, as we can. We know that some people were thinking of attending the appeal. We will keep

you posted of our progress, on the website.

Kevin P McGuigan

UPDATE — MARCH 16th, 2016

Platinum Equities Appeal Update

We now have a confirmed date for the appeal of the Certification decision of November 8th, 2016.
UPDATE - MARCH 1ST, 2016

Platinum Equities Appeal Update

We have now heard from the Defendant Groups, who have brought an appeal of the certification
decision we won in May 2015. At this time, the Defendants’ appeal will not likely be heard until

November — December 2016 at the earliest.

We appreciate that class members are anxious to have the appeal heard and dealt with. However,

this is the Defendants’ appeal, and we do not have control over the speed in which this matter

invictuslip.ca/class-action-cases/platinum-equities/platinum-equities-updates/ 8/12



2/25/2020 Platinum Equities Updates — Invictus LLP
progresses. We are as eager to have this matter resolved as class members but we are unfortunately

not in control of the appeal.

We understand that class members are likely upset to hear of how long it will be before the Court of
Appeal hears this matter and renders a decision. Nevertheless, we again ask for class members’
patience. We will continue to provide updates as they become available, but at this stage there will be

minimal updates until the Defendants’ appeal is actually heard.
-Justin Dunphy

UPDATE - FEBRUARY 15TH, 2016

Platinum Equities Appeal Update

As of the end of January 2016, we filed and served our legal briefs on the four defendant groups

appealing the certification decision. We are also now in receipt of all the reply briefs of the defendant

groups.

Our next step is to coordinate with all parties to set an appeal date. As of right now we do not know
what the court of appeal’s availability will look like. We will know within the next few weeks and will

update investors on the actual appeal date.

We appreciate class members’ patience and will hopefully have more information soon.

-Justin Dunphy
UPDATE - DECEMBER 8TH, 2015

Platinum Equities Appeal Update

We are now in receipt of the briefs of the defendant groups with respect to the Platinum Equities

certification appeal.

As investors may recall, we had obtained certification of the Platinum Equities class action in May

2015. Shortly thereafter, the defendants appealed.

The defendants had until early December to provide their briefs in support of their appeal. We have

two months from that date to provide our briefs in response, which would be in late January 2016.
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Following the filing of briefs by both parties, we can set a date for the hearing of the appeal.

We appreciate that investors are anxious for updates and to move this class action forward. However,
the appeal process is a slow one. We will continue to provide updates on the status after January
2016.

-Justin Dunphy
UPDATE - JUNE 9TH, 2015
TIER 1 INVESTOR CALL FOR CONTRIBUTIONS

As we have now moved past the certification stage of the Platinum Equities Class Action, we will
require an additional contribution from Tier 1 investors. As a reminder, there are two Tiers of investors

who we represent in this Class Action:

TIER 1: If you have previously contributed 1% of your total investment in all projects towards funding
the Class Action, you are a Tier 1 investor. You will be entitled to a larger proportion of the eventual
proceeds should the Class Action settle or we obtain a judgment against some or all of the

Defendants.

TIER 2: if you have not previously contributed 1% of your investment in all projects towards funding
the Class Action, you are a Tier 2 investor. You will be entitled to a smaller proportion of the eventual
proceeds should the Class Action settle or we obtain a judgement against some or all of the

Defendants.

For Tier 1 investors, we are asking for an additional contribution of 1% of your investment at this time.
Your contribution will match the previous contribution you made towards the Class Action. Should you
decide not to make any additional contribution, you will lose your Tier 1 status, and drop down to Tier
2.

We ask that contributions be made payable to “McGuigan Nelson LLP in trust” and mailed to the

address below. Please note that our office address has changed from the date of the last contribution.
McGuigan Nelson LLP

Suite 205, 625 — 11th Avenue S.W.
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Calgary, Alberta T2R 0E1
Subject: Platinum Equities Tier 1 Contribution
Finally, please include the Contribution Form when making your contribution. Contribution Form

-Kevin McGuigan

UPDATE — JUNE 4TH, 2015

On June 3, 2015, Justice Macleod entered an Order confirming the terms of his decision to certify our
claim. On the right hand side of this page, under the “Downloads” heading, you will find the Notice to
Investors and Opt out Form. YOU DO NOT HAVE TO FILL OUT A FORM IF YOU WANT TO STAY
IN THIS LAWSUIT. Many of our investors are Tier 1 investors and are contributing to costs. Tier 2
investors will be treated differently on any judgment or settlement, but they also do not have to fill out
any forms. In Alberta, we have “"OPT OUT" legislation, which means you have to fill out the attached

form if you DO NOT want to be part of this lawsuit. So investors that wish to remain do not have to

do anything.

We will be back before Justice Macleod on September 1, 2015 to speak to this matter. At that time,

we hope to get his approval of our efforts to comply with providing investors with notice of this claim.

We can also advise you that there are 4 defendant groups in this litigation. There were certain parties
from the Platinum Defendant group that were sanctioned by the Alberta Securities Commission and
fairly substantial fines were imposed. Going forward, there will be certain Platinum Defendants that

will not have counsel. We will update you as to how that impacts the litigation when we see.

We can also advise that three of the Defendant groups have filed Notices of Appeal and the fourth
group has advised us they are doing so as well. So while we will be providing you with Notice, to
comply with the Class Proceedings Act, we will have to deal with the appeals. We will keep you

updated on dates as we progress and finalize those.

We know that there are a large number of class members here and we are trying to inform all of you
of the progress of this matter. However, we cannot respond to individual inquiries. We ask you to

review the website for updates, which will be posted as they are available for us to do so.

-Kevin McGuigan
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Contact Us

Email

info@invictusllp.ca

Phone
403-265-7744

Fax
403-265-7528

Address
Suite 230, 840 - 6th Ave SW T2P 3E5
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